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Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
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Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:
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Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act.    Yes  ¨    No  þ

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Act.    Yes  ¨    No  þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.    Yes  þ    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files).    Yes  ¨    No  ¨

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form
10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.  þ

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of �large accelerated filer,� �accelerated filer� and �smaller reporting company� in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act:

Large accelerated filer  ¨ Accelerated filer  ¨ Non-accelerated filer  ¨ Smaller reporting company  þ
(Do not check if a smaller reporting company)

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).    Yes  ¨    No  þ

The aggregate market value of the voting and non-voting common equity held by non-affiliates computed by reference to the price at which the
common equity was last sold as of June 30, 2010 was $64,795,982.

The number of shares of the registrant�s common stock outstanding as of February 28, 2011 was 56,332,232.
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Documents Incorporated by Reference

Portions of the registrant�s definitive proxy statement for its 2011 annual meeting of stockholders are incorporated by reference into Part III of
this Form 10-K.
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Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements contained in this annual report on Form 10-K, including, but not limited to, statements regarding the development, growth
and expansion of our business, our intent, belief or current expectations, primarily with respect to our future operating performance and the
products we expect to offer, and other statements regarding matters that are not historical facts, are �forward-looking statements� within the
meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and are subject to the �safe harbor� created by these sections. Future filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, future press releases and future oral or written statements made by us or with our approval, which are not
statements of historical fact, may also contain forward-looking statements. Because such statements include risks and uncertainties, many of
which are beyond our control, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Some of
the factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements are set forth in
the section entitled �Risk Factors� and in the section entitled �Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations� and elsewhere throughout this annual report on Form 10-K.

Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements speak only as of the
date on which they are made, and, except as required by applicable law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statement to
reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events.

In this annual report on Form 10-K, �Dot Hill,� �Dot Hill Systems Corp.,� �we,� �us� and �our� refer to Dot Hill Systems Corporation, and our wholly
owned subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, unless the context otherwise provides.

PART I

Item 1. Business
We design, manufacture and market a range of software and hardware storage systems for the entry and midrange storage markets. Beginning in
the second half of 2009, we began placing more emphasis on selling higher gross margin products which includes software, appliance products,
and hardware products through indirect sales channels. We have two operating segments, which include storage systems and standalone storage
software.

Typical customers for our storage systems operating segment, which includes our AssuredSAN line of storage array products, include
organizations requiring high reliability, high performance networked storage and data management solutions in an open systems architecture.
Our storage solutions consist of integrated hardware, firmware and software products employing a modular system that allows end-users to add
various protocol, performance, capacity or data protection schemes as needed. Our broad range of products, from small capacity direct attached
to complete multi-hundred terabyte, or TB, storage area networks, or SANs, provide end-users with a cost-effective means of addressing
increasing storage demands at compelling price-performance points. Our current product family based on our AssuredSAN architecture provides
high performance and large disk array capacities for a broad variety of environments, employing Fibre Channel, or FC, Internet Small Computer
Systems Interface, or iSCSI or Serial Attached SCSI, or SAS, interconnects to switches and/or hosts. In addition, our Assured family of data
protection software products provides additional layers of data protection options to complement our line of storage disk arrays. Our current
mainstream 2000 and 3000 series of entry-level storage products and Just a Bunch of Disks, or JBOD, arrays are targeted primarily at
mainstream enterprise and small-to-medium business, or SMB, applications. Our AssuredSAN 5000 Series products have been distinguished by
certification as Network Equipment Building System, or NEBS, Level 3 (a telecommunications standard for equipment used in central offices)
and are MIL-STD-810F (a military standard created by the U.S.
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government) compliant based on their ruggedness and reliability. In February 2010, we launched the latest AssuredSAN 3000 series of storage
arrays that provide high speed interface options including 8 gigabyte, or GB, FC, 1GB and 10GB iSCSI over Ethernet and 6GB SAS
connectivity.

Our standalone storage software operating segment consists of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA product lines.

In November 2010, we launched the AssuredUVS unified virtual storage appliance product line for our branded products through our indirect
sales channels and we continue to sell the AssuredUVS software-only to qualified OEM accounts worldwide. This product line, formerly known
as the intelligent storage networking system, or iSNTM, is based on the technology we acquired in January 2010 from Cloverleaf
Communications, Inc, or Cloverleaf, a privately held software company focused on heterogeneous storage virtualization and unified storage
technologies. The appliance products consist of a standard off-the-shelf x86 server, combined with the proprietary software that delivers the
unified virtual storage feature set. Our storage arrays are also available bundled with this appliance. We believe this product line will broaden
market opportunities in both OEM and branded indirect sales channels and help accelerate our transition from a provider of hardware storage
arrays to a provider of unified virtual storage solutions. Sales of AssuredUVS products were not significant in 2010. Although we expect sales of
our AssuredUVS products to increase, we do not expect such sales to represent a significant percentage of our total net revenue in 2011.

In September 2008, we acquired certain assets, namely RAIDCore from Ciprico Inc., or Ciprico. These products are marketed to OEM accounts
as the AssuredVRA product line. This acquisition opened up new markets for us in the enterprise server and workstation markets for data
protection internal to the servers and workstations. In particular, the RAIDCore acquisition allows us to broaden our product portfolio in the
redundant array of independent disks, or RAID, market while allowing us to sell into the Band 1 market, and to pursue opportunities at current
and target OEM customers. We signed our first customer agreement relating to RAIDCore products in May 2009 and began selling to this
customer during the third quarter of 2009. Sales of AssuredVRA products were not significant in 2010. Although we expect sales of our
AssuredVRA products to increase in 2011, we do not expect such sales to represent a significant percentage of our total net revenue in 2011.

We have decided to expand our routes to market beyond our focus on original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and in October of 2009, we
launched a Dot Hill channel program targeted at selling through distributors and open storage partners, or OSPs. We continued to expand our
channel program in 2010 and we believe this will provide Dot Hill with additional sales channels for all of our products. The majority of sales to
our channel partners were represented by our AssuredSAN line of products in 2010. We expect sales to our channel partners of our AssuredSAN
and AssuredUVS products will increase in 2011.

Our agreements with our customers do not contain any minimum purchase commitments and may be terminated at any time upon notice from
the applicable customer. Our ability to achieve and maintain profitability will depend on, among other things, the level and mix of orders we
actually receive from such customers, the actual amounts we spend on marketing support, the actual amounts we spend for inventory support
and incremental internal investment, our ability to reduce product cost, our product lead time, our ability to meet delivery schedules required by
our customers and the economic environment.

Our products and services are sold worldwide to facilitate server and SAN storage implementations, primarily through OEMs, and supplemented
by system integrators, or SIs, distributors and value added resellers, or VARs. Our storage system operating segment OEM partners currently
include, among others, Hewlett-Packard, or HP, Lenovo, Ericsson, Motorola, Inc., or Motorola, General Dynamics Government Systems
Corporation, or General Dynamics, Lockheed Martin Corporation, or Lockheed Martin, NEC, Tektronix Inc., or Tektronix, Samsung
Electronics, or Samsung, Stratus Technologies, or Stratus, and Fujitsu Technology Solutions GmbH, or FTS. Our standalone storage software
operating segment OEM partners currently include, among
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others, Dell Inc., or Dell and Xiotech. Although our products and services are sold worldwide, the majority of our net revenue is derived from
our U.S. operations. See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding our operating segments and a
breakout of our net revenue by geographical regions.

We began shipping products to HP in the fourth quarter of 2007. In January 2008, we amended our agreement with HP to allow for sales of
additional products to additional divisions within HP. Our products are primarily sold as HP�s MSA 2000/P2000 product family. Sales to HP
increased significantly during 2008 and increased again in 2009 primarily as a result of the successful launch and market acceptance of the HP
MSA 2000 products. HP launched its third generation product line, now called the P2000 product line, in February 2010. Sales to HP increased
again in 2010 as we began selling our next generation host interfaces across the HP P2000 product line. The agreement with HP does not contain
any minimum purchase commitments. Net revenue from HP approximated 57% of our total net revenue in 2010. We expect sales to HP will
represent a higher percentage of our total net revenue in 2011.

We previously designed and developed general purpose disk arrays for a variety of products that were sold under private label by NetApp, Inc.,
or NetApp. In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to
allow them to manufacture and sell on a royalty-free basis all of the products we previously manufactured and sold to them beginning on or
about December 1, 2010. As a result, we currently do not anticipate generating any additional revenue from NetApp.

We expect to generate additional revenue from our indirect channel sales and from sales of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products as well
as new and potential OEM customers to replace the revenue, and more importantly, the gross profit lost as a result of amending our agreement
with NetApp. However, if we are unable to generate sufficient gross profit from these sources to largely replace the gross profit previously
associated with NetApp, our financial results could be harmed. Net revenue from NetApp approximated 26% of our total net revenue in 2010, all
of which was attributable to our storage systems operating segment.

We expect our total net revenue to decrease in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of exiting our relationship with NetApp.

In addition, the demand for our products has been affected in the past, and may continue to be affected in the future, by various factors,
including, but not limited to, the following:

� our ability to maintain and enhance relationships with our customers, in particular our OEM customers, as well as our ability to win
new business;

� the amount of field failures resulting in product replacements or recalls;

� our ability to launch new products in accordance with OEM schedules and milestones;

� general economic and political conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address, including the continuing volatility in the
technology sector, current general economic volatility and trends in the data storage markets in various geographic regions;

� the timing, rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders and our ability, as well as the ability of our customers, to
manage inventory; and

� the inability of certain of our customers who depend on credit to have access to their traditional sources of credit to finance the
purchase of products from us, particularly in the current global economic environment, which may lead them to reduce their level of
purchases or to seek credit or other accommodations from us.

For these and other reasons, our net revenue and results of operations in 2010 and prior periods may not necessarily be indicative of future net
revenue and results of operations.
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Our manufacturing strategy includes outsourcing substantially all of our manufacturing to third-party manufacturers in order to reduce sales
cycle times and manufacturing infrastructure, enhance working capital and improve margins by taking advantage of the third parties�
manufacturing and procurement economies of scale. In September 2008, we entered into a manufacturing agreement with Foxconn Technology
Group, or Foxconn. Under the terms of the agreement, Foxconn supplies us with manufacturing, assembly and test services from its facilities in
China and final integration services including final assembly, testing and configure-to-order services, through its worldwide facilities. The
agreement provides for an initial three-year term that is automatically renewed at the end of such three-year term for additional one-year terms
unless and until the agreement is terminated by either party. Foxconn began manufacturing products for us in July 2009 and we began shipping
products for general availability under the Foxconn agreement during the second half of 2009. The majority of our products sold in 2010 were
manufactured by Foxconn. We expect Foxconn to manufacture substantially all of our products in 2011.

We have also historically outsourced our manufacturing to Flextronics International Limited, or Flextronics, MiTAC International Corporation,
or MiTAC, a leading provider of contract manufacturing and original design manufacturing services, and SYNNEX Corporation, or SYNNEX, a
leading global information technology, or IT, supply chain services company. We do not expect to outsource much of our manufacturing to
Flextronics, SYNNEX or MiTAC in 2011.

In the second quarter of 2010, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring and cost reduction plan, or the 2010 Plan,
to better align our resources in order to lower our breakeven point. The 2010 Plan included severance and related costs for the reduction of
approximately 10% of our workforce, and fees associated with the acceleration of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility. Substantially
all of our 2010 Plan workforce reductions were completed by December 31, 2010 and we completely exited our Carlsbad facility as of June 30,
2010.

We were formed in 1999 by the combination of Box Hill Systems Corp., or Box Hill, and Artecon, Inc., or Artecon. We reincorporated in
Delaware in 2001. Our website address is http://www.dothill.com. Information contained on our website does not constitute a part of this annual
report on Form 10-K. Our annual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, our current reports on Form 8-K and all
amendments to those reports that we file with the SEC are currently available free of charge to the general public through our website promptly
after being filed with the SEC and are also accessible through the SEC�s website which may be found at http://www.sec.gov. In addition, you
may read and copy the materials we file with the SEC at the SEC�s Public Reference Room at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, DC 20549. You
may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

Industry Background

Growth of Data Storage

The efficient generation, storage, management and retrieval of digital data and content has become increasingly strategic and mission-critical to
organizations. In essence, we believe storage is becoming a non-discretionary purchase. The volume of this data continues to grow rapidly,
driven by several factors, including, among others:

� the proliferation of different types of data and data forms such as digital graphics, video, text and audio;

� the emergence of Internet-based communication protocols which enable users to rapidly duplicate, change and re-communicate data;

� new regulations and corporate policies requiring additional storage requirements imposed on healthcare companies and evolving
regulatory requirements for financial services companies;
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� the implementation of enterprise-wide databases containing business management information;

� gains in network bandwidth and the technology for managing and classifying large volumes of data; and

� the development of the information lifecycle management and the growing use of RAID systems in the backup market in place of, or
in addition to, automated tape libraries, due to new applications of technologies that offer improved alternatives in the trade-off
between performance and cost of ownership.

While research of worldwide external disk storage systems shipped is not yet completely available, the industry continued to report an overall
capacity growth in 2010 despite economic conditions. A further trend that is expected to benefit us is a shift in spending toward entry-level
storage and midrange markets as IT budgets are adjusted downwards. We expect this trend to continue into 2011 and potentially beyond as entry
level and midrange storage starts to offer an increasing number of traditional enterprise level features.

Traditionally, storage vendors have designed products for markets differentiated by capacity, performance, price and feature set. These storage
markets are typically identified as:

� Entry-level. Entry-level storage products are designed for lower capacity, stand-alone data storage needs. OEMs and server
companies address this market primarily through an indirect sales channel approach employing distributors, retailers and VARs that
assist IT managers in identifying, purchasing and installing the product.

� Midrange. Midrange or departmental/workgroup storage products are designed for higher capacity and performance than entry-level
products, but still feature ease of use and manageability, and are attached to a local server or a network of servers tailored to the
needs of the local users. In this market, storage providers, OEMs and server companies primarily sell their products to local IT
managers either direct or through distributors, VARs and regional SIs.

� High-end. High-end or data center storage products are designed for use by larger organizations where data storage and management
is critical. These organizations require large capacity storage systems that feature high performance, automation, extreme reliability,
continuous availability, operating systems interoperability and global service and support. In this market, storage providers, OEMs
and server companies sell their products with a combination of a direct sales force and indirect channels, including OEMs, large SIs,
VARs and managed services providers.

In addition to dramatic increases in the overall volume of data, the storage market has been influenced by the following major trends:

Migration to Networked, Clustered Computing and Unified Storage. Computing processes and architectures have evolved from mainframe
computing systems toward a centrally managed network computing environment characterized by multiple operating systems and server
platforms that must share information both locally and remotely. In addition, virtual server environments enabled by vendors such as VMware
and Microsoft/s Hyper-V have led to a marked increase in the trend toward Unified Storage solutions that offer both NAS and SAN attach
capabilities in a single storage solution. Organizations require large-scale data storage solutions offering, among other things:

� increased connectivity capabilities;

� greater capacity;

� higher performance;
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� the ability to share data among different platforms;

� greater reliability; and

� greater protection.
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Organizations have responded by implementing tailored networks, optimized for data storage functions that facilitate data access and protection.

Increasing Focus on Total Cost of Ownership and Return on Investment. IT managers are increasingly focused on lowering the total cost of
ownership and increasing their return on investment on each technology purchase. IT managers evaluate total cost of ownership and return on
investment based upon several metrics, including initial purchase price, ease of provisioning, scalability, reliability and redundancy, ease of
management, IT staff productivity, operating costs and after-sale service and support.

Unified Virtual Storage Systems

The need for unified virtual storage systems within IT departments in the SMB market segment is creating a new opportunity for storage
solutions. Unified storage systems are defined as those that manage both block and file (or SAN and NAS) storage volumes, often with the
ability to support multiple protocols, sometimes across multiple brands of storage arrays and manage them through a common interface. Virtual
storage systems are those that deliver virtual storage functionality including volume management, thin and tiered provisioning, snapshots,
replications and other features that are independent of the underlying hardware in an array, with the ability to scale out across multiple nodes for
higher performance and larger capacity, and manage these features from a single interface tool. We believe there are emerging opportunities for
storage systems that offer both unified and virtual features in the same system. Our AssuredUVS appliance was launched in November 2010
with this feature set which we believe will enable us to pursue these new opportunities as market adoption of these systems increases in 2011
and beyond.

Storage Area Networks

End-users require storage systems that enable them to capture, protect, manage and archive data across a variety of storage platforms and
applications without sacrificing performance or reliability. Historically, SCSI was the primary method of connecting storage to servers, based on
a direct attached storage, or DAS, model. SAS has been adopted to replace parallel SCSI. Subsequently, the FC protocol was developed, which
enables storage devices to connect to servers over a networked architecture, allowing end-users to connect multiple storage devices with high
bandwidth throughput over long distances and centrally manage their storage environment. More recently, the iSCSI protocol has emerged in
entry-level and midrange systems for storage connected via standard local area networks, or LANs, and wide area networks, or WANs, and
leverages the significant investments and existing deployments of Ethernet technology. On-going developments in the industry have also led to
preliminary proposed standards for FC over Ethernet, or FCoE. Centrally managed network storage systems are designed to provide connectivity
across multiple operating systems and devices and may be based on either open or proprietary technology standards.

SANs, whether FC or iSCSI based, apply the benefits of a networked approach to data storage applications, allowing large blocks of data to
move efficiently and reliably between multiple storage devices and servers without interrupting normal network traffic. SANs provide high
scalability, connectivity and fault-tolerance, which permit IT managers to create and manage centralized pools of storage and backup devices
with redundant data paths. With the addition of file-sharing software, SANs also allow multiple hosts to share consolidated data, dramatically
reducing the need to duplicate, move and manage multiple files in a wide variety of data-intensive applications. SANs primarily employ FC
technology, although more recently iSCSI is increasingly being employed to provide storage access over Internet Protocol, or IP SANs.

Direct Attached Storage

A significant portion of storage systems that do not require the benefits of a scalable networked storage infrastructure are based on a DAS
architecture attached directly to a server. Such storage is typically used to create a large data storage attached to a single server that is then
shared or accessed over a general purpose LAN
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as opposed to a dedicated storage network. Newer clustered file systems for example are often based on large arrays of networked servers that
each have a local set of disks, or a RAID disk set, as their local data storage. These local DAS RAID arrays can range from several disks housed
inside the server and controlled by software RAID or a local RAID controller adapter installed inside the server, up to larger RAID arrays
connected to the server via a local high speed dedicated storage link. RAID arrays inside the servers can require a dedicated RAID host bus
adapter that interfaces multiple disk drives to the host computer bus to provide a high performance disk array with RAID level data protection.
More recent server implementations are commonly replacing the dedicated RAID host bus adapter with a lower cost built in disk input/output, or
I/O, controller function built into the server motherboard, and implementing the RAID software on the host server operating system. This same
RAID controller or software is also capable of connecting to external JBOD or SAS RAID arrays via an external SAS cable to provide
extremely cost effective, local storage for servers. We intend to serve this market with our acquired RAIDCore product, known as AssuredVRA.

Demand for High Performance, Affordable Network Storage Solutions

Customers increasingly demand higher performing, affordable solutions to address expanding storage requirements, interoperability across
disparate systems, the need for improved connectivity and rising data management costs. Customers are also demanding open standards
architecture and modular systems that allow them to add capacity as needed. These demands have created significant opportunities for network
storage system solutions that are affordable and provide high performance. In general, features that were historically only available in high-end
storage systems are increasingly required in entry-level and midrange systems.

Reliability

One of the most important requirements for many customers is that their stored data is available, and that the systems upon which they are stored
be reliable. For example, Internet-related customers can lose significant revenue for every minute their sites are inoperable and users cannot
access data from the website. Similarly, the operations of corporate customers can grind to a halt if important data is lost or unavailable. For
these reasons, a storage system�s reliability is often a very critical factor in making a choice among storage systems.

Our Solutions

Hardware Based Storage Solutions

We offer a flexible, broad line of networked data storage solutions composed of standards-based hardware and embedded software for open
systems environments including SAS, FC and iSCSI storage markets. We incorporate many of the performance attributes and other features
demanded by high-end/data center end-users into our products, at prices that are suitable for the entry-level or midrange markets. Our end-users
consist of entry-level and midrange users, requiring cost-effective, easily managed, high-performance, reliable storage systems. Our
AssuredSAN product lines range from approximately a few TB to hundreds of TB storage systems. These offerings allow our products to be
integrated in a modular building block fashion or configured into a complete storage solution, increasing OEM flexibility in creating
differentiated products. Modular products also allow our OEM partners to customize solutions, bundling our products with value-added
hardware, software and services.

These products and services are intended to provide users with the following benefits:

� Low Total Cost of Ownership and High Return on Investment. Our products combine reliability, flexibility, scalability and
manageability into one of the smallest form factors in today�s market. Our product set provides end-users with a low total cost of
ownership due to our products� high reliability, the simplicity of our �plug-and-play� technology, decreased service and support costs
and modular system approach that allow end-users to add capacity as needed. The modular nature of our products addresses our
end-users� desire for a storage solution that does not require a large, upfront investment
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in a monolithic structure with unused capacity. In addition, we believe that our AssuredSAN storage systems are among the
most space-efficient in the storage industry, maximizing the utilization of our customers� limited space and significantly
reducing their costs. By extending and leveraging our customers� installed storage system and architecture, we are able to
provide solutions that offer both a lower total cost of ownership and a higher return on investment.

� Modular Scalability. Our products are designed using a single cohesive modular architecture that allows customers to size and
configure storage systems to meet their specific requirements or storage network type. This modular architecture also allows
customers to easily expand and, in some cases, reconfigure a system as their needs change, permitting them to extend the useful life
of, and better utilize, their existing systems.

� Reliability. We believe that high reliability is essential to our customers due to the critical nature of the data being stored. We offer
high reliability in our product lines and integrate the latest in technological advances to meet expanding market opportunities. We
design redundancy, high reliability, high performance and ruggedness into our storage systems. Redundant components have the
ability to be replaced while the system is online without interrupting network activity. All of our AssuredSAN 5000 Series products
currently offered are certified to operate under extreme climatic and other harsh operating conditions without degradation in
reliability or performance, as attested to with the NEBS Level 3 and MIL-STD-810F certifications. Our AssuredSAN product family
is targeted at the general purpose market without compromising our high reliability standards.

� High-end performance attributes and features. Our AssuredSAN products are enclosed in a compact two unit high chassis which
accommodates up to 12 3.5� disk drives or 24 2.5� disk drives in the array. Arrays can be configured from 876 GB for
entry-level Series 2000 products to 192 TB for the Series 3000 products. Customers can intermix SAS and SATA II drives in the
same enclosure offering a multitude of configuration options that provide greater flexibility to end-users that wish to store different
performance profiles of data in the same physical array. Additionally, our AssuredSAN products currently feature the industry�s only
unified product architecture which utilizes a common RAID controller architecture from the entry-level to the midrange, regardless
of protocol.

� Open Systems, Multi-Platform Support. As an independent provider of storage products, we are well positioned to provide storage
solutions on a variety of platforms and operating systems, including Linux, HP-UX, Solaris and Windows. Our product lines support
access to data by multiple servers using different operating systems simultaneously. This multi-platform compatibility allows
customers to standardize on a single storage system that can readily be reconfigured and redeployed at minimal cost as the customer�s
storage architecture changes.

� Manageability. The ability to manage storage systems, particularly through software, is a key differentiator among storage vendors.
RAIDar (TM), our storage management software for AssuredSAN products, enable customers to more easily manage and configure
their storage systems and respond to their changing system requirements.

� Data Management Software. We introduced our data management services, or DMS, in 2007 in conjunction with the launch of our
AssuredSAN product family. AssuredSnap (TM) enables point in time snapshots of data for usage in real-time backups, data mining
and disaster avoidance. AssuredCopy (TM) enables users to create a clone copy of data at any point in time and AssuredRemote
(TM) enables remote replication between arrays. We expect to continue to expand our portfolio of DMS available for our
AssuredSAN based products.

Software Based Storage Solutions

We offer a line of unified virtual storage appliances called the AssuredUVS product line. To OEM customers, such as Xiotech, we market this
technology as a software-only product with a license fee based
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business model. To end user customers, we market this technology as complete appliance products (hardware servers, software, and storage
options) through our indirect sales channel under the Dot Hill brand.

We believe this technology will be able to address some substantial emerging storage management issues facing systems administrators in SMB
organizations worldwide. The AssuredUVS product line delivers the following:

� Simplified Unified Storage Management. The AssuredUVS provides the ability to create and manage virtual volumes for block
(SAN) and file (NAS) storage with complete storage ecosystem management using a unified set of management tools so IT
personnel can do more with the same resources.

� Storage Virtualization. The AssuredUVS provides a full set of virtualization tools for volume management, thin provisioning,
snapshots, replication, and tiered storage across a set of heterogeneous storage arrays.

� Business Continuity. The AssuredUVS delivers data protection through snapshots, virtual replicas and mirroring�both local and
remote. Our communications layer over WAN connections supports on a globally distributed basis the following functions including,
policy-based Recovery Point Objective, or RPO, and Recovery Time Objective, or RTO, quality of service.

� Scaling and Maximizing assets. The AssuredUVS offers support for existing and new storage arrays in a data center, eliminating the
need to replace existing storage systems. The technology allows non-disruptive data migration from existing storage volumes to new
virtual volumes and the ability to integrate existing storage volumes as proxy volumes without moving data.

Ultimately, we believe the AssuredUVS can simplify data center management, eliminate downtime and cut storage costs, enabling companies to
work faster, smarter and more cost effectively.

Stand Alone Storage Software

Through our acquisition of Ciprico�s RAIDCore assets in September 2008, we offer a high performance, feature rich, host-based RAID stack that
can be included as a key ingredient of an entry-level or mid-level enterprise class server built by OEMs or SIs. This product line, called
AssuredVRA, provides a cost effective solution for standard Windows and Linux servers that utilizes existing built in SATA or SAS I/O
capabilities of motherboards or simple storage I/O adapters to replace expensive dedicated hardware RAID adapter solutions.

Our Strategy

Our first objective is to return to, sustain and grow profitability through our core business of selling entry and mid level storage arrays through
OEMs and more recently through channel based OSPs. Second, we want to scale this core storage hardware business, taking advantage of the
operating leverage it affords, and capture an increasing share of the open systems storage solution market while maintaining reasonable profit
margins. Third, we want to leverage the foundation and customer and channel relationships provided by this core storage hardware business and
build a higher margin software business. We are placing more emphasis on selling higher gross margin products, which includes software,
appliance products, and hardware products through indirect sales channels.

Our strategy for the storage hardware business includes the following:

� Utilize indirect sales channels. We have adopted an indirect sales model to access end-user markets primarily through our OEM,
OSP, VAR and SI partners. This allows us to benefit from our channel partners� extensive direct and indirect distribution networks,
installed customer bases and greater sales, marketing and global service and support infrastructures. The costs associated with a
direct worldwide
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sales force are extensive. By leveraging the sales networks of our partners, we can manage our sales and marketing costs at much
lower levels. In addition, we encourage our partners to provide direct support and service to end-users.

� Focus on existing customers and develop new customer relationships. We have entered into OEM agreements with, HP, Lenovo,
Ericsson, Dell, Motorola, General Dynamics, Lockheed Martin, Tektronix, Samsung, NEC, Stratus, FTS and Xiotech. We intend to
focus on expanding our relationships with our existing customers and to continue seeking additional OEM relationships with other
industry leaders to sell current products and expand the number of products offered to these customers to enable them to address new
markets.

� Grow and extend technology leadership. We view our core competencies as the research, design and engineering of modular open
storage systems and data protection for enterprise servers. We believe that focused research and development on advanced, cost
effective storage technologies is critical to our ongoing success. We intend to continue to develop and integrate high-end features
into our products in order to offer more complete storage solutions and enhance our existing products to benefit our channel partners�
efforts to increase sales.

� Leverage our AssuredSAN architecture. We developed our AssuredSAN architecture as a foundational element of our AssuredSAN
modular storage arrays. This modular architecture allows us to quickly develop and bring to market new products based on this
foundation. We intend to focus and unify our development efforts on this approach, which we believe offers a competitive time to
market advantage to us. In particular, we intend to utilize our AssuredSAN products to continually extend the feature sets of both our
entry-level and midrange solutions and build a comprehensive set of software based features that offer our customers increased levels
of value and differentiation.

� Quickly adopt new standards. We strive to introduce products that are first to market. For example, in February 2010 we introduced
AssuredSAN 3000, the first entry level storage array with 8Gb Fibre Channel and Fibre Channel / iSCSI interfaces. Throughout
2010, we launched 6Gb SAS, 10Gb iSCSI, and four port 1Gb iSCSI interface options as well. We believe our highly modular
architecture is a proven platform with flexibility to continue to be first in the industry in many categories. In November 2010, we
launched the Dot Hill branded AssuredUVS which is a unified virtual storage solution now selling through reseller channels. In
addition, our RAIDCore enterprise RAID stack for Windows and Linux servers allow us to quickly adopt and migrate to next
generation Intel and AMD class server architectures due to its highly modular architecture and approach.

� Pursue strategic alliances, partnerships and acquisitions. We plan to continue to evaluate and selectively pursue strategic
acquisitions, alliances and partnerships and other strategic alternatives that are complementary to our business. We believe that
growth of the network storage market will create additional opportunities to expand our business. In some cases, we believe the most
efficient pursuit of these opportunities may be through partnerships and relationships that allow us to leverage our existing products,
core competencies and channels while capitalizing on products, technologies and channels that may be available through potential
strategic partners.

Our storage software business is in its introductory phase. Our strategy includes the following:

� Expand our total available market. With our acquisitions of RAIDCore assets in September 2008 and Cloverleaf in 2010, we intend
to expand our available market by extending our reach into server internal storage and entry-level NAS, as well as storage software
opportunities. We expect the recent acquisition of Cloverleaf could significantly increase our target market.

� Leverage existing customer relationships and sales channels described above. We initially plan to sell our standalone software
solutions to Tier 2 OEM customers and through our sales channels and subsequently to Tier 1 OEM customers.
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provisioning and extensive data replication capabilities including snapshots, volume copy, split mirroring, continuous data protection
as well as asynchronous and synchronous replication. We believe that we can introduce many of these software features to
entry-level and mid-market customers and compete effectively on a feature and total cost of ownership basis with our competitors in
this market.

Our Products

We design our family of open systems storage hardware and software products with the reliability, flexibility and performance necessary to meet
IT managers� needs for easily scalable cost effective solutions. We currently offer storage systems in FC, iSCSI, and SAS host interfaces which
include SSD, SAS and SATA drive technologies. We also offer enterprise class RAID software for industry standard Windows and Linux
servers, as well as storage management applications, which can manage any one or all of our storage system configurations. In addition,
performance enhancing and DMS software is sold bundled with our storage systems or licensed separately to OEM customers, including
AssuredSnap, AssuredCopy, AssuredRemote and RAIDar.

AssuredSAN. Our current product family based on our AssuredSAN architecture provides high performance and large disk array capacities for a
broad variety of environments. Our current mainstream 2000 and 3000 series of entry-level storage products and JBOD arrays are targeted
primarily at mainstream enterprise and SMB applications. Our AssuredSAN 5000 Series products have been distinguished by certification as
NEBS, Level 3 and meets carrier class standards for telecommunications equipment, including storage products. There are three levels of NEBS
specifications. The most rugged and reliable equipment is rated carrier-class NEBS Level 3. The NEBS standards mandate a battery of tests
designed to simulate the extreme conditions resulting from natural or man-made disasters and cover a range of product requirements for
operational continuity. Our AssuredSAN 5000 Series products are also MIL-STD-810F compliant. MIL-STD-810F is a military standard created
by the United States Government. It involves a range of tests used to measure the reliability of equipment in extreme conditions, including
physical impact, moisture, vibration and high and low temperatures. These standards address system ruggedness and reliability, which are
important requirements for end-users, particularly those in these telecommunications and government sectors.

We also offer AssuredSAN Modular Storage Architecture products focused on the incorporation of SAS/SATA drive technology with a variety
of front-end host interfaces. These products are focused on the general purpose market initially and introduce several technological
advancements including EcoStor� (elimination of batteries in a RAID cache management system) and SimulCache� (high-speed mirrored cache
coherency). We believe we were the first RAID vendor to offer mixed SAS, SATA or SSD disk drives in the same two unit high, 12
(2U/12) drive enclosure in a highly reliable storage system. With the introduction of the new 24 drive small form factor drive products (2U/24),
we believe we are also the first to offer such systems with full embedded RAID and data protection capability.

Software features available with our AssuredSAN products include the following:

� AssuredSnap. AssuredSnap is our DMS software that introduces point in time snapshot technology into the AssuredSAN product
family. AssuredSnap provides the ability to create point-in-time copies or backups of disk volumes with instant restoration of data to
any captured point in time snapshot. Since AssuredSnap only copies data that has changed to disk it can virtually eliminate backup
windows. The AssuredSnap implementation is not only fast, but also reduces the size of snapshots by storing only a single instance
of changed blocks. This technology is unique in the market and allows IT managers increased backup efficiency and flexibility.

� AssuredCopy. AssuredCopy is our DMS software that introduces data cloning or volume copy services into the AssuredSAN product
family. AssuredCopy leverages snapshot technology to create complete, physically independent copies of master or snapshot
volumes. Once complete, volume copies can be mounted to any host system for read-only or read-write access. As both a data
protection and a data
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management technology, AssuredCopy can be used to support applications such as backup and data recovery, data mining, decision
support, data distribution and migration, application development and test. AssuredCopy protects against accidental or malicious loss
or corruption of data, and provides additional protection against complete volume failure.

� AssuredRemote. AssuredRemote is our DMS software that introduces remote replication into the AssuredSAN product family.
AssuredRemote leverages snapshot technology and then transfers them to a paired array over either Fiber Channel or Ethernet to for
enhanced data protection and disaster recovery.

� RAIDar. RAIDar is a GUI used for configuring, monitoring, error reporting and running diagnostics for certain of our RAID
systems. Our OEM customers have the option of customizing their own GUI with the purchase of a customization tool kit. This tool
kit enables our OEM customers to private label the GUI quickly and cost efficiently. RAIDar 2.0 adds greater end-user ease of use
capability in the form of simple configuration wizards.

Software. We develop application software technologies and products that are complementary to our overall storage solutions. Our software
supports widely used open systems platforms, including Linux, Unix and Windows. Our software products include the following:

� AssuredVRA is a high performance, feature rich, host based RAID stack for Windows and Linux based enterprise servers. Our OEM
and SI customers typically integrate AssuredVRA as an ingredient of their entry-level Intel or AMD based server products. It has the
ability to replace a dedicated hardware RAID adapter in many applications by utilizing the built in disk I/O ports built into modern
server hardware. In most instances, AssuredVRA is private labeled and branded with the OEM�s own brand.

� AssuredUVS is a heterogeneous storage virtualization product that provides a multi-vendor storage solution for growing enterprise
and high performance computing needs. Providing both unified storage and advanced storage virtualization features, up to 2
petabyte, or PB, of storage can be managed and protected both locally and remotely, supporting both network attach server file and
SAN under one integrated storage management interface.

Sales and Marketing

Our hardware and software products and services are sold worldwide to facilitate network storage implementations in the entry level and
midrange market segments. Dot Hill branded products are sold primarily through distributors, VARs and OSPs while �blackbox� and
OEM-customized products are sold primarily through OEMs and federal contractors. Dot Hill utilizes these channels to reach end-user
customers that range in size from small businesses to government agencies and large multinational corporations. We maintain a sales and
marketing organization operating out of our office in Longmont, Colorado, with regional offices in Germany, Japan, the United Kingdom and
China as well as several smaller localized field sales offices throughout North America. Generally, our customers have no minimum purchase
requirements and have certain rights to extend, delay or cancel shipment of their orders without penalty.

OEMs

The majority of our products are currently sold through our OEM channel. Our OEM partners currently include, among others, HP, Lenovo,
Ericsson, Dell, Motorola, General Dynamics, Lockheed Martin, Tektronix, Samsung, NEC, Stratus, FTS and Xiotech. . We believe that our
product sales through these market leaders strengthen our credibility in the marketplace, validate our technology and enable us to sell our
products to a much broader customer base. OEMs generally resell our products under their own brand name and typically assume responsibility
for marketing, sales, service and support. Our OEM relationships allow us to sell into geographic or vertical markets where each OEM has
significant presence. Our agreements with our OEM partners do not contain any minimum purchase commitments, do not obligate our OEM
partners to purchase their
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storage solutions exclusively from us and may be terminated at any time upon notice from the applicable partners. In addition to expanding and
enhancing our relationships with certain of our OEM customers and other channel partners, we intend to seek additional OEM customers as a
part of our overall strategy. Sales to our OEM customers approximated 98% of our total net revenue in 2010. We expect sales to our OEM
customers to continue to represent the significant majority of our net revenue in 2011.

HP currently represents our most significant OEM partner. We began shipping products to HP in the fourth quarter of 2007. In January 2008, we
amended our agreement with HP to allow for sales of additional products to additional divisions within HP. Our products are primarily sold as
HP�s MSA 2000/P2000 product family. Sales to HP increased significantly during 2008 and increased again in 2009 primarily as a result of the
successful launch and market acceptance of the HP MSA 2000 products. HP launched its third generation product line, now called the P2000
product line, in February 2010. Sales to HP increased again in 2010 as we began selling our next generation host interfaces across the HP P2000
product line. Our agreement with HP does not contain any minimum purchase commitments. Sales to HP approximated 33% of our total net
revenue in 2008, 51% of our total net revenue in 2009 and 57% of our total net revenue in 2010. We expect sales to HP will continue to
represent a significant portion of our net revenue in 2011. We also expect sales to HP will represent a higher percentage of our total net revenue
in 2011.

NetApp was previously a significant OEM partner in recent periods. We previously designed and developed general purpose disk arrays for a
variety of products that were sold under private label by NetApp. In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with
NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to allow them to manufacture and sell on a royalty-free basis all of the products we previously
manufactured and sold to them beginning on or about December 1, 2010. As a result, we currently do not anticipate generating any additional
revenue from NetApp. Sales to NetApp approximated 23% of our total net revenue in 2008, 25% of our total net revenue in 2009 and 26% of
our total net revenue in 2010.

Oracle (formerly Sun Microsystems) was once a significant OEM partner, however, the products sold to Oracle have reached the end of their
lifecycle. As a result, we do not expect to generate significant net revenue from Oracle in future periods. Sales to Oracle approximated 25% of
our total net revenue in 2008, 4% of our total net revenue in 2009 and 0% of our total net revenue in 2010.

Indirect Channels

Most of our Dot Hill branded products including AssuredSAN and AssuredUVS are sold in conjunction with distributors, OSPs, VARs and SIs,
who work closely with our sales force to sell our products to end-users. Our indirect channel partners resell our products either under the Dot
Hill brand or as an unbranded �blackbox� configuration, and share responsibility with us for marketing, sales, service and support. We believe
indirect channel sales represent an attractive growth opportunity and intend to expand the scope of our indirect channel sales efforts by
continuing to actively pursue additional indirect channel partners, both domestically and internationally.

Marketing

We support our indirect and OEM channels with a broad array of marketing programs designed to promote our products and technology
leadership, attract additional channel partners and generate end-user demand. Our product marketing team focuses on product strategy, product
requirements, the new product introduction process, product messaging, demand assessment and competitive analysis. The product marketing
team also ensures that product development activities, product launches, channel marketing program activities and ongoing demand and supply
planning occur on a well-managed, timely basis in coordination with our development, manufacturing and sales groups, as well as our sales
channel partners. The groups work closely with our sales and research and development groups to align our product development roadmap to
meet key customer and channel technology requirements.
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Customer Service and Support

We recognize that providing comprehensive, proactive and responsive support is essential to maintaining and growing customer satisfaction,
fostering customer loyalty and securing repeat business. We provide comprehensive 24 hours a day, seven days a week, 365 days a year global
customer service and support, either directly or through third-party service providers, aimed at simplifying installation, minimizing usage
problems, maximizing system availability and streamlining administration. Through direct and third-party service providers, we maintain a
global network of professional engineers and technicians who provide telephonic technical support in various languages from strategically
located global response centers on a 24-hour, seven-day basis. In addition, we have the ability to provide four hour on-site service response per
contract on a global basis. We also offer all of our customers� access to SANsolve, our web-hosted interactive support knowledge base that gives
our customers the ability to find answers to technical questions through our Customer Resource Center as well as initiate and track all support
requests.

We have also taken steps to better align our service and support structure with our indirect sales model, including the following:

� Collaborated with OEMs to provide support and service directly to end-users. For example, HP and other OEMs provide all but the
highest level of support and service to their end-user customers.

� Identified key areas for further development such as product certification/recertification training for our channel partners. In addition,
we offered expanded array support services for a fee through our professional services offerings.

� Established additional authorized service providers to provide localized service support in certain Asia and European locations. We
continue to capitalize on a growing population of product whose initial warranty expired by providing cost effective extended
warranty and out-of-warranty repair services.

We plan to expand our service offerings, including onsite support contracts and professional services for our AssuredUVS products. These
services will be performed either directly by us, or through the increased use of third-party service providers.

Research and Development

Our research and development team has been focused on developing innovative storage products, storage virtualization software, storage
management software, storage management application software for the open systems market and the integration of our storage controller
technology into our designed storage systems. In addition, we have been working throughout 2010 to integrate the AssuredUVS software
acquired from Cloverleaf in January 2010. We have a history of industry firsts, including the first successfully commercialized hot-swappable
SCSI disk array and RAID storage system for the UNIX environment and the first NEBS Level 3 certified and MIL-STD-810F tested line of
storage systems. We were first to market and have patented SimulCache which increases the write performance in a dual controller array. We
were first to market and have patented EcoStor into our AssuredSAN products, which eliminate batteries in the storage system, hence decreasing
service costs while ensuring permanent data integrity in the event of power failure. We also believe that we were one of the first in the industry
to be able to reliably intermix SAS and SATA drives in the same storage system without caveat. This has enabled us to build products that can
optimize capacity and performance applications within the same storage array. We recently launched the first external RAID product using 24
2.5� drives in a two unit high chassis form factor. We are focused on continuously developing products that meet changing customer needs and
anticipating and proactively responding to highly evolving technology in a timely and cost-effective manner. We also generally design and
develop our products to have a modular architecture that can be scaled to meet customer needs and modified to respond to technological
developments in the open systems computing environment across product lines. We are actively working on next generation technologies in both
storage hardware protocols and storage software applications. Our total research and development expenses were $28.7 million in 2008, $28.1
million in 2009 and $31.6 million in 2010.
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Our intellectual property, or IP, portfolio is focused on data storage security, flexibility/scalability, efficiency, environmental/cooling,
modularity/serviceability, high speed, redundancy and high reliability. We are also focused on protecting our business with both the quality of
our IP portfolio and quantity, in terms of revenue protection, both of which are considered key processes for patent strength.

Our areas of expertise include Linux, Unix and Windows driver and system software design, storage virtualization software, SAN storage
resource management software design, storage system design and integration, RAID controller design and technology, RAID firmware
development, data management software development, storage enclosure design and high-speed data interface design. We are currently focusing
development efforts on our next-generation family of storage systems and on our software products. Projects include the launch of additional
members of the AssuredSAN family of systems, improvements to our storage software offerings and next generation high-speed solutions that
will take advantage of the latest transports and technologies.

Our research and development activities are directed by individuals with significant expertise and industry experience. We have four worldwide
technology development centers located in Longmont, Colorado, Minneapolis, Minnesota, Hyderabad, India, and Petach Tiqwa, Israel due to our
recent acquisition of Cloverleaf in 2010. The Minneapolis development center focuses on AssuredVRA development and the Petach Tiqwa
development center focuses on AssuredUVS products.

Manufacturing and Suppliers

We outsource substantially all of our manufacturing to third-party manufacturers in order to reduce sales cycle times and manufacturing
infrastructure, enhance working capital and improve margins by taking advantage of the third parties� manufacturing and procurement economies
of scale. In September 2008, we entered into a manufacturing agreement with Foxconn. Under the terms of the agreement, Foxconn supplies us
with manufacturing, assembly and test services from its facilities in China and final integration services including final assembly, testing and
configure-to-order services, through its worldwide facilities. The agreement provides for an initial three-year term that is automatically renewed
at the end of such three-year term for additional one-year terms unless and until the agreement is terminated by either party. Foxconn began
manufacturing products for us in July 2009 and we began shipping products for general availability under the Foxconn agreement during the
second half of 2009. The majority of our products sold in 2010 were manufactured by Foxconn. We expect Foxconn to manufacture
substantially all of our products in 2011.

We have also historically outsourced our manufacturing to Flextronics, MiTAC and SYNNEX. We do not expect to outsource much of our
manufacturing to Flextronics, SYNNEX or MiTAC in 2011.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends significantly upon our proprietary technology. We have received registered trademark protection for the marks SANnet(R) ,
SANpath(R), SANscape(R) , Stratis(R) , Dot Hill(R) , Dot Hill Systems(R) and the Dot Hill logo. Other trademark registrations are in process. We
have attempted to protect our intellectual property rights primarily through copyrights, trade secrets, employee and third party nondisclosure
agreements and other measures. We have registered trademarks and will continue to evaluate the registration of additional trademarks as
appropriate. We claim common law protection for, and may seek to register, other trademarks. In addition, we generally enter into
confidentiality agreements with our employees and with key vendors and suppliers.

As of December 31, 2010, we had been awarded a total of 76 United States patents, 19 of which were awarded in 2010. 68 of these patents
generally cover RAID controller and SAN-related technology. In addition, as of December 31, 2010 we had 37 filed United States patent
applications pending approval. The patents covering our core technologies expire from 2014 to 2032. If we are unable to protect our intellectual
property or infringe intellectual property of a third party, our operating results could be harmed.
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We also license certain technology from third parties and pay royalties on products shipped that incorporate such technology.

Competition

The storage market is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapidly changing technology. For our AssuredSAN storage hardware
products, we compete primarily against independent storage system suppliers, including EMC Corp., or EMC, Hitachi Data Systems Corp., or
Hitachi, Engenio Information Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of LSI Logic Corp., or LSI, Infortrend, Promise Technology, Inc, or Promise, and
Xyratex Ltd., or Xyratex. We also compete with traditional suppliers of computer systems, including IBM, Oracle, Dell and HP, which market
storage systems as well as other computer products. For our AssuredVRA products we compete primarily with LSI and Intel Corporation, or
Intel, and for our AssuredUVS products we compete primarily with Falconstor Software Inc., or Falconstor, and Compellent Technologies, Inc,
or Compellent, which was recently acquired by Dell.

Many of our existing and potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition and substantially greater financial,
technical, sales, marketing and other resources than we do. As a result, they may have more advanced technology, larger distribution channels,
stronger brand names, better customer service and access to more customers than we do. Other large companies with significant resources could
become direct competitors, either through acquiring a competitor or through internal efforts. Additionally, a number of public and privately held
companies are currently attempting to enter the storage market, some of which may become significant competitors in the future. In the future, it
is conceivable that we could compete with some of the original design manufacturers, one of whom is currently our manufacturing partner, as
they develop expertise in chassis design and power and cooling technologies.

We believe the principal competitive factors in the hardware storage systems and software storage solutions markets are:

� product performance, features, scalability and reliability;

� price;

� product breadth;

� timeliness of new product introductions;

� brand reputation;

� interoperability and ease of management; and

� responsiveness to OEMs and customer support.
We believe that we compete favorably in several of these categories. To remain competitive, we believe we must invest significant resources in
developing new products, enhancing our current products and maintaining high quality standards and customer satisfaction.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, we had 293 full-time employees, of whom 155 were engaged in research and development, 47 in sales and marketing,
39 in manufacturing, 37 in general management and administration and 15 in customer service and support. We have not had a work stoppage
among our employees and none of our employees are represented under collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relations with our
employees to be good.

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 24



16

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 25



Table of Contents

Named Executive Officers and Key Employees of the Registrant

Name Age Position

Officer or

Key Employee Since
Dana W. Kammersgard(2) 55 Chief Executive Officer and President August 1984(1)
Hanif I. Jamal(2) 50 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer,

Treasurer and Corporate Secretary
July 2006

James Kuenzel(3) 57 Senior Vice President of Engineering February 2006
Ernest Hafersat(3) 61 Senior Vice President of Worldwide Manufacturing,

Operations and Supply Base Management
March 2008

(1) In 1999, Artecon and Box Hill merged to form Dot Hill. Artecon was founded in 1984 and Mr. Kammersgard was an officer of Artecon
from its inception until the merger, and has been an officer of Dot Hill since that date.

(2) Named Executive Officers.

(3) Key employees.
All officers are elected by our board of directors and serve at the pleasure of our board of directors as provided in our bylaws.

Dana W. Kammersgard has served as our President since August 2004. In March 2006, Mr. Kammersgard was appointed as our Chief Executive
Officer and President. From August 1999 to August 2004, Mr. Kammersgard served as our Chief Technical Officer. Mr. Kammersgard was a
founder of Artecon and served as a director from its inception in 1984 until the merger of Box Hill and Artecon in August 1999. At Artecon,
Mr. Kammersgard served in various positions since 1984, including Secretary and Senior Vice President of Engineering from March 1998 until
August 1999 and as Vice President of Sales and Marketing from March 1997 until March 1998. Prior to co-founding Artecon, Mr. Kammersgard
was the director of software development at CALMA, a division of General Electric Company. Mr. Kammersgard holds a B.A. in Chemistry
from the University of California, San Diego.

Hanif I. Jamal has served as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary since July 2006. Prior to
joining Dot Hill, Mr. Jamal served as Vice President and Corporate Treasurer for Gateway Inc. from 2004 to 2006. Prior to joining Gateway in
2002, Mr. Jamal served in a number of leadership positions over 17 years within Hewlett- Packard Company in the customer financing division,
HP Technology Finance. Mr. Jamal led HP�s customer financing operations in North America, Latin America and Europe and was also Vice
President and General Manager for HP�s Commercial and Consumer Financing Division. In 1998, he established Hewlett-Packard International
Bank in Dublin, Ireland, and served as Managing Director through 2000. Jamal holds an MBA from Stanford Graduate School of Business and a
Bachelor of Science degree, with Honors, in Management Sciences from the University of Manchester Institute of Science and Technology in
the United Kingdom.

James Kuenzel has served as our Senior Vice President of Engineering since February 2006. Mr. Kuenzel joined Dot Hill after leaving Maranti
Networks Inc. where he began his tenure in 2002 as Vice President of Engineering and then was appointed to President and Chief Operating
Officer. Mr. Kuenzel has also held Vice President of Engineering positions at McData Corporation, Cabletron Systems, Inc. and Digital
Equipment Corporation. Mr. Kuenzel attended Georgetown University Extension, University of Wisconsin Extension, and holds an A.A. in
Electronics from Philco Ford Technical Institute.

Ernest Hafersat has served as our Senior Vice President of Worldwide Manufacturing, Operations and Supply Base Management since
November 2008 and previously served as our Vice President of Worldwide
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Manufacturing Operations and Supply Base Management since March 31, 2008. Mr. Hafersat joined Dot Hill after leaving Western Digital
Corporation where he held senior level positions in operations and engineering from 2005 to 2008. Prior to Western Digital, Mr. Hafersat was
Vice President, Manufacturing Operations & Program Management for Carrier Access Corp. Previous positions include Vice President,
Operations for Vari-l Corp., Vice President/ GM at Read-Rite Corp.- Philippines, Senior Director, Engineering/ NPI at Maxtor Corp. and
Director of Engineering at Hyundai Semiconductor-Korea. Mr. Hafersat has overseen operations, supply base management, global supplier
quality and engineering for both domestic and international multi-site facilities. His international experience includes China, Pacific Rim
countries, Mexico and Costa Rica. Mr. Hafersat has a BSIE/BSEE from Waterbury State Technical University, and attended University of
Hartford and Rennsslaer Polytechnic Institute with credits toward an MBA.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors
The following sets forth risk factors that may affect our future results. Our business, results of operations and financial condition may be
materially and adversely affected due to any of the following risks. We face risks described but not limited to those detailed below. Additional
risks we are not presently aware of or that we currently believe are immaterial may also impair our business operations. The trading price of
our common stock could decline due to any of these risks. In assessing these risks, you should also refer to the other information contained or
incorporated by reference in this annual report on Form 10-K, including our financial statements and related notes.

We are dependent on sales to a relatively small number of customers and a disruption in sales to any one of these customers could materially
harm our financial results.

Our business is highly dependent on a limited number of customers. For example, sales to HP accounted for 33% of our net revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2008, 51% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 57% of our net revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2010. In addition, sales to NetApp accounted for 23% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008, 25% of our net
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2009 and 26% of our net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010. We expect HP will represent
greater than 10% of our overall net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2011. If our relationships with HP or certain of our other customers
were disrupted or declined significantly, we would lose a substantial portion of our anticipated net revenue and our business could be materially
harmed. We cannot guarantee that our relationship with HP or our other customers will expand or not otherwise be disrupted.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to allow them
to manufacture and sell on a royalty-free basis all of the products we previously manufactured and sold to them beginning on or about
December 1, 2010. As a result, we currently do not anticipate generating any additional revenue from NetApp. We expect to generate additional
revenue from our indirect channel sales, from sales of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products and from potential new OEM customers to
replace the revenue, and more importantly, the gross profit lost as a result of amending our agreement with NetApp. However, if we are unable
to generate sufficient gross profit from these sources to largely replace the gross profit previously associated with NetApp, our financial results
could be harmed.

Factors that could influence our relationship with our significant customers and other potential new customers include:

� our ability to maintain our products at prices that are competitive with those of our competitors;

� our ability to maintain quality levels for our products sufficient to meet the expectations of our customers;

� our ability to produce, ship and deliver a sufficient quantity of our products in a timely manner to meet the needs of our customers;

� our ability to continue to develop and launch new products that our customers feel meet their needs and requirements, with respect to
cost, timeliness, features, performance and other factors;

� our ability to provide timely, responsive and accurate customer support to our customers; and

� the ability of our customers to effectively deliver, market and increase sales of their own solutions based on our products.
Product recalls, epidemic failures, post-manufacture repairs of our products, liability claims and associated costs could harm our reputation,
divert resources, reduce sales and increase costs and could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition.

Our new integrated storage systems and newly acquired products obtained in the Cloverleaf acquisition, as well as our legacy products, may
contain undetected errors, or failures that become epidemic failures, which may
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be discovered after shipment, resulting in a loss of net revenue, an increase in costs to rework or replace failed products, product liability claims,
a tarnished reputation, a loss of customers, or a loss or delay in market acceptance of our products, any of which could harm or disrupt our
business. Product failures or recalls could be the result of components purchased from our suppliers not meeting the required specifications or
containing undetected quality errors and manufacturing defects or from our own design deficiencies. In 2009 and 2010, we experienced quality
issues associated with certain power supply devices provided by one of our component suppliers that required us to make substantial repairs and
provide replacement parts. Our component supplier has agreed to reimburse us for the significant majority of costs of the replacement parts and
related expenses. Although our component supplier has reimbursed us or committed to reimburse us for the significant majority of all of our
costs incurred through December 31, 2010, there could be significant additional costs passed onto us by our customers. To the extent that our
customers provide us with claims for reimbursement for product quality issues caused by this component supplier, we believe that our
component supplier is contractually obligated to reimburse us for any such costs. An estimate as to the possible amount of claims or range of
claims that our customers may present to us related to these product quality issues cannot be made as of December 31, 2010. To the extent that
our component supplier cannot or does not continue to reimburse us for the significant majority of all expenses incurred by us or our customers
we could incur material amounts of warranty claims and expenses.

Even if the errors are detected before shipment, such errors could result in the halting of production, delay of shipments, recovery costs, loss of
goodwill, tarnishment of reputation and/or a substantial decrease in net revenue. Our standard warranty provides that if our systems do not
function to published specifications, we will repair or replace the defective component or system without charge generally for a period of
approximately three years. We generally extend to our customers the warranties provided to us by our suppliers and, accordingly, the majority of
our warranty obligations to customers are intended to be covered by corresponding supplier warranties. There can be no assurance that our
suppliers will continue to provide such warranties to us in the future or that our warranty obligations to our customers will be covered by
corresponding warranties from our suppliers, which could have a material adverse effect on our operating results and financial
condition. Significant warranty costs could decrease our gross margin and negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations. In addition, defects in our products could result in our customers claiming property damages, consequential damages, or bodily
injury, which could also result in our loss of customers and goodwill. There can be no assurance that our customers will not assert claims that
our products have failed to meet agreed-to specifications or that they have sustained injuries from our products, and we may be subject to
lawsuits relating to these claims. There is a risk that these claims or liabilities may exceed, or fall outside of the scope of our insurance coverage.
Significant claims exceeding our expected warranty provisions could distract management�s attention from operating our business and, if
successful, result in material claims against us that might not be covered by our insurance.

Our recent acquisition of Cloverleaf may not be successfully integrated or produce the results we anticipate.

In January 2010, we acquired Cloverleaf, a privately held software company, based primarily in Israel. The Cloverleaf acquisition provided us
with a new team of software development and other professionals. Cloverleaf�s products provide heterogeneous storage virtualization and unified
storage technologies that can simplify data center management, eliminate downtime and reduce storage costs. The Cloverleaf Intelligent Storage
Networking System�iSN� trade name is an intelligent, network resident, storage network management system that provides a combination of
benefits, features and capabilities targeted to meet the demands of mid to large-sized data centers. Cloverleaf was our first acquisition involving
significant international operations. We expect that the integration of Cloverleaf�s operations with our own will be a complex, time-consuming
and costly process involving typical acquisition risks and related challenges, some of which are discussed below:

� operating as a larger combined company with operations in Israel, where we have limited operational experience;

� managing geographically dispersed personnel with diverse cultural backgrounds and organizational structures;
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� the greater cash management, exchange rate, legal and income taxation risks associated with the combined company�s new
multinational character and the movement of cash between Dot Hill and its domestic and foreign subsidiaries;

� assessing and maintaining the combined company�s internal control over financial reporting and disclosure controls and procedures as
required by U.S. securities laws;

� diversion of management�s attention from normal daily operations of our business;

� potential incompatibility of business cultures and/or loss of key personnel;

� difficulties in integrating the personnel, operations, technology or products and service offerings of Cloverleaf;

� products derived from this acquisition may not meet the needs of customers or their expectations with respect to reliability;

� insufficient net revenue to offset increased expenses associated with the Cloverleaf acquisition;

� increased professional advisor fees related to the new profile of the combined company;

� the costs and effects of the purchase accounting associated with this acquisition;

� the possibility that we may incur unanticipated expenses in connection with this transaction or be required to expend material sums
on potential contingent intellectual property, tax, environmental or other liabilities associated with Cloverleaf�s prior operations or
facilities;

� increased difficulty in financial forecasting due to our limited familiarity with Cloverleaf�s operations, customers and markets or their
impact on the overall results of operations of the combined company;

� our ability to sell and support installations of the acquired Cloverleaf products;

� market and customer receptivity to the acquired Cloverleaf products; and

� the ability of our open storage partners to sell and support the acquired Cloverleaf products.
In addition, the accounting treatment for the Cloverleaf acquisition resulted in significant amortizable intangible assets, which when amortized
negatively affects our consolidated results of operations. The accounting treatment for the Cloverleaf acquisition also resulted in significant
goodwill, which, if impaired, will negatively affect our consolidated results of operations.

Failure to successfully address one or more of the above risks may result in unanticipated liabilities and cash outlays, lower than expected net
revenue, losses from operations, failure to realize any of the expected benefits of the acquisition, and potentially related declines in our stock
price.
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Our inability to grow and manage our indirect sales channel may significantly impact our ability to increase net revenue, gross margin and
operating income.

We have recently expanded our indirect sales model to access end-user markets primarily through our distributors, VARs and OSPs and are
investing significant monetary and human resources in order to grow this indirect sales channel. If we cannot successfully identify, manage,
develop, and generate sufficient net revenue through our indirect sales channel, our business could be harmed. In addition, even if we are able to
grow our indirect sales channel, managing the interaction of our OEMs�, distributors�, VARs� and OSPs� efforts to reach various potential customer
segments for our products and services is a complex process. Moreover, since each channel method has distinct risks and gross margins, our
failure to implement the most advantageous balance in the delivery model for our products and services could adversely affect our net revenue
and gross margin and our profitability.
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Recent turmoil in the global economy, credit markets and the financial services industry may negatively impact our net revenue, access to
capital, our customers� access to capital and ability to pay for their purchases in a timely manner, and our suppliers� access to capital and
ability to provide us with goods and timely delivery, or willingness to provide credit terms to us.

The current global economic condition could continue to affect the demand for our products and negatively impact our net revenue and
operating profit. We are unable to predict changes in general macroeconomic conditions and when, or if, global IT spending rates will be
affected and to what degree they will be impacted. Furthermore, even if IT spending rates increase, we cannot be certain that the market for
external storage solutions will be positively impacted. If there are future reductions in either domestic or international IT spending rates, or if IT
spending rates do not increase, our net revenue, operating results and financial condition may be adversely affected. In addition, the global
economic condition could also adversely impact our customers, and/or their customers, ability to finance the purchase of storage systems from
us or our suppliers� ability to provide us with product, any of which may negatively impact our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our smaller customers may not be as well capitalized as, nor do they have the financial resources of, our larger customers. In addition, sales to
all our customers are typically made on credit without collateral. There is a risk that customers will not pay, or that payment may be delayed,
because of their liquidity constraints, or because they are awaiting payment from their customers, or other factors beyond our control, which
could increase our exposure to losses from bad debts, or increase accounts receivable, and thus reduce cash.

Our third-party manufacturers rely on other third parties to supply key components of our storage products. Some of these components are
available only from one or limited sources in the quantities and quality we require. Should any of the component suppliers cease to operate due
to current economic conditions or otherwise, we would have to qualify and locate alternative suppliers. We estimate that replacing key
components we currently use in our products with those of another supplier could involve several months of hardware and software
modification, which could significantly harm our ability to meet our customers� orders for our products, damage our customer relationships and
result in a loss of sales.

Our manufacturing suppliers provide us with credit terms that have in some cases been negotiated and documented in our manufacturing
agreements. The credit terms we receive from these suppliers vary amongst our manufacturing partners but they all provide for adequate credit
limits and credit terms. Should any of our manufacturing partners reduce our credit limits or shorten payment terms, due to their inability to
purchase credit insurance or due to uncertainty regarding our financial position, our cash resources and working capital could be significantly
impacted.

Our contracts with our customers do not include minimum purchase requirements and are not exclusive, and we cannot assure you that our
relationship with these customers will not be terminated or will generate significant sales.

None of our contracts with our existing customers, including HP, contain minimum purchase commitments and our customers may cancel
purchase orders at any time, cease making purchases or elect not to renew the applicable contract upon the expiration of the current term.
Consequently, our customers generally order only through written purchase orders. Further, we do not expect that future contracts with
customers, if any, will include any minimum purchase commitments. Changes in the timing, or volume of purchases by our major customers,
could result in lower net revenue. For example, we cannot be certain that our sales to any of our customers will continue at historical levels or
will reach expected levels. In addition, our existing contracts do not require our customers to purchase our products exclusively or on a
preferential basis over the products of any of our competitors. Consequently, to the extent they are not sole sourced, our customers may sell the
products of our competitors. The decision by any of our customers to cancel purchase orders, cease making purchases or terminate their
respective contracts could cause our net revenue to decline substantially, and our business, financial condition and results of operations could be
significantly harmed.
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We sell on a purchase order basis, making us subject to uncertainties and variability in demand by our customers, and our component
suppliers may make obsolete certain components we incorporate into our products, either of which could decrease net revenue and adversely
affect our operating results.

We sell to our customers on a purchase order basis rather than pursuant to long-term contracts or contracts with minimum purchase
requirements. Consequently, our sales are subject to demand variability by our customers. The level and timing of orders placed by our
customers vary for a variety of reasons, including seasonal buying by end-users, the introduction of new technologies and general economic
conditions. Customers submitting a purchase order may cancel, reduce or delay their orders. If we are unable to anticipate and respond to the
demands of our customers, we may lose customers because we have an inadequate supply of products, or we may have excess inventory which
may have to be sold in the open market at a substantial discount, if at all possible, either of which may harm our business, financial position and
operating results.

In addition, there are occasions when some of our component suppliers make obsolete certain components that we incorporate into our products.
In these situations we may be required to purchase such components on a �last time buy� basis, based on our forecasts of customer demand. If we
incorrectly forecast customer demand or if our customers over or under forecast demand, we may have an inadequate supply of products, or we
may have excess inventory which may have to be sold in the open market at a substantial discount, if at all possible, either of which may harm
our business, financial position and operating results.

Our sales cycle varies substantially from customer to customer and future net revenue in any period may be lower than our historical net
revenue or forecasts.

Our sales are difficult to forecast because the open systems storage market is rapidly evolving and our sales cycle varies substantially from
customer to customer. Customer orders for our products can range in value from a few thousand dollars to over a million dollars. The length of
time between initial contact with a potential customer and the sale of our product may last from 6 to 36 months. This is particularly true during
times of economic slowdown and when selling products that require complex installations.

Additional factors that may extend our sales cycle, particularly orders for new products, include:

� the amount of time needed for technical evaluations by customers;

� customers� budget constraints and changes to customers� budgets during the course of the sales cycle;

� customers� internal review and testing procedures;

� our engineering work necessary to integrate a storage solution with a customer�s system;

� the complexity of technical challenges that need to be overcome during the development, testing and/or qualification
process for new products and/or new customers;

� meeting unique customer specifications and requirements; and

� difficulties by our customers in integrating our products and technologies into their own products.
Our net revenue is difficult for us to predict since it is directly affected by the timing of large orders. We may ship products representing a
significant portion of our net revenue for a quarter during the last month of that quarter. In addition, our expense levels are based, in part, on our
expectations as to future sales. As a result, if sales levels are below expectations, our operating results may be disproportionately affected. We
cannot assure you that our sales will not decline in future periods.
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The open systems storage market is rapidly changing and we may be unable to keep pace with or properly prepare for the effects of those
changes and if we fail to develop and market new software and hardware products that meet customer requirements, our business will be
harmed.

The open systems data storage market in which we operate is characterized by rapid technological change, frequent new product introductions,
new interface protocol, evolving industry standards and consolidation among
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our competitors, suppliers and customers. Customer preferences in this market are difficult to predict and changes in those preferences and the
introduction of new products by our competitors, new entrants into the open systems storage market, or us could render our existing products
obsolete or uncompetitive. Our success will depend upon our ability to address the increasingly sophisticated needs of customers, to enhance
existing products, and to develop and introduce on a timely basis, new competitive products, including new software and hardware, and
enhancements to existing software and hardware that keep pace with technological developments and emerging industry standards. If we cannot
successfully identify, manage, develop, manufacture or market product enhancements or new products, our business will be harmed. In addition,
consolidation among our competitors, suppliers and customers may harm our business by increasing the resources of our competitors, reducing
the number of suppliers available to us for our product components and increasing competition for customers by reducing the number of
customer-purchasing decisions.

We believe that to remain competitive, we will need to continue to develop new hardware and software products, which will require a significant
investment in new product development. Our competitors and new market participants may be developing alternative technologies, which may
adversely affect the market acceptance of our products. If alternative technologies and interface protocols are adopted by the industry that we
have not incorporated into our products, we may become uncompetitive and not have product offerings for select market segments. Even if our
new products are developed on time, we may not be able to manufacture them at competitive prices or in sufficient volumes.

We may not be able to reduce expenses timely in response to any shortfalls in net revenue or gross margin.

We primarily sell to HP and thus do not need to make substantial incremental investments in sales and marketing to generate demand for our
products to our largest customer. Additionally we outsource substantially all of our manufacturing to very large contract manufacturing partners
in Asia. Hence, there is little incremental cost required to increase our production capacity. Furthermore, we have an adopted modular
architecture to our storage systems products and consequently if our customers do not require substantial customization, we are able to launch
products based on existing product platforms for new OEMs or channel partners at modest incremental expenditures.

In the past we have taken and may have to take further measures to reduce expenses if net revenue or gross margins decline and we experience
greater operating losses or do not achieve profitable results. A number of factors could preclude us from successfully bringing variable costs and
expenses in line with our net revenue, such as the fact that our variable expense levels are based in part on our expectations as to future sales.
This limits our ability to reduce expenses quickly in response to any shortfalls in net revenue or gross margin. Consequently, if net revenue does
not generate enough gross margin to cover operating expenses, our operating results may be negatively affected.

The market for storage products is intensely competitive and subject to substantial pricing pressure that may harm our net revenue, gross
margin and operating results.

The storage market is intensely competitive and is characterized by rapidly changing technology. For our AssuredSAN storage hardware
products, we compete primarily against independent storage system suppliers, including EMC Corp., or EMC, Hitachi Data Systems Corp., or
Hitachi, Engenio Information Technologies, Inc., a subsidiary of LSI Logic Corp., or LSI, Infortrend, and Xyratex Ltd., or Xyratex. We also
compete with traditional suppliers of computer systems, including IBM, Oracle, Dell and HP, which market storage systems as well as other
computer products. For our AssuredVRA products we compete primarily with LSI and Intel, and for our AssuredUVS products we compete
primarily with Falconstor Software Inc., or Falconstor and Compellent, which was recently acquired by Dell. Future competitors could include
original design manufacturers and contract manufacturers, some of whom we partner with today.
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Many of our existing and potential competitors have longer operating histories, greater name recognition and substantially greater financial,
technical, sales, marketing and other resources than we do. As a result, they may have more advanced technology, larger distribution channels,
stronger brand names, better customer service and access to more customers than we do. Other large companies with significant resources could
become direct competitors, either through acquiring a competitor or through internal efforts. Additionally, a number of public and privately held
companies are currently attempting to enter the storage market, some of which may become significant competitors in the future. In the future, it
is conceivable that we could compete with some of the original design manufacturers, one of whom is currently our manufacturing partner, as
they develop expertise in chassis design and power and cooling technologies.

We could also lose current or future business to certain of our suppliers or manufacturers, some of which directly and indirectly compete with
us. Currently, we leverage our supply and manufacturing relationships to provide substantially all of our products. Our suppliers and
manufacturers are very familiar with the specific attributes of our products and may be able to provide our customers with similar products.

We also expect that competition will increase as a result of industry consolidation and the creation of companies with new, innovative product
offerings. Current and potential competitors have established or may establish cooperative relationships among themselves or with third parties
to increase the ability of their products to address the needs of our prospective customers.

Accordingly, it is possible that new competitors, or alliances among competitors, may emerge and rapidly acquire significant market share.
Increased competition is likely to result in price reductions, and may reduce operating margins and create a potential loss of market share, any of
which could harm our business. We believe that the principal competitive factors affecting the storage systems market include: performance,
features, scalability and reliability; price; product breadth; product availability and quality; timeliness of new product introductions;
interoperability; and ease of management.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully incorporate these factors into our products and compete against current or future
competitors or that competitive pressures we face will not harm our business. If we are unable to cost effectively develop and market products to
compete with the products of competitors, our business will be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if major customers who are also
competitors cease purchasing our products in order to concentrate on sales of their own products, our business will be harmed.

Additional pricing pressures are due, in part, to continuing decreases in component prices, such as those of disks, memory, semiconductors and
RAID controllers. Decreases in component prices are typically passed on to customers by storage companies through a continuing decrease in
the price of storage hardware systems.

Pricing pressures could also result when we cannot pass increased material costs onto our customers. For example, if fuel prices were to increase
significantly again, this could result in higher steel and freight costs which we may not be able to pass onto our customers.

Pricing pressures also exist from our significant customers that may attempt to change the terms, including pricing and payment terms of their
agreements, with us. As our customers are pressured to reduce prices as a result of competitive factors, we may be required to contractually, or
otherwise, commit to price reductions for our products prior to determining if we can implement corresponding cost reductions. If we are unable
to achieve such cost reductions, or are unable to pass along cost increases to our customers, and have to reduce the pricing of our products, our
gross margin may be negatively impacted which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our inability to lower product costs or changes in the mix of products we sell may significantly impact our gross margin and results of
operations.

Our gross margin is determined in large part based on our contract manufacturing costs, our component costs, the timing and magnitude of
product cost reductions, and our ability to include RAID controllers and value
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added features into our products, such as DMS, as well as the prices at which we sell our products. The amount of revenue recognized from
software and service sales and the relative mix of such sales in comparison to sales of our other products will also impact our gross margin, as
the gross margin on sales of software and services is higher than that of our other products. If we are unable to lower production costs to be
consistent with our projections or if we experience any decline in selling prices, our gross margin and results of operations may suffer. Some of
the new products we are currently shipping or expect to begin shipping are in the early stages of their lifecycle. Our historical experience
indicates that gross margin on new products are low initially and increase over time as a result of maturing manufacturing processes, component
cost reductions and re-engineering the products to reduce costs. If we fail to achieve these improvements, our gross margin will be negatively
impacted and our business, financial condition and results of operations could be significantly harmed.

In addition, we typically plan our production and inventory levels based on internal forecasts of customer demand, which is highly unpredictable
and can fluctuate substantially. Our customer�s forecasts have not historically demonstrated a high degree of accuracy. From time to time, in
response to anticipated long lead times to obtain inventory and materials from our outside suppliers, we may order materials in advance of
anticipated customer demand. This advance ordering may result in excess inventory levels or unanticipated inventory write-downs due to
expected orders that fail to materialize.

Additional factors which could adversely impact gross margin dollars and gross margin percentage include:

� changes in the mix of products we sell to our customers;

� increased price competition;

� introduction of new products by us or our competitors, including products with price performance advantages;

� our inability to reduce production or component costs;

� entry into new markets or the acquisition of new customers;

� sales discounts and marketing development funds;

� increases in material or labor costs;

� excess inventory, inventory shrinkages and losses and inventory holding charges;

� the timing of purchase price variances resulting from reductions in component costs purchased on our behalf by our contract
manufacturers or owned by us in inventory versus the original cost of those components;

� increased warranty costs and costs associated with any potential future product quality and product defect issues;

� our inability to sell our higher performance products, or our software products and our services;
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� component shortages which can result in expedite fees, overtime or increased use of air freight; and

� increased freight costs resulting from higher fuel prices, or from the need to expedite shipments of components to our contract
manufacturers or finished goods to some of our customers and their hub locations.

Our customers may have very aggressive product launch and ramp schedules and our efforts to accommodate these schedules may divert our
management�s attention, cause component shortages and force us to allocate products across many customers, all of which could harm our
customer relations.

Our efforts to accommodate our customers� aggressive launch and ramp schedules can divert management�s attention from the rest of our business
and force us to allocate product volumes across many customers due to component shortages, all of which could harm our relations with
customers. In addition, we could incur overtime,

26

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 39



Table of Contents

expedite charges, and other charges such as shipping products by air as opposed to by ocean as a result of efforts to meet such schedules. Any of
these factors could result in lower net revenue and gross margin as well as increased operating expenses which could have an impact on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Manufacturing and supplier disruptions could harm our business.

We primarily rely on Foxconn to manufacture the majority of all of our products. If our agreement with Foxconn is terminated, or if they do not
perform their obligations under our agreement, or if we otherwise determine to transition manufacturing of our products to another third party
manufacturer, it could take several months to establish and qualify alternative manufacturing for our products and we may not be able to fulfill
our customers� orders in a timely manner. If our agreement with Foxconn terminates, we cannot be certain that we will be able to identify a
suitable alternative manufacturing partner that meets the requirements of our customers and one that is cost competitive. Failure to identify a
suitable alternative manufacturing partner could impact our customer relationships and our financial condition.

Due to our use of third-party manufacturers, our ability to control the timing of shipments could decrease. Delayed shipment could result in the
deferral or cancellation of purchases of our products. Any significant deferral or cancellation of these sales would harm our results of operations
in any particular quarter. Net revenue for a period may be lower than predicted if large orders forecasted for that period are delayed or are not
realized, which could also impact cash flow or result in a decline in our stock price. To the extent we establish a relationship with an alternative
manufacturer for our products, we may be able to partially mitigate potential disruptions to our business. We may also suffer manufacturing
disruptions as we ramp up manufacturing processes for newly introduced products, which could result in delays in delivery of these products to
our customers and adversely affect our results of operations. Additionally, production of our products could be disrupted as a result of
geo-political events in Asia and other manufacturing locations.

We also generally extend to our customers the warranties provided to us by our suppliers and, accordingly, the majority of our warranty
obligations to customers are covered by supplier warranties. For warranty costs not covered by our suppliers, we reserve for estimated warranty
costs in the period the net revenue is recognized. There can be no assurance that our suppliers will continue to provide such warranties to us in
the future, or that we have estimated these costs correctly, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Any shortage of disk drives, memory or other components could increase our costs or harm our ability to manufacture and deliver our
storage products to our customers in a timely manner.

From time to time there is significant market demand for disk drives, semiconductors, memory and other components, and we may experience
component shortages, selective supply allocations and increased prices of such components. In such event, we may be required to purchase our
components from alternative suppliers, and we cannot be certain that alternative sources of supplies will be available on competitive terms. Even
if alternative sources of supply for critical components such as disk drives and memory become available, incorporating substitute components
into our products could delay our ability to deliver our products in a timely manner.

Demand for disk drives and memory has at times surpassed supply, forcing drive, memory and component suppliers, including those who supply
the components that are integrated into many of our storage products, to manage allocation of their inventory. If such a shortage were prolonged,
we may be forced to pay higher prices for disk drives, memory or components or may be unable to purchase sufficient quantities of these
components to meet our customers� demand for our storage products in a timely manner or at all. Similar circumstances could occur with respect
to other necessary components.
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We may continue to experience losses in the future, and may have difficulty forecasting future operating results, which could result in
revenue and earnings volatility, which could cause our stock price to decline.

For the year ended December 31, 2010 we incurred a net loss of $13.3 million. For the year ended December 31, 2009 we incurred a net loss of
$13.6 million. We expect our business to remain volatile as we are often unable to reliably predict net revenue from HP and our other customers.
Our ability to reliably predict net revenue has become more challenging as a result of our recent acquisition of Cloverleaf and the termination of
our relationship with NetApp. Net revenue from our customers, the mix of products sold to our customers, our ability to introduce new products
as planned and our ability to reduce product costs and manage our operating expenses and manufacturing variances will continue to affect our
financial results for 2011. Consequently, we cannot assure you that we will be profitable in any future period.

Our future operating results and profitability will depend on, and could vary substantially as a result of many factors, including:

� our ability to maintain and enhance relationships with our customers, in particular our OEM customers, as well as our ability to win
new business;

� our ability to implement and achieve targeted gross margin and cost reduction objectives and;

� our ability to contain operating expenses and manufacturing variances;

� our ability to meet product delivery schedules for HP and other customers which could result in increased air freight, expedite and
overtime charges;

� the extent to which we invest in new initiatives such as channel sales and software development;

� our plans to maintain and enhance our engineering, research, development and product testing programs;

� the success of our manufacturing strategy and relationships with our contract manufacturing partners;

� the success of our sales and marketing efforts;

� the amount of field failures resulting in product replacements, recalls or customer penalties;

� the extent and terms of any development, marketing or other arrangements;

� changes in economic, regulatory or competitive conditions, including the current worldwide economic crisis;

� increased costs associated with our Israeli operations;
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� costs of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing intellectual property rights; and

� costs of litigating and defending law suits.
Our success depends significantly upon our ability to protect our intellectual property and to avoid infringing the intellectual property of
third parties, which has already resulted in costly, time-consuming litigation and could result in the inability to offer certain products.

We rely primarily on patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, nondisclosure agreements and common law to protect our intellectual
property. Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual property, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of our products or obtain and
use information that we regard as proprietary. In addition, the laws of foreign countries may not adequately protect our intellectual property
rights. Our efforts to protect our intellectual property from third party discovery and infringement may be insufficient and third parties may
independently develop technologies similar to ours, duplicate our products or design around our patents.
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In addition, third parties may assert infringement claims against us, which would require us to incur substantial license fees, legal fees and other
expenses, and distract management from the operations of our business.

We expect that providers of storage products will increasingly be subject to infringement claims as the number of products and competitors
increase. We receive, from time to time, letters from third parties suggesting that we may require a license from such third parties to manufacture
or sell our products. We evaluate all such communications to assess whether to seek a license from the patent owner. We may be required to
purchase licenses that could have a material impact on our business, or, we may not be able to obtain the necessary license from a third party on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Consequently, we could be prohibited from selling and marketing products that incorporate the
protected technology or incur substantial costs to redesign our products in a manner to avoid infringement of third party intellectual property
rights.

Our success depends on our ability to attract and retain key personnel.

Our performance depends in significant part on our ability to attract and retain talented senior management and other key personnel. Our key
personnel include Dana Kammersgard, our Chief Executive Officer and President, Hanif Jamal, our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary, James Kuenzel, our Senior Vice President of Engineering and Ernest Hafersat, our Senior Vice
President of World-Wide Manufacturing, Operations, and Supply Base Management. If any of these individuals were to terminate his
employment with us, we would be required to locate and hire a suitable replacement. In addition, if any of our additional key engineering, sales
and general and administrative employees were to terminate their employment with us, our business could be harmed. Competition for attracting
talented employees in the technology industry can be intense. We may be unable to identify suitable replacements for any employees that we
lose. In addition, even if we are successful in locating suitable replacements, the time and cost involved in recruiting, hiring, training and
integrating new employees, particularly key employees responsible for significant portions of our operations, could harm our business by
delaying our production schedule, our research and development efforts, our ability to execute on our business strategy and our client
development and marketing efforts.

In the second quarter of 2010, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring and cost reduction plan, or the 2010 Plan,
to better align our resources in order to lower our breakeven point. The 2010 Plan included, among other things, severance and related costs for
the reduction of approximately 10% of our workforce, a 10% salary reduction for all employees at or above the vice-president level and a 5%
salary reduction for certain other employee groups. As a result of these actions, we may experience higher employee attrition rates, which would
require us to locate and hire suitable replacements and could cause our business to be harmed.

Many of our customer relationships are based on personal relationships between the customer and our executives or sales representatives. If
these representatives terminate their employment with us, we may be forced to expend substantial resources to attempt to retain the customers
that the sales representatives serviced. Ultimately, if we were unsuccessful in retaining these customers, our net revenue would decline.

Our inability to further develop and increase sales from our AssuredVRA software may significantly impact our ability to increase net
revenue, gross margin and operating income.

In September 2008, we bought certain assets from Ciprico including RAIDCore, now AssuredVRA. We have an agreement with one primary
partner to market or integrate AssuredVRA into their solutions. While we restructured the agreement in the third quarter of 2010 so that the
revenue generated under the agreement should exceed the costs of developing, manufacturing and marketing these products, we cannot be
assured that revenue will exceed costs in the future, which could cause our financial results to be negatively impacted and could also result in an
impairment of our related intangible assets.
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Protective provisions in our charter and bylaws and the existence of our stockholder rights plan could prevent a takeover which could harm
our stockholders.

Our certificate of incorporation and bylaws contain a number of provisions that could impede a takeover or prevent us from being acquired,
including, but not limited to, a classified board of directors, the elimination of our stockholders� ability to take action by written consent and
limitations on the ability of our stockholders to remove a director from office without cause. Our board of directors may issue additional shares
of common stock or establish one or more classes or series of preferred stock with such designations, relative voting rights, dividend rates,
liquidation and other rights, preferences and limitations as determined by our board of directors without stockholder approval. In addition, we
adopted a stockholder rights plan in May 2003 that is designed to impede takeover transactions that are not supported by our board of directors.
Each of these charter and bylaw provisions and the stockholder rights plan gives our board of directors, acting without stockholder approval, the
ability to prevent, or render more difficult or costly, the completion of a takeover transaction that our stockholders might view as being in their
best interests.

Unanticipated changes in tax laws or adverse outcomes resulting from examination of our income tax returns could adversely affect our
results of operations.

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and various foreign jurisdictions. Our effective income tax rates have recently been and
could in the future be adversely affected by changes in tax laws or interpretations of those tax laws, by changes in the mix of earnings in
countries with differing statutory tax rates, by discovery of new information in the course of our tax return preparation process, or by changes in
the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities. Our effective income tax rates are also affected by intercompany transactions for licenses,
services, funding and other items. Additionally, we are subject to the continuous examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue
Service and other tax authorities which may result in the assessment of additional income taxes. We regularly assess the likelihood of adverse
outcomes resulting from these examinations. However, there can be no assurance that the outcomes from these examinations will not have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants may result in dilution to our stockholders.

We have a large number of outstanding stock options and warrants. Dilution of the per share value of our common stock could result from the
exercise of outstanding stock options and warrants. When the exercise price of outstanding stock options and warrants is less than the trading
price of our common stock, the exercise of such stock options and warrants would have a dilutive effect on our stockholders. The possibility of
the issuance of shares of our common stock upon exercise of stock options and warrants could cause the trading price of our common stock to
decline.

Furthermore, it is also possible that future large customers or suppliers may make our relationship with them contingent on receiving warrants to
purchase shares of our common stock. The impact of potentially issuing additional warrants could have a dilutive effect on our stockholders.

Our stock price may be highly volatile and could decline substantially and unexpectedly, which can and has in some cases resulted in
litigation.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuated substantially, and there can be no assurance that such volatility will not continue. Several
factors could impact our stock price including, but not limited to:

� differences between our actual operating results and the published expectations of analysts;

� quarterly fluctuations in our operating results;

� mergers and acquisitions in the data storage marketplace;
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� introduction of new products or changes in product pricing policies by our competitors or us;

� conditions in the markets in which we operate;

� changes in market projections by industry forecasters;

� changes in estimates of our earnings by us or industry analysts;

� overall market conditions for high technology equities;

� rumors or dissemination of false information; and

� general economic and geopolitical conditions.
It is often the case that securities class action litigation is brought against a company following periods of volatility in the market price of its
securities. Securities litigation could result in the expenditure of substantial funds, divert management�s attention and resources, harm our
reputation in the industry and the securities markets and reduce our profitability.

Future sales of our common stock may hurt our market price.

A significant portion of our common stock is owned by a few institutional stockholders. As a result, a substantial number of shares of our
common stock may become available for resale. If these or other of our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock in the public
market, the market price of our common stock could decline. These sales might also make it more difficult for us to sell equity securities in the
future at times and prices that we deem appropriate.

Our system of internal controls may be inadequate.

We maintain a system of internal controls in order to ensure we are able to collect, process, summarize, and disclose the information required by
the Securities and Exchange Commission within the time periods specified. Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, can
provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the system are met. In addition, the design of any control system is
based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events. Due to these and other inherent limitations of control systems, there
can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future conditions, regardless of how remote.
Additionally, public companies in the United States are required to review their internal controls under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. If the
internal controls put in place by us are not adequate or fail to perform as anticipated, errors could occur that would not be detected, which could
require us to restate our consolidated financial statements, receive an adverse audit opinion on the effectiveness of our internal controls, and/or
take other actions that will divert significant financial and managerial resources, as well as be subject to fines and/or other government
enforcement actions. Furthermore, the price of our stock could be adversely affected.

Environmental compliance costs could adversely affect our results of operations.

Many of our products are subject to various laws governing chemical substances in products, including those regulating the manufacture and
distribution of chemical substances and those restricting the presence of certain substances in electronic products. We could incur substantial
costs, or our products could be restricted from entering certain countries, if our products become non-compliant with environmental laws.

We face increasing complexity in our product design and procurement operations as we adjust to new and future requirements relating to the
materials composition of our products, including the restrictions on lead and certain other substances that apply to specified electronic products
put on the market in the European Union as of July 1, 2006 (Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive, or RoHS). We design our products
to ensure that they comply with these requirements as well as related requirements imposed by our customers. We are also
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working with our suppliers to provide us with compliant materials, parts and components. If our products do not comply with the European
substance restrictions, we could become subject to fines, civil or criminal sanctions, and contract damage claims. In addition, we could be
prohibited from shipping non-compliant products into the European Union, and required to recall and replace any products already shipped, if
such products were found to be non-compliant, which would disrupt our ability to ship products and result in reduced net revenue, increased
obsolete or excess inventories and harm to our business and customer relationships. Various other countries and states in the United States have
issued, or are in the process of issuing, other environmental regulations that may impose additional restrictions or obligations and require further
changes to our products. These regulations could impose a significant cost of doing business in those countries and states.

The European Union has enacted the Waste Electrical and Electronic Equipment Directive, which makes producers of electrical goods
financially responsible for specified collection, recycling, treatment and disposal of past and future covered products. Similar legislation has
been or may be enacted in other jurisdictions, including in the United States, Canada, Mexico, China and Japan, the cumulative impact of which
could be significant.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.

Item 2. Properties
Our corporate headquarters currently occupy approximately 58,000 square feet that includes office and laboratory space located in Longmont,
Colorado. This facility includes administration, research and development, sales and marketing and operations functions. The expiration date of
the lease is January 2013.

We lease approximately 7,300 square feet of office space located in Plymouth, Minnesota, under a lease that expires October 2011. We use this
office space as a research and development facility for our AssuredVRA software.

In addition, we lease other international office space in countries such as: Israel, Germany, Japan, China, Singapore and the United Kingdom
primarily for research and development and sales and marketing functions.

We also lease approximately 58,500 square feet in Carlsbad, California, under a lease that expires in April 2013, although we were not utilizing
any portion of this facility as of December 31, 2010. For additional information regarding this facility, see Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Our existing leased facilities are appropriate for our current needs, although additional office space may be needed in the Longmont, Colorado
and Israel locations in the near future. We do not own any real estate.

We have two business segments: Storage Systems and Standalone Storage Software. The Storage Systems segment primarily uses our
Longmont, Colorado facility as well as our international office space, with the exception of Israel. The Standalone Storage Software segment
primarily uses our Plymouth, Minnesota and Israel facilities.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
In late January and early February 2006, numerous purported class action complaints were filed against us in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of California. The complaints allege violations of federal securities laws related to alleged inflation in our stock price in
connection with various statements and alleged omissions to the public and to the securities markets and declines in our stock price in
connection with the restatement of certain of our quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2004, and seeking damages therefore. The
complaints were consolidated into a single action, and the Court appointed as lead plaintiff a
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group comprised of the Detroit Police and Fire Retirement System and the General Retirement System of the City of Detroit. The consolidated
complaint was filed on August 25, 2006, and we filed a motion to dismiss on October 5, 2006. The Court granted our motion to dismiss on
March 15, 2007. Plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Consolidated Complaint on April 20, 2007. We filed a motion to dismiss the Second
Amended Consolidated Complaint on May 1, 2008, which the Court granted on September 2, 2008. The plaintiffs subsequently filed a Third
Amended Consolidated Complaint on October 10, 2008, and on November 24, 2008 we filed a motion to dismiss. On March 18, 2009, the Court
dismissed the Third Amended Consolidated Complaint, but granted plaintiffs leave to amend one more time. On April 17, 2009, plaintiffs filed a
Notice of Appeal regarding the Court�s September 2, 2008 and March 18, 2009 orders. On May 19, 2009, the Court entered final judgment and
dismissed the action with prejudice. The plaintiffs subsequently filed an Amended Notice of Appeal on June 8, 2009. On October 29, 2009, the
parties filed a Stipulation of Dismissal of Appeal. On October 30, 2009, the appeal was dismissed.

In addition, three complaints purporting to be derivative actions were filed in California state court against certain of our directors and executive
officers. These complaints are based on the same facts and circumstances described in the federal class action complaints and generally allege
that the named directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties by failing to oversee adequately our financial reporting. Each of the
complaints generally seeks an unspecified amount of damages. Our demurrers to two of those cases, in which we sought dismissal, were
overruled (i.e., denied). We formed a Special Litigation Committee, or SLC, of disinterested directors to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. On
January 12, 2007, another derivative action similar to the previous derivative actions with the addition of allegations regarding purported stock
option backdating was served on us. In April 2007, the SLC concluded its investigation and based on its findings directed us to file a motion to
dismiss the derivative matters. On July 13, 2007, all of the derivative actions were consolidated for pre-trial proceedings. We filed a motion to
dismiss the consolidated matters pursuant to the SLC�s directive on May 30, 2008. On March 29, 2010, pursuant to a stipulation of the parties and
without consideration having been paid to plaintiffs or their counsel, the derivative actions were dismissed with prejudice as to the plaintiffs.

We may be involved in certain other legal actions and claims from time to time arising in the ordinary course of business. Historically the
outcome of such other litigation and claims has not had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

Item 4. (Removed and Reserved)
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PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant�s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
Our common stock is currently included for quotation on the Nasdaq Global Market and is currently traded under the symbol �HILL.�

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the per share range of the high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported on
the Nasdaq Global Market.

Low High
Year Ended December 31, 2009
First Quarter 0.40 1.00
Second Quarter 0.56 1.50
Third Quarter 0.63 1.90
Fourth Quarter 1.48 2.83

Year Ended December 31, 2010
First Quarter 1.37 2.15
Second Quarter 1.07 1.90
Third Quarter 1.01 1.71
Fourth Quarter 1.39 2.10
On February 28, 2011 the last reported sale price for our common stock on the Nasdaq Global Market was $3.27 per share. As of February 28,
2011 there were 56,332,232 shares of our common stock outstanding held by approximately 100 holders of record. We have never paid any cash
dividends on our common stock, and currently intend to retain future earnings, if any, to the extent possible to fund the development and growth
of our business. We do not anticipate paying any cash dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

The information required to be disclosed by item 201(d) of Regulation S-K, �Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation
Plans,� is included under Item 12 of Part III of this annual report on Form 10-K.
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PERFORMANCE MEASUREMENT COMPARISON

The following graph compares the cumulative 5-year total return provided stockholders on our common stock relative to the cumulative total
returns of the S&P 500 Index, the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Nasdaq Computer Index. An investment of $100 (with reinvestment of all
dividends) is assumed to have been made in our common stock and in each index on December 31, 2005 and its relative performance is tracked
through December 31, 2010.

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN FOR

THE FIVE YEAR PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
We derived the selected consolidated financial data presented below from our audited consolidated financial statements for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, which are included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. Statement of operations data for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 and balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2007 and 2008 have been derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements not included herein. All data are in thousands except per share data. You should read the selected consolidated
financial data together with our consolidated financial statements and related disclosures thereto and with �Management�s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010(6)
Statement of Operations Data:
Net revenue $ 239,217 $ 207,095 $ 272,879 $ 234,383 $ 252,494
Cost of goods sold 202,561 180,662 242,491 196,556 209,664

Gross profit 36,656 26,433 30,388 37,827 42,830

Operating expenses:
Research and development 36,529 22,564 28,709 28,120 31,578
Sales and marketing 15,996 15,939 13,878 10,970 12,164
General and administrative 18,119 12,606 12,779 10,139 9,928
Restructuring charge(4) �  �  813 2,430 2,196
Legal settlement 3,395 �  (4,036) �  �  
Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charge(1)(5) �  40,725 5,432 �  �  

Operating loss (37,383) (65,401) (27,187) (13,832) (13,036)
Other income, net 5,496 4,996 1,612 167 (2) 
Income tax (benefit) expense(2) 48,885 (177) 190 (40) 213

Net income (loss) $ (80,772) $ (60,228) $ (25,765) $ (13,625) $ (13,251)

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (80,772) $ (60,228) $ (25,765) $ (13,625) $ (13,251)

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic and diluted(3) $ (1.80) $ (1.32) $ (0.56) $ (0.29) $ (0.25)

Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted 44,757 45,534 46,136 47,094 53,015

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010(6)
Balance Sheet Data:
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments $ 99,663 $ 82,358 $ 56,850 $ 57,574 $ 45,732
Working capital 102,941 88,418 75,261 62,010 49,879
Total assets 201,651 139,927 123,897 108,280 107,502
Total long-term debt �  �  607 346 71
Total stockholders� equity 155,912 96,429 76,652 66,351 64,378

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2007 the market value of our common stock substantially declined. As a result of this decline we determined
that the goodwill related to our SANnet reporting unit was impaired and recognized an impairment to goodwill of $40.7 million.

(2) As of December 31, 2005, we reversed the valuation allowance on our United States deferred tax assets totaling $47.1 million. The
reversal of the valuation allowance resulted in a net income tax benefit of $25.2 million. As of December 31, 2006, we reestablished our
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(3) See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for an explanation of the calculation of net income (loss) per share.

(4) See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for an explanation of our restructuring charges.

(5) During the fourth quarter of 2008, we performed an impairment analysis over our long-lived and intangible assets. The impairment
analysis identified $5.4 million of impaired long-lived assets consisting of $4.4 million of property and equipment and $1.0 million of
intangible assets. See further discussion of our long-lived asset impairment in Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(6) On January 26, 2010, we acquired 100% of the voting equity interests of Cloverleaf in exchange for (i) $0.7 million of cash, (ii) 4,758,530
shares of Dot Hill common stock valued at $8.1 million, or $1.71 per share, (iii) $1.8 million of specified assumed outstanding liabilities of
Cloverleaf at the acquisition date, and (iv) 327,977 shares of restricted common stock that were issued to the employees of Cloverleaf who
became employees of Dot Hill on the acquisition date pursuant to Dot Hill�s 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. See further discussion of our
acquisition of Cloverleaf in Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Cautionary Statement for Forward-Looking Information

Certain statements contained in this report, including, statements regarding the development, growth and expansion of our business, our intent,
belief or current expectations, primarily with respect to our future operating performance and the products we expect to offer, and other
statements regarding matters that are not historical facts, are �forward-looking statements� within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933, as amended and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, and are subject to the �safe
harbor� created by these sections. Because such forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, many of which are beyond
our control, actual results may differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. Some of the factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements can be found in Item 1A
�Risk Factors� and elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking
statements. The forward-looking statements speak only as of the date on which they are made, and we undertake no obligation to update such
statements to reflect events that occur or circumstances that exist after the date on which they are made.

The following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this annual report on Form 10-K.

Overview

We design, manufacture and market a range of software and hardware storage systems for the entry and midrange storage markets. Beginning in
the second half of 2009, we began placing more emphasis on selling higher gross margin products which includes software, appliance products,
and hardware products through indirect sales channels. We have two operating segments, which include storage systems and standalone storage
software.

Typical customers for our storage systems operating segment, which includes our AssuredSAN line of storage array products, include
organizations requiring high reliability, high performance networked storage and data management solutions in an open systems architecture.
Our storage solutions consist of integrated hardware, firmware and software products employing a modular system that allows end-users to add
various protocol, performance, capacity or data protection schemes as needed. Our broad range of products, from small capacity direct attached
to complete multi-hundred terabyte, or TB, storage area networks, or SANs, provide end-users with a cost-effective means of addressing
increasing storage demands at compelling price-performance points. Our current product family based on our AssuredSAN architecture provides
high performance and large disk array capacities for a broad variety of environments, employing Fibre Channel, or FC, Internet Small Computer
Systems Interface, or iSCSI or Serial Attached SCSI, or SAS, interconnects to switches and/or hosts. In addition, our Assured family of data
protection software products provides additional layers of data protection options to complement our line of storage disk arrays. Our current
mainstream 2000 and 3000 series of entry-level storage products and Just a Bunch of Disks, or JBOD, arrays are targeted primarily at
mainstream enterprise and small-to-medium business, or SMB, applications. Our AssuredSAN 5000 Series products have been distinguished by
certification as Network Equipment Building System, or NEBS, Level 3 (a telecommunications standard for equipment used in central offices)
and are MIL-STD-810F (a military standard created by the U.S. government) compliant based on their ruggedness and reliability. In February
2010, we launched the latest AssuredSAN 3000 series of storage arrays that provide high speed interface options including 8 gigabyte, or GB,
FC, 1GB and 10GB iSCSI over Ethernet and 6GB SAS connectivity.

Our standalone storage software operating segment consists of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA product lines.
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In November 2010, we launched the AssuredUVS unified virtual storage appliance product line for our branded products through our indirect
sales channels and we continue to sell the AssuredUVS software-only to qualified OEM accounts worldwide. This product line, formerly known
as the intelligent storage networking system, or iSNTM, is based on the technology we acquired in January 2010 from Cloverleaf
Communications, Inc, or Cloverleaf, a privately held software company focused on heterogeneous storage virtualization and unified storage
technologies. The appliance products consist of a standard off-the-shelf x86 server, combined with the proprietary software that delivers the
unified virtual storage feature set. Our storage arrays are also available bundled with this appliance. We believe this product line will broaden
market opportunities in both OEM and branded indirect sales channels and help accelerate our transition from a provider of hardware storage
arrays to a provider of unified virtual storage solutions. Sales of AssuredUVS products were not significant in 2010. Although we expect sales of
our AssuredUVS products to increase, we do not expect such sales to represent a significant percentage of our total net revenue in 2011.

In September 2008, we acquired certain assets, namely RAIDCore from Ciprico Inc., or Ciprico. These products are marketed to OEM accounts
as the AssuredVRA product line. This acquisition opened up new markets for us in the enterprise server and workstation markets for data
protection internal to the servers and workstations. In particular, the RAIDCore acquisition allows us to broaden our product portfolio in the
redundant array of independent disks, or RAID, market while allowing us to sell into the Band 1 market, and to pursue opportunities at current
and target OEM customers. We signed our first customer agreement relating to RAIDCore products in May 2009 and began selling to this
customer during the third quarter of 2009. Sales of AssuredVRA products were not significant in 2010. Although we expect sales of our
AssuredVRA products to increase in 2011, we do not expect such sales to represent a significant percentage of our total net revenue in 2011.

We have decided to expand our routes to market beyond our focus on original equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, and in October of 2009, we
launched a Dot Hill channel program targeted at selling through distributors and open storage partners, or OSPs. We continued to expand our
channel program in 2010 and we believe this will provide Dot Hill with additional sales channels for all of our products. The majority of sales to
our channel partners were represented by our AssuredSAN line of products in 2010. We expect sales to our channel partners of our AssuredSAN
and AssuredUVS products will increase in 2011.

Our agreements with our customers do not contain any minimum purchase commitments and may be terminated at any time upon notice from
the applicable customer. Our ability to achieve and maintain profitability will depend on, among other things, the level and mix of orders we
actually receive from such customers, the actual amounts we spend on marketing support, the actual amounts we spend for inventory support
and incremental internal investment, our ability to reduce product cost, our product lead time, our ability to meet delivery schedules required by
our customers and the economic environment.

Our products and services are sold worldwide to facilitate server and SAN storage implementations, primarily through OEMs, and supplemented
by system integrators, or SIs, distributors and value added resellers, or VARs. Our storage system operating segment OEM partners currently
include, among others, Hewlett-Packard, or HP, Lenovo, Ericsson, Motorola, Inc., or Motorola, General Dynamics Government Systems
Corporation, or General Dynamics, Lockheed Martin Corporation, or Lockheed Martin, NEC, Tektronix Inc., or Tektronix, Samsung
Electronics, or Samsung, Stratus Technologies, or Stratus, and Fujitsu Technology Solutions GmbH, or FTS. Our standalone storage software
operating segment OEM partners currently include, among others, Dell Inc., or Dell, Xiotech and Computer Dynamics, Inc., or Computer
Dynamics. Although our products and services are sold worldwide, the majority of our net revenue is derived from our U.S. operations. See
Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for information regarding our operating segments and a breakout of our net revenue
by geographical regions.

We began shipping products to HP in the fourth quarter of 2007. In January 2008, we amended our agreement with HP to allow for sales of
additional products to additional divisions within HP. Our products are
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primarily sold as HP�s MSA 2000/P2000 product family. Sales to HP increased significantly during 2008 and increased again in 2009 primarily
as a result of the successful launch and market acceptance of the HP MSA 2000 products. HP launched its third generation product line, now
called the P2000 product line, in February 2010. Sales to HP increased again in 2010 as we began selling our next generation host interfaces
across the HP P2000 product line. The agreement with HP does not contain any minimum purchase commitments. Sales to HP approximated
33% of our total net revenue in 2008, 51% of our total net revenue in 2009 and 57% of our total net revenue in 2010. We expect sales to HP to
continue to represent a significant portion of our net revenue in 2011. We also expect sales to HP will represent a higher percentage of our total
net revenue in 2011.

We previously designed and developed general purpose disk arrays for a variety of products that were sold under private label by NetApp, Inc.,
or NetApp. In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to
allow them to manufacture and sell on a royalty-free basis all of the products we previously manufactured and sold to them beginning on or
about December 1, 2010. As a result, we currently do not anticipate generating any additional revenue from NetApp.

We expect to generate additional revenue from our indirect channel sales and from sales of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products as well
as new and potential new OEM customers to replace the revenue, and more importantly, the gross profit lost as a result of amending our
agreement with NetApp. However, if we are unable to generate sufficient gross profit from these sources to largely replace the gross profit
previously associated with NetApp, our financial results could be harmed. Sales to NetApp approximated 23% of our total net revenue in 2008,
25% of our total net revenue in 2009 and 26% of our total net revenue in 2010, all of which was attributable to our storage systems operating
segment.

We expect our total net revenue to decrease in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of exiting our relationship with NetApp.

In addition, the demand for our products has been affected in the past, and may continue to be affected in the future, by various factors,
including, but not limited to, the following:

� our ability to maintain and enhance relationships with our customers, in particular our OEM customers, as well as our ability to win
new business;

� the amount of field failures resulting in product replacements or recalls;

� our ability to launch new products in accordance with OEM schedules and milestones;

� general economic and political conditions and specific conditions in the markets we address, including the continuing volatility in the
technology sector, current general economic volatility and trends in the data storage markets in various geographic regions;

� the timing, rescheduling or cancellation of significant customer orders and our ability, as well as the ability of our customers, to
manage inventory; and

� the inability of certain of our customers who depend on credit to have access to their traditional sources of credit to finance the
purchase of products from us, particularly in the current global economic environment, which may lead them to reduce their level of
purchases or to seek credit or other accommodations from us.

For these and other reasons, our net revenue and results of operations in 2010 and prior periods may not necessarily be indicative of future net
revenue and results of operations.

Our manufacturing strategy includes outsourcing substantially all of our manufacturing to third-party manufacturers in order to reduce sales
cycle times and manufacturing infrastructure, enhance working capital and improve margins by taking advantage of the third parties�
manufacturing and procurement economies of scale. In September 2008, we entered into a manufacturing agreement with Foxconn Technology
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Under the terms of the agreement, Foxconn supplies us with manufacturing, assembly and test services from its facilities in China and final
integration services including final assembly, testing and configure-to-order services, through its worldwide facilities. The agreement provides
for an initial three-year term that is automatically renewed at the end of such three-year term for additional one-year terms unless and until the
agreement is terminated by either party. Foxconn began manufacturing products for us in July 2009 and we began shipping products for general
availability under the Foxconn agreement during the second half of 2009. The majority of our products sold in 2010 were manufactured by
Foxconn. We expect Foxconn to manufacture substantially all of our products in 2011.

We derive the majority of our net revenue primarily from sales of our Series 2000 and 3000 family of products, which are included in our
AssuredSAN product line within the storage systems operating segment.

Cost of goods sold includes costs of materials, subcontractor costs, salary and related benefits for the production and service departments,
depreciation of equipment used in the production and service departments, production facility rent and allocation of overhead as well as
manufacturing variances and freight.

Research and development expenses consist primarily of project-related expenses, consulting charges and salaries for employees directly
engaged in research and development.

Sales and marketing expenses consist primarily of salaries and commissions, marketing related costs, advertising, customer-related evaluation
unit expenses, promotional costs and travel expenses.

General and administrative expenses consist primarily of compensation to officers and employees performing administrative functions,
expenditures for administrative facilities as well as expenditures for legal and accounting services and fluctuations in currency valuations.

Other income is comprised primarily of interest income earned on our cash and cash equivalents and other miscellaneous income and expense
items.

In the second quarter of 2010, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring and cost reduction plan, or the 2010 Plan,
to better align our resources in order to lower our breakeven point. The 2010 Plan included severance and related costs for the reduction of
approximately 10% of our workforce, and fees associated with the acceleration of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility. Substantially
all of our 2010 Plan workforce reductions were completed by December 31, 2010 and we completely exited our Carlsbad facility as of June 30,
2010.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our consolidated financial statements, which have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The preparation of these financial
statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of net revenue and expenses in the reporting periods. We base our estimates on current facts,
historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the accrual of costs and expenses that are not readily apparent
from other sources. We evaluate these estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
or conditions. To the extent there are material differences between the estimates and the actual results, future results of operations will be
affected.

An accounting policy is deemed to be critical if it requires an accounting estimate to be made based on assumptions about matters that are highly
uncertain at the time the estimate is made, if different estimates
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reasonably could have been used, or if changes in the estimate that are reasonably likely to occur could materially impact the financial
statements. We have many accounting policies that require us to make estimates and assumptions; the determination of useful lives of long-lived
assets, warranty reserves, accruals for estimated restructuring, tax and legal liabilities and valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. The items
listed below are not inclusive of all of our accounting policies but is a listing, identified by management, of those policies which require the most
significant judgments and estimates to be made in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from sales of our hardware products, software and services.

Hardware product revenue consists of revenue from sales of our AssuredSAN storage systems and our AssuredUVS appliance products that
includes our AssuredUVS software which is integrated with industry standard hardware which is essential to the functionality of the integrated
system product. We recognize hardware product revenue when the following fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurred; (iii) the price is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is
recognized for hardware product sales upon transfer of title and risk of loss to the customer and in addition, upon installation for certain of our
AssuredUVS appliance products. We record reductions to revenue for estimated product returns and pricing adjustments in the same period that
the related revenue is recorded. These estimates are based on historical sales returns, analysis of credit memo data and other factors known at the
time. If actual future returns and pricing adjustments differ from past experience and our estimates, additional revenue reserves may be required.

For our AssuredUVS licensed software products, we account for revenue in accordance with relevant software revenue recognition guidance.
We may also provide unspecified software updates and enhancements related to our AssuredUVS products through service contracts. We have
established vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, for the fair value of our support services as measured by the stated renewal prices paid
by our customers when the services are sold separately on a standalone basis. Net revenue derived from our AssuredUVS software products was
not material for any period presented.

Our service revenue primarily includes out-of-warranty repairs and product maintenance contracts. Out-of warranty repairs primarily consist of
product repair services performed by our contract manufacturers for those customers that allowed their original product warranty to expire
without purchasing one of our higher level support service plans. Revenue from these out-of-warranty repairs, and the associated cost of sales, is
recognized in the period these services are provided. Service revenue also consists of product maintenance contracts. Revenue from our product
maintenance contracts is deferred and recognized ratably over the contract term, generally 12 to 36 months. Net revenue derived from services
was less than 10% of total revenue for all periods presented.

From time to time, the Company enters into arrangements with customers that include acceptance criteria. In such instances, the Company defers
all revenue on the arrangement until customer acceptance is obtained or the acceptance clause lapses.

On sales to channel partners, we evaluate whether fees are considered fixed or determinable by considering a number of factors, including our
ability to estimate returns, payment terms and our relationship and past history with the particular channel partner. If fees are not considered
fixed or determinable at the time of sale to a channel partner, revenue recognition is deferred until there is persuasive evidence indicating the
product has sold-through to an end-user. Persuasive evidence of sell-through may include reports from channel partners documenting
sell-through activity or data indicating an order has shipped to an end-user.

We also defer revenue on upfront nonrefundable payments from our customers and recognize it ratably over the term of the agreement, unless
the payment is in exchange for products delivered that represent the
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culmination of a separate earnings process. When we provide consideration to a customer we recognize the value of that consideration as a
reduction in net revenue. We may be required to maintain inventory with certain of our largest OEM customers, which we refer to as hubbing
arrangements. Pursuant to these arrangements we deliver products to a customer or a designated third-party warehouse based upon the customer�s
projected needs, but do not recognize product revenue unless and until the customer has removed our product from the warehouse to incorporate
into its end products.

Valuation of Inventories

Inventories are comprised of finished goods and purchased parts and assemblies, which include direct labor and overhead, and are valued at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. The valuation of inventory requires us to estimate excess or obsolete inventory. The
determination of excess or obsolete inventory requires us to estimate the future demand for our products. Because our markets are volatile, are
subject to technological risks, price changes and inventory reduction programs by our customers, and as we are required to make last-time buys
of certain components on occasion, there is a risk that we will forecast incorrectly and produce excess inventories of particular products or have
commitments to purchase excess inventory components from our suppliers. As a result, actual demand will differ from forecasts, and such a
difference has in the past and may in the future have a material adverse effect on our gross margin and our results of operations. Any write
downs to inventory due to the existence of excess quantities, physical obsolescence, changes in pricing, damage, or other causes establish a new
cost basis for the inventory. When we sell or dispose of reserved inventory the new cost basis is charged to cost of sales. The largest factor
affecting the accuracy of our provisions for excess inventories is the accuracy of our production and service forecasts of end-customer demand.
The accuracy of our estimates depends in part on the accuracy of the non-binding forecasts we get from our end customers, the accuracy of our
own forecast of warranty requirements of our customers, the demand for storage systems in our market segments and the speed at which our
products are designed in or out of our customers� products.

Share-Based Compensation

We account for share-based compensation by measuring and recognizing share-based compensation expense for equity based awards granted,
including stock options, restricted stock awards, performance-based restricted stock awards and employee stock purchase plan shares, for which
expense will be recognized over the service period of the equity based award based on the fair value of the award, at the date of grant. The
estimation of stock option and employee stock purchase plan fair value requires management to make complex estimates and judgments about,
among other things, employee exercise behavior, forfeiture rates and the volatility of our common stock. These judgments directly affect the
amount of compensation expense that will ultimately be recognized.

Compensation expense for restricted stock awards is measured based on the fair-value of the award on the grant date (fair-value is calculated
based on the closing price of our common stock on the date of grant) multiplied by the number of shares granted, and is recognized as expense
over the respective vesting period. Compensation expense for performance-based restricted stock awards is measured similarly to restricted
stock, however, compensation expense is only recorded for awards that ultimately vest, which is contingent upon employees achieving various
performance criteria.

We currently use the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of our stock options and employee stock purchase plan
shares. The fair values generated by the Black-Scholes model may not be indicative of the actual fair values of our stock options and employee
stock purchase plan shares as it does not consider certain factors important to those awards to employees, such as continued employment and
periodic vesting requirements as well as limited transferability. The determination of the fair value of share-based payment awards utilizing the
Black-Scholes model is affected by our stock price and a number of assumptions, including expected volatility, expected life, risk-free interest
rate and expected dividends. We use historical volatility of our stock for the expected life of the grant as the expected volatility assumption
required in the
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Black-Scholes model. Our selection of the historical volatility approach is due to the limited availability of data regarding actively traded options
on our stock. The expected life of the stock options is based on historical and other economic data trended into the future. The risk-free interest
rate assumption is based on observed interest rates appropriate for the terms of our stock options and employee stock purchase plan shares. The
dividend yield assumption is based on our history and expectation of dividend payouts. We evaluate the assumptions used to value stock options
on a quarterly basis. If factors change and we employ different assumptions, share-based compensation expense may differ significantly from
what we have recorded in the past. If there are any modifications or cancellations of the underlying unvested securities, we may be required to
accelerate, increase or cancel any remaining unearned share-based compensation expense.

Valuation Goodwill

We perform an assessment of our goodwill for impairment annually at November 30, or more frequently whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. The provisions of the accounting standard for goodwill and other
intangibles require that we perform a two-step impairment test on goodwill. In the first step, we compare the fair value of each reporting unit to
its carrying value. If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds its carrying value, goodwill is not impaired and no further testing is performed.
If the carrying value of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then a second step must be performed, and the implied fair value of the reporting
unit�s goodwill must be determined and compared to the carrying value of the reporting unit�s goodwill. If the carrying value of a reporting unit�s
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, then an impairment loss equal to the difference will be recorded.

All of our goodwill has been assigned to our Israel reporting unit, which is one level below our standalone storage software operating segment.

We primarily utilized an income approach to estimate the fair value of the Israel reporting unit. We also performed other valuation techniques to
corroborate the reasonableness of our fair value estimate under the income approach for our Israel reporting unit. Our income approach involved
performing a discounted cash flow analysis of the Israel reporting unit and comparing the present value of such cash flows to its carrying value.
The most significant estimates and assumptions utilized in our discounted cash flow analysis involved revenue growth rates and operating
margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates and future economic and market conditions. We base our fair
value estimates on assumptions we believe to be reasonable but that are unpredictable and inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ
from those estimates.

Our annual goodwill impairment analysis did not result in an impairment charge. The excess of fair value over carrying value for the Israel
reporting unit as of November 30, 2010 approximated $33 million. In order to evaluate the sensitivity of the fair value calculations on the
goodwill impairment test, we applied a hypothetical 10% decrease to the fair value of the Israel reporting unit. This hypothetical 10% decrease
would result in excess fair value over carrying value of approximately $29 million for the Israel reporting unit.

Valuation of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets consist primarily of intangible assets with finite lives and property and equipment. We evaluate long-lived assets for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be recoverable. We assess the recoverability
of the assets based on the undiscounted future cash flows the assets are expected to generate and recognize an impairment loss when estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets plus net proceeds expected from disposition of the assets, if any, are
less than the carrying value of the assets. If an asset is deemed to be impaired, the amount of the impairment loss represents the excess of the
asset�s carrying value compared to its estimated fair value. Fair value estimates are based on assumptions concerning the amount and timing of
estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates, reflecting varying degrees of perceived risk.
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As of December 31, 2008, we identified a change in circumstances that indicated the carrying amount of our long-lived assets may not be
recoverable due to the significant economic downturn at that time, which caused a substantial decline in our market capitalization. As of
December 31, 2008, the carrying value of our equity significantly exceeded our market capitalization. Our long-lived assets at that time
consisted of our identifiable intangible assets associated with our recent acquisition of certain identified Ciprico assets acquired in September
2008 with a carrying value of $4.2 million, our licensed patent portfolio of $1.0 million and property and equipment of $6.6 million. Based upon
management�s estimates of undiscounted cash flows, coupled with the recent acquisition of the Ciprico assets which established fair value for the
assets, we determined that the carrying value of the acquired Ciprico assets approximates fair value and therefore no impairment was identified.
The remaining long-lived assets with a carrying value of $7.6 million were tested for impairment at the lowest level for which identifiable cash
flows that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets were available. We determined the fair value of the impaired assets
by discounting the forecasted future net cash flows from the operations to which the assets relate, based on management�s best estimates using
appropriate assumptions and projections. Our impairment analysis as of December 31, 2008 identified $5.4 million of impaired long-lived assets
consisting of $4.4 million of property and equipment and our $1.0 million licensed patent portfolio. The long-lived asset impairment is recorded
as a separate component of operating expenses for the year ended December 31, 2008. No impairments of long-lived assets were recognized for
the years ended December 31, 2009 or 2010.

Business Combinations

We allocate the purchase price of acquired companies to the tangible assets acquired, liabilities assumed and intangible assets acquired based on
their estimated fair values. The excess of the purchase price over these fair values is recorded as goodwill. We engage independent third-party
appraisal firms to assist us in determining the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Such valuations require management to make
significant estimates and assumptions, especially with respect to intangible assets. The significant purchased intangible assets recorded by us
include acquired software, developed technologies and a trade name.

Critical estimates in valuing certain intangible assets include but are not limited to: future expected cash flows from acquired software and
developed technologies; expected costs to internally develop acquired software, as well as assumptions about the period of time that acquired
software, developed technologies and an acquired trade name will continue to be used and generate cash flows; and discount and royalty rates.
Management�s estimates of fair value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and
unpredictable and, as a result, actual results may differ from estimates.

Other estimates associated with the accounting for acquisitions may change as additional information becomes available regarding the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth certain items from our statements of operations as a percentage of net revenue for the periods indicated
(percentages may not add due to rounding):

Years Ended December 31,
    2008        2009        2010    

Net revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100%
Cost of goods sold 88.9 83.9 83.0

Gross profit 11.1 16.1 17.0

Operating expenses:
Research and development 10.5 12.0 12.5
Sales and marketing 5.1 4.7 4.8
General and administrative 4.7 4.3 3.9
Restructuring charge 0.3 1.0 0.9
Legal settlement (1.5) �  �  
Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charge 2.0 �  �  

Total operating expenses 21.1 22.0 22.1

Operating loss (10.0) (5.9) (5.2)
Other income, net 0.6 0.1 0.0

Loss before income taxes (9.4) (5.8) (5.2)

Income tax expense (benefit) 0.1 0.0 0.1

Net loss (9.5)% (5.8)% (5.2)%

Year Ended December 31, 2009 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2010

Net Revenue

2009 2010 Increase % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Net revenue $ 234,383 $ 252,494 $ 18,111 7.7% 
The increase in net revenue for the year ended December 31, 2010 was primarily due to an increase in sales to HP. Sales to HP totaled $144.7
million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $120.5 million for the for the year ended December 31, 2009. The increase in HP net
revenue is due to the successful launch and market acceptance of the HP MSA 2000 products, which includes our Series 2000 products and the
launch by HP of its third generation product line, now called the P2000 product line, in February 2010, which includes our Series 3000 products.
Although our Series 2000 products are in the decline phase of the product life cycle, demand for these products continues to be significant. We
released our next generation Series 3000 products in the first quarter of 2010 and sales of these products have increased significantly during each
quarter of 2010. We expect sales to HP to continue to represent a significant portion of our net revenue in 2011.

In addition, sales to NetApp increased during the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009 based on the
success of NetApp�s FAS 2000 product line. Sales to NetApp totaled $65.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $58.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2009. However, under our agreement with NetApp, NetApp had the right to manufacture and sell, on a
royalty and royalty-free basis, up to certain specified percentages of the products we previously manufactured and sold to NetApp. In the fourth
quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to allow NetApp to
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We expect to generate additional revenue from our indirect channel sales and from sales of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products as well
as new and potential new OEM customers to replace the revenue, and more importantly, the gross profit lost as a result of amending our
agreement with NetApp. However, if we are unable to generate sufficient gross profit from these sources to largely replace the gross profit
previously associated with NetApp, our financial results could be harmed.

We also experienced an increase in net revenue of approximately $7.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year
ended December 31, 2009 as a result of the launch of our channel program in October of 2009, sales of our AssuredUVS products, which are
based on the technology acquired as part of the Cloverleaf acquisition in January 2010 and increased sales of our AssuredVRA products as we
renegotiated our contract with a major OEM customer in 2010.

These increases were partially offset by a decrease in net revenue from Oracle, FTS, Sepaton and other smaller customers. Oracle sales
decreased to $0.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $10.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decline
in Oracle net revenue is due to the products we sell to Oracle reaching the end of their product life cycle. FTS sales decreased to $2.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $11.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in net revenue from FTS is
due to FTS�s decision to internally source the product we sell to FTS. In addition, we also experienced a decline in sales to Sepaton of
approximately $2.4 million as a result of Sepaton buying their storage requirements from another source. We also experienced a net decline in
sales to other smaller customers of approximately $0.3 million.

We expect our total net revenue to decrease in 2011 compared to 2010 as a result of exiting our relationship with NetApp.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue Increase % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Cost of goods sold $ 196,556 83.9% $ 209,664 83.0% $ 13,108 6.7% 
Gross profit $ 37,827 16.1% $ 42,830 17.0% $ 5,003 13.2% 
Cost of goods sold increased for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to the year ended December 31, 2009 primarily as a result of an
increase in sales. Gross profit margin for the year ended December 31, 2010 was 17.0% compared to 16.1% for the year ended December 31,
2009. The increase in gross profit margin was primarily due to the continued success of our product cost reduction and value engineering
initiatives over the past few years which has significantly reduced our costs for both our Series 2000 and 3000 products that we sell to HP and
other customers. In addition, we incurred lower excess and obsolete inventory and scrap charges as a result of various product end of life issues
experienced in 2009 and improved inventory management practices in 2010. We were also able to negotiate early payment and volume
discounts in 2010, which resulted in lower costs and a higher gross profit margin. We also incurred fewer inventory holding charges as we were
able to more efficiently manage inventories being held by our contract manufacturing partners and experienced a decrease in manufacturing
overhead costs primarily as a result of our 2010 restructuring activities.

Partially offsetting the increase in gross profit margin were higher amortization expense, warranty related expenses and freight costs for the year
ended December 31, 2010 compared to the same period in 2009. Warranty related expenses increased as a result of a higher volume of quality
related warranty claims, as we experienced component failure issues with certain of our battery and hard disk drive suppliers, as well as
firmware failures within one of our products. Additionally, freight costs increased as a result of the increase in revenue and overall shipment
volume as well as from expedite charges. Amortization expense increased due to the inclusion of Ciprico amortization in cost of goods sold as a
result of the acquired products now generating revenue, as well as
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additional amortization resulting from the Cloverleaf acquisition. Prior to 2010, Ciprico amortization was included in research and development
expense.

Our gross profit margin is typically sensitive to product and customer mix changes. For example, our gross profit margin on sales of the products
we sell to HP is higher than the gross profit margin on the products we previously sold to NetApp. Conversely, the gross profit margin on sales
of the products we previously sold to Oracle is higher than that of the products we currently sell to HP. In addition, sales of our software
products and services typically have a much higher gross profit margin than that of our hardware products. Also, sales to our channel customers
typically have a higher gross profit margin than sales to our OEM customers. For the year ended December 31, 2010, we generated a lower
percentage of our net revenue from Oracle, which had an unfavorable impact on our gross profit margin, however, we generated a higher
percentage of our net revenue from our channel customers and from sales of software and services, which had a favorable impact on our gross
profit margin. We expect that our cost of sales will decrease and our gross profit margin will increase in 2011 as a result of exiting our
relationship with NetApp and as a result of expected increases in sales from our channel customers and from sales of software and services. We
also expect that the mix of products we sell, in particular, the products we sell to HP, will continue to affect our cost of goods sold and gross
profit margin.

Research and Development Expenses

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue Increase % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Research and development expenses $ 28,120 12.0% $ 31,578 12.5% $ 3,458 12.3% 

Research and development expense increased $3.5 million to $31.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $28.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. This increase was primarily due to an increase in salaries and payroll related expenses of $2.7 million, an
increase in consulting costs of $1.1 million, an increase in depreciation expense of $0.4 million, and increases in various other items such as
facilities and common expenses and travel, which approximated $0.1 million. In addition, in 2009 and 2010, we determined it was probable that
the amount of contingent consideration due to Ciprico would be lower based on lower actual and projected sales of products eligible for the
contingent consideration through the end of the contingent consideration period. Accordingly, we reduced the contingent consideration liability
and research and development expense in the statement of operations to reflect the reduction in estimated contingent consideration liability. The
reduction to research and development expense approximated $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 and $0.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009, or a change of $0.5 million. These increases were partially offset by a decrease in Ciprico intangible asset
amortization expense of $1.1 million and a decrease in engineering materials expense of $0.2 million.

The increase in salary and payroll related expenses is primarily a result of the additional employees engaged in research and development
activities associated with the Cloverleaf acquisition. Consulting costs increased largely as a result of certain engineering functions being
performed by consultants in India and an increase in the use of domestic engineering consultants to assist with certain strategic development
projects. The increase in depreciation expense was primarily the result of the additional equipment acquired in the Cloverleaf acquisition and
also due to additional capital expenditures for our Longmont engineering labs.

Ciprico intangible asset amortization expense decreased as the related AssuredVRA product is now generating revenue and therefore the
amortization is included in cost of sales. The decrease in engineering materials expense is largely the result of the timing of our engineering
material purchases in conjunction with the release of our next generation series 3000 products, which occurred in the first quarter of 2010.
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Sales and Marketing Expenses

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue Increase % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Sales and marketing expenses $ 10,970 4.7% $ 12,164 4.8% $ 1,194 10.9% 

Sales and marketing expense increased $1.2 million to $12.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $11.0 million for the
year ended December 31, 2009. This increase was primarily due to an increase in customer-related evaluation product expenses of $0.5 million,
an increase in marketing research, public relations and promotional expenses of $0.5 million, an increase in salaries and payroll related expenses
of $0.3 million, and an increase in travel expenses of $0.1 million. These increases were partially offset by decreases in facilities and common
costs of $0.2 million as a result of our 2010 restructuring activities.

The increase in customer-related evaluation product expenses is due to new product releases in 2010, including those products acquired in the
Cloverleaf acquisition. The increase in marketing research, public relations and promotional costs is primarily the result of various marketing
and branding activities in 2010 for our new products and the continued expansion of our channel programs. The increase in salary and payroll
related expenses is primarily a result of additional employees engaged in sales and marketing activities as a result of an increase in the number of
sales territories we support and the continued expansion of our channel program. The increase in travel expenses was primarily the result of an
increase in customer visits.

General and Administrative Expenses

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

General and administrative
expenses $ 10,139 4.3% $ 9,928 3.9% $ (211) (2.1)% 

General and administrative expenses decreased $0.2 million to $9.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $10.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. This decrease was primarily attributable to a reduction in legal fees of $0.4 million, changes in foreign
currency gains and losses of $0.3 million, a reduction in Sarbanes-Oxley fees of $0.3 million and a reduction in board of director fees of $0.2
million. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in salaries and payroll related expenses of $0.8 million and an increase in travel
expenses of $0.2 million.

The change in foreign currency gains and losses were primarily the result of changes in the value of the Euro and British pound in relation to the
United States dollar. The reduction in legal fees was primarily the result of lower fees associated with litigation matters as certain claims against
us were dismissed in the first quarter of 2010. The reduction in Sarbanes-Oxley fees were primarily the result of negotiating lower fees with our
service provider. Board of director fees decreased as a result of a reduction in the number of our board members.

Salaries and payroll related expenses and travel expenses increased primarily as a result of our transition of certain of our administrative
functions to Longmont, Colorado from Carlsbad, California in 2010, including the costs of duplicative personnel.

Restructuring

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Restructuring $ 2,430 1.0% $ 2,196 0.9% $ (234) (9.6)% 

49

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 67



Table of Contents

In December 2008, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring plan, or the 2008 Plan, to improve efficiencies in our
operations, which was largely driven by our plan to consolidate our facility in Carlsbad, California into the Longmont, Colorado facility. For the
year ended December 31, 2009, we incurred severance and related costs of $1.0 million for various California employees whose positions have
been relocated to Colorado. As part of the 2008 Plan, we also incurred contract termination costs of $1.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2009 primarily for facility lease and other associated costs that we continued to incur without economic benefit and due to
revisions to our assumptions regarding the timing and amount of tenant sublease income.

In the second quarter of 2010, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring and cost reduction plan, or the 2010 Plan,
to better align our resources in order to lower our breakeven point. The 2010 Plan included severance and related costs for the reduction of
approximately 10% of our workforce, and fees associated with the acceleration of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility. For the year
ended December 31, 2010, we incurred severance and related costs of $0.6 million related to both our 2008 Plan and 2010 Plan. We also
incurred contract termination costs of $1.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 primarily for facility lease and other associated costs
that we continued to incur without economic benefit and due to revisions to our assumptions regarding the timing and amount of tenant sublease
income under both our 2008 Plan and 2010 Plan.

We also incurred additional severance-related restructuring charges of approximately $0.1 million in 2010 related to the termination of a former
employee of Cloverleaf. All of the severance-related costs were paid to this employee in 2010.

See Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for more details regarding our restructuring activities.

Other Income, net

2009 % of Net Revenue 2010 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Other income/(expense), net $ 167 0.1% $ (2) 0.0% $ (169) (101.2)% 

The decrease in other income, net for the year ended December 31, 2010 is primarily attributable to a decrease in interest income primarily due
to declining interest rates and lower cash balances.

Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to an income tax benefit of $0.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2009. The 2010 provision for income taxes primarily represents state, local and foreign taxes. The 2009 benefit
from income taxes primarily represents federal tax credits, partially offset by state, local and foreign income taxes. The federal tax credits
available to us for the year ended December 31, 2009 were not available in 2010.

Year Ended December 31, 2008 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2009

Net Revenue

2008 2009 (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Net Revenue $ 272,879 $ 234,383 $ (38,496) (14.1)%
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The reduction in net revenue was substantially due to a decrease in sales volume and was primarily attributable to a decrease in net revenue from
Oracle, which sells our SANnet II family of products under the ST-3000 brand product line. Our net revenue from Oracle decreased 85% in
2009 compared to 2008 and totaled 24.6% of our total net revenue in 2008 and 4.4% of our total net revenue in 2009. The decline in Oracle net
revenue was primarily due to the products we sell Oracle nearing the end of their lifecycle. We also experienced a reduction in net revenue from
NetApp in 2009 compared to 2008 primarily as a result of general economic conditions. In addition, net revenue from FTS decreased in 2009
compared to 2008 as a result of its decision to internally source the product we sell to FTS. We also believe that the economic recession had a
negative impact on our revenue. These reductions in net revenue were partially offset by an increase in net revenue from HP who sells a version
of our Series 2000 family of products within their MSA 2000 product family. Our net revenue from HP totaled 32.6% of our total net revenue in
2008 compared to 51.4% of our total net revenue in 2009. The increase in HP net revenue is primarily due to the successful launch and market
acceptance of the HP MSA 2000 product in 2008 as well as the successful launch of follow-on products in 2009.

Cost of Goods Sold and Gross Profit

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue
(Decrease)
Increase % Change

(in thousands, except percentages)
Cost of Goods Sold $ 242,491 88.9% $ 196,556 83.9% $ (45,935) (18.9)%

Gross Profit $ 30,388 11.1% $ 37,827 16.1% $ 7,439 24.5%

The decrease in cost of goods sold and increase in gross profit as percentages of net revenue were primarily attributable to the success of our
product cost reduction and value engineering initiatives during 2009 which significantly reduced our costs for both our Series 2000 products that
we sell to HP and other customers as well as the products we sell to NetApp. Another factor that contributed to the reduction in cost of goods
sold was the $38.5 million decrease in net revenue. Additionally, gross profit was positively impacted by $1.1 million as a result of the
recognition of revenue and costs of goods sold associated with the completion of a long-term contract accounted for under the completed
contract method. Also contributing to the decrease in cost of goods sold and increase in gross profit were lower manufacturing variances and
overhead, which declined by $5.9 million in 2009 compared to 2008. This decrease was due to a reduction in payroll related costs and
efficiencies gained in our manufacturing and supply chain activities, offset by a $1.5 million inventory reserve charge primarily associated with
Oracle end of life inventory and to a lesser degree certain excess component parts of our Series 2000 products. In addition, depreciation and
amortization declined in 2009 by $1.6 million due to the fourth quarter 2008 impairment and write off of certain long-lived assets, as well as an
intangible asset fully amortizing in the third quarter of 2008. Partially offsetting the increase in gross profit was a decrease in net revenue from
our higher margin products sold to SANnet II customers; primarily Oracle.

Research and Development Expenses

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Research and Development Expenses $ 28,709 10.5% $ 28,120 12.0% $ (589) (2.1)%

The majority of the decrease in research and development expense in 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily the result of a decrease in project
materials, tooling, outside testing, test equipment and non-recurring engineering of $2.1 million in the aggregate. We incurred a significant
amount of development costs associated with the ramp up of the HP product line in 2008. This development activity resulted in significant
project materials, tooling, outside testing, test equipment and non-recurring engineering. These costs were not incurred
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to the same degree in 2009. In addition, during the fourth quarter of 2009, we determined it probable that the amount of contingent consideration
due to Ciprico would be considerably lower than initially expected based on lower actual and projected sales of products eligible for the
contingent consideration through the end of the contingent consideration period. Accordingly, we reduced the contingent consideration liability
and research and development expense in the statement of operations to reflect the $0.6 million reduction in estimated contingent consideration
liability. We also experienced a reduction in depreciation of $0.2 million and a decrease in allocated common costs of $0.5 million. The
reduction in allocated common costs was a direct result of our 2008 restructuring activities, as well as our 2008 long-lived asset impairment
charge, which resulted in lower facility costs and depreciation expense during the twelve months ended December 31, 2009. The remainder of
the decline in costs of $0.5 million related to declines in routine costs related to research and development activities, none of which were
individually significant. These decreases were partially offset by higher salaries and other payroll related expenses of $1.9 million in the
aggregate, an increase in intangible asset amortization of $0.8 million and growth in consultant expenses of $0.6 million. The increase in salaries
and other payroll related expenses was a direct result of hiring engineers to support HP as well as other development projects related to our
strategic initiatives. Additionally, we hired new employees to support development activities related to the September 2008 acquisition of assets
from Ciprico. The increase in intangible amortization is due to the amortization of certain intangible assets acquired from Ciprico, which were
only outstanding for a portion of the prior year. The increase in consultant expenses are directly related to our ongoing development activities.

Sales and Marketing Expenses

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Sales and Marketing Expenses $ 13,878 5.1% $ 10,970 4.7% $ (2,908) (21.0)%

The majority of the decrease in sales and marketing expenses in both absolute dollars and as a percentage of net revenue was primarily
attributable to lower salaries, bonuses, commissions and other employee related expenses of approximately $1.2 million, a reduction in various
marketing expenses of $0.7 million, a decline in other professional fees of $0.1 million, a decrease in allocated common costs of $0.4 million, a
reduction in depreciation expense of $0.2 million and a decrease in severance of $0.3 million. Lower overall headcount contributed to the
decline in salaries, commissions and other employee-related expenses including travel. The reduction in allocated common costs was a direct
result of our 2008 restructuring activities, as well as our 2008 long-lived asset impairment charge, which resulted in lower facility costs and
depreciation expense in 2009. The decrease in marketing expenses is due to our cost containment initiatives. Other professional fees were
reduced as lower net revenue resulted in lower outside commissions. Severance decreased due to our Executive Vice President of Sales and
Operations leaving the company in 2008.

General and Administrative Expenses

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

General and Administrative Expenses $ 12,779 4.7% $ 10,139 4.3% $ (2,640) (20.7)%

The majority of the reduction in general and administrative expenses in absolute dollars and as a percentage of net revenue is primarily due to a
decrease in professional fees of $1.5 million, recruiting fees of $0.4 million, IT and other consulting costs of $0.7 million, allocated common
costs of $0.4 million, payroll related expenses of $0.2 million, insurance fees of $0.2 million and building rent of $0.1 million. The decreases in
professional fees, consultant fees, and insurance fees are a result of lower negotiated fees with our service providers. Recruiting costs declined as
we had limited recruiting activity in 2009. IT consulting costs decreased as consultants were
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replaced with full-time employees. Payroll related costs declined as a result of a reduction in headcount. The reduction in allocated common
costs was a direct result of our 2008 restructuring activities, as well as our 2008 long-lived asset impairment charge, which resulted in lower
facility costs and depreciation expense in 2009. Building rent was lower as a direct result of closing our Netherlands office during the first
quarter of 2008. These decreases were offset by increases in board of director fees of $0.2 million and an unfavorable foreign currency exchange
fluctuation of $0.7 million.

Restructuring Charge

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue Increase % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Restructuring Charge $ 813 0.3% $ 2,430 1.0% $ 1,617 198.9%

Restructuring charges increased $1.6 million to $2.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 from $0.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. In December 2008, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring plan, or the 2008 Plan, to
improve efficiencies in our operations, which was largely driven by our plan to consolidate our facility in Carlsbad, California into the
Longmont, Colorado facility. The increase in restructuring charges incurred is primarily the result of additional contract termination costs as we
exited an additional portion of our Carlsbad facility in 2009. For the year ended December 31, 2009, we incurred severance and related costs of
$1.0 million for various California employees whose positions have been relocated to Colorado. As part of the 2008 Plan, we also incurred
contract termination costs of $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 primarily for facility lease and other associated costs that we
continued to incur without economic benefit and due to revisions to our assumptions regarding the timing and amount of tenant sublease income.

For the year ended December 31, 2008, we incurred severance of $0.3 million and facility costs of $0.5 million related to our 2008 Plan.

Legal Settlement

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Legal Settlement $ (4,036) (1.5)% $ �  0.0% $ (4,036) (100.0)%

We received legal settlement proceeds in 2008 from two cases. The proceeds from the first legal settlement of $3.8 million reflects a claim we
filed in February 2007 for arbitration in Denver, Colorado alleging that the representative of the Chaparral shareholders was wrongfully
withholding escrow funds due to us as a result of damages incurred by us relating to a completed patent infringement lawsuit filed by
Crossroads. The proceeds from the second legal settlement of $0.2 million reflects a claim we filed in December 2006 against Infortrend for
breach of the settlement agreement with Crossroads whereby Infortrend withheld approximately $1.5 million for Taiwanese taxes. Such amounts
are reported as a reduction in operating expenses for 2008.

Goodwill and Long-lived Asset Impairment Charge

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Long-lived Asset Impairment Charge $ 5,432 2.0% $ �  0.0% $ (5,432) (100.0)%

Long-lived asset impairment charges totaled $5.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and $0 for the year ended December 31, 2009.
At December 31, 2008, we identified a change in circumstances that
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indicated the carrying amount of certain of our long-lived assets may not be recoverable due to the significant economic downturn at that time
and resulting decrease in our market capitalization. As a result, we incurred an impairment charge of $5.4 million, consisting of $4.4 million of
property and equipment and $1.0 million related to our licensed patent portfolio, which represents the difference between the carrying value and
our estimate of the fair value of those assets. We did not incur any long-lived asset impairment charges in 2009. See Note 1 of the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for more details.

Other Income

2008 % of Net Revenue 2009 % of Net Revenue (Decrease) % Change
(in thousands, except percentages)

Other Income, net $ 1,612 0.6% $ 167 0.1% $ (1,445) (89.6)%

Other income, net decreased $1.4 million to $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 compared to $1.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2008. The decrease in other income, net is primarily attributable to a decrease in interest income of $1.4 million. The decrease in
interest income is primarily attributable to declining interest rates and a more conservative investment strategy in 2009.

Income Taxes

We recorded income tax expense of $0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 compared to an income tax benefit of $0.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2009. The 2009 benefit from income taxes primarily represents federal tax credits, partially offset by state, local
and foreign income taxes. The 2008 provision for income taxes available primarily represents state, local and foreign income taxes, partially
offset by federal tax credits.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The primary drivers affecting cash and liquidity are net losses, working capital requirements and capital expenditures. Historically, the payment
terms we have had to offer our customers have been relatively similar to the terms received from our creditors and suppliers. We typically bill
customers on an open account basis subject to our standard credit quality and payment terms ranging between net 30 and net 45 days. If our net
revenue increases, it is likely that our accounts receivable balance will also increase. Our accounts receivable could further increase if customers,
in particular large OEM customers, delay their payments or if we grant them extended payment terms.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $45.7 million of cash and cash equivalents and $49.9 million of working capital compared to $57.6 million of
cash and cash equivalents and $62.0 million of working capital as of December 31, 2009. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents is further
described below.

Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of 90 days or less and consist principally of money
market funds. In addition, we had $0.3 million in short-term debt and $0.1 million in long-term debt at December 31, 2010, consisting of a note
payable issued in connection with the acquisition of certain intangible assets from Ciprico.

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $9.1 million compared to $3.4 million of cash provided by
operations for the year ended December 31, 2009. The operating activities that affected cash consisted primarily of a net loss, which totaled
$13.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 compared to $13.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. The decrease in our net
loss was primarily attributable to an increase in our net revenue and gross profit due to higher sales to HP, lower manufacturing
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variances and excess inventory charges. Partially offsetting the increase in net revenue and gross profit were higher operating expenses as a
result of the additional costs associated with the acquired Cloverleaf business, investments in our channel program and lower interest income
due to lower interest rates and cash balances.

The adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 that did not affect cash
consisted of depreciation and amortization of $4.0 million, stock-based compensation expense of $3.0 million, and a net gain associated with an
adjustment to our contingent consideration liability to Ciprico of $0.1 million.

Cash flows from operations reflects the negative impact of $0.8 million related to an increase in accounts receivable, which was primarily due to
an increase in net revenue during the fourth quarter of 2010 compared to the fourth quarter of 2009, as well as the timing of shipments within the
quarter. Cash collection efforts remained strong, as our days sales outstanding approximated 49 days for both the three-months ended
December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009. Cash flows from operations also reflects the negative impact of $2.9 million related to an overall
increase in inventories at December 31, 2010, as we had contractual purchase obligations for certain components with some of our contract
manufacturing partners and we also built inventory related to the products we acquired from Cloverleaf and for service inventory requirements.

Additional uses of cash flows from operations include $1.4 million related to a decrease in accrued compensation and other expenses, which
were the result of the payment of $1.5 million of accrued Cloverleaf liabilities assumed in the business combination, partially offset by an
increase in our accrued vacation liability of $0.1 million and an increase in accrued salaries and salary related expenses due to timing. In
addition, we used $0.9 million of cash from operations for long-term liabilities resulting from $0.6 million of deferred rent amortization, $0.3
million of amortization related to customer prepayments and the reclassification of liabilities from non-current to current.

Cash flows from operations include sources of cash of $1.7 million related to a decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets due to the timing of
other receivables from our contract manufacturing partners for component parts we buy and ship to them and also due to the timing of payments
for various miscellaneous receivables. In addition, cash flows from operations include sources of cash of $1.5 million related to an increase in
accounts payable due to the timing of payments to our vendors as our days payable outstanding increased from 49 days for the three months
ended December 31, 2009 to 55 days for the three months ended December 31, 2010. Cash flows from operations also include sources of cash of
$0.1 million related to an increase in deferred revenue as we received up-front payments for engineering services and maintenance contracts, net
of amortization.

Investing Activities

Cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 was approximately $2.1 million compared to $2.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2009. Cash used in investing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 was due to the acquisition of Cloverleaf, net
of cash acquired, of $0.6 million and purchases of approximately $1.5 million of additional property and equipment primarily associated with
engineering laboratory expansion and equipment as well as additional equipment for our newly acquired Cloverleaf business.

Financing Activities

Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 was $0.7 million compared to cash provided by financing activities of
$0.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2009. Cash used in financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2010 is attributable to a
$0.7 million payment related to a Cloverleaf loan obligation, $0.5 million of tax liability payments associated with employee equity awards and
$0.3 million for the ongoing pay-down of our note payable associated with our 2008 acquisition of certain intangible assets from Ciprico. This
was partially offset by cash received from the sale of stock to employees under our employee stock plans of $0.8 million. Although we did not
have any amounts outstanding against our credit facility as of December 31, 2010, we borrowed $5.8 million during 2010, all of which was
repaid in the same year.
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Based on current macro-economic conditions and conditions in the state of the data storage systems markets, our own organizational structure
and our current outlook for 2011, we presently expect our cash and cash equivalents will be sufficient to fund our operations, working capital
and capital requirements for at least the next 12 months.

Cloverleaf�s historical expenses have exceeded their net revenue, which is a trend we expect to continue in 2011. For example, Cloverleaf
generated net revenue of $1.2 million and incurred a net loss of $3.9 million in 2009. In addition, post acquisition, the Cloverleaf business
generated net revenue of $0.6 million and incurred a net loss of $5.5 million during the year ended December 31, 2010. As a result, while we
expect the losses to decrease, we believe that the acquisition of Cloverleaf will continue to be dilutive to our results of operations and also result
in a net cash outflow for 2011 as we continue to invest in product development and sales and marketing activities. The amount of cash needed to
support the business we acquired from Cloverleaf in 2011 will depend primarily on new customer installations, the timing of capital
expenditures, product development costs and additional headcount needed to support customer requirements and improving the existing
infrastructure of Cloverleaf�s operations. We expect the amount of cash required to support the business we acquired from Cloverleaf will
decrease in 2011 compared to 2010 primarily as a result of expected increases in net revenue from the newly acquired Cloverleaf technology
platform.

Our standard warranty provides that if our systems do not function to published specifications, we will repair or replace the defective component
or system without charge generally for a period of approximately three years. We generally extend to our customers the warranties provided to
us by our suppliers and, accordingly, the majority of our warranty obligations to customers are intended to be covered by corresponding supplier
warranties. There can be no assurance that our suppliers will continue to provide such warranties to us in the future or that our warranty
obligations to our customers will be covered by corresponding warranties from our suppliers, the absence of which could have a potentially
significant adverse effect on our operating results and financial condition.

In 2009 and 2010, we experienced quality issues associated with certain power supply devices provided by one of our component suppliers that
required us to make substantial repairs and provide replacement parts. Our component supplier has agreed to reimburse us for the significant
majority of costs of the replacement parts and related expenses. Although our component supplier has reimbursed us or committed to reimburse
us for the significant majority of all of our costs incurred through December 31, 2010, there could be significant additional costs passed onto us
by our customers. To the extent that our customers provide us with claims for reimbursement for product quality issues caused by this
component supplier, we believe that our component supplier is contractually obligated to reimburse us for any such costs. An estimate as to the
possible amount of claims or range of claims that our customers may present to us related to these product quality issues cannot be made as of
December 31, 2010. To the extent that our component supplier cannot or does not continue to reimburse us for the significant majority of all
expenses incurred by us or our customers we could incur material amounts of warranty claims and expenses.

The actual amount and timing of working capital and capital expenditures that we may incur in future periods may vary significantly and will
depend upon numerous factors, including the timing and extent of net revenue and expenditures from our core business and strategic
investments, the ability to maintain payment terms with our suppliers consistent with the credit terms of our customers, the overall level of net
profits or losses, our ability to manage our relationships with our contract manufacturers, the potential growth or decline in inventory to support
our customers, costs associated with product quality issues and the recovery, if any, of such costs by a supplier, the status of our relationships
with key customers, partners and suppliers, the timing and extent of the introduction of new products and services, growth in operations and the
economic environment.

We maintain a credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank for cash advances and letters of credit of up to an aggregate of $30 million based upon an
advance rate of 85% of eligible accounts receivable. In February 2011, we amended our credit agreement with Silicon Valley Bank. The
amendment extends the maturity date to
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July 21, 2013, revises the definition of eligible accounts receivable to be less restrictive and also revises the definition of net worth to add
stock-based compensation expense, goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges, subject to certain limitations. Borrowings under the credit
facility bear interest at the prime rate and are secured by substantially all of our accounts receivable, deposit and securities accounts. The
agreement provides for a negative pledge on our inventory and intellectual property, subject to certain exceptions, and contains usual and
customary covenants for an arrangement of its type, including an obligation that we maintain at all times a net worth, as defined in the
agreement, of $50 million (subject to certain increases). The agreement also includes provisions to increase the financing facility by $20 million
subject to our meeting certain requirements, including $40 million in borrowing base for the immediately preceding 90 days, and Silicon Valley
Bank locating a lender willing to finance the additional facility. In addition, if our cash and cash equivalents net of the total amount outstanding
under the credit facility fall below $20 million (measured on a rolling three-month basis), the interest rate will increase to prime plus 1% and
additional restrictions will apply. Our credit facility also provides for a cash management services sublimit under the revolving credit line of up
to $300,000. As of December 31, 2010 we had an outstanding letter of credit issued to our contract manufacturer in China in the amount of $5.0
million.

As of December 31, 2010, there were no amounts outstanding under the Silicon Valley Bank line of credit.

The following table summarizes our contractual obligations as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands).

Contractual Obligations Total 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
Operating lease obligations $ 4,680 $ 2,350 $ 1,841 $ 489 $ �  
Inventory related purchase obligations 15,092 15,092 �  �  �  
Other purchase obligations 1,668 1,668 �  �  �  
Note payable 346 275 71 �  �  

Total $ 21,786 $ 19,385 $ 1,912 $ 489 $ �  

We lease office space, equipment and automobiles under non-cancelable operating leases, which expire at various dates through June 2013. For
purposes of the table above, the operating lease obligations exclude common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance expenses.

Inventory related purchase obligations represent contractual purchase commitments to our suppliers for certain components in order to ensure
supply of select key components at the most favorable pricing.

Other purchase obligations represent purchase commitments made in the ordinary course of business.

In addition to the amounts shown in the table above, $0.2 million of unrecognized tax benefits have been recorded as liabilities in accordance
with FASB Interpretation 48, and we are uncertain as to if or when such amounts may be settled.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

At December 31, 2010, we did not have any relationship with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, such as entities often referred to
as structured finance variable interest, or special purpose entities, which would have been established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance
sheet arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes. In addition, we did not engage in trading activities involving
non-exchange traded contracts. As a result, we are not exposed to any financing, liquidity, market or credit risk that could arise if we had
engaged in such relationships. We do not have relationships and transactions with persons and entities that derive benefits from their
non-independent relationship with us or our related parties except as disclosed herein.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, No. 2009-13,
�Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements�, or ASU 2009-13. The new
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standard changes the requirements for establishing separate units of accounting in a multiple element arrangement and requires the allocation of
arrangement consideration to each deliverable based on the relative selling price. The selling price for each deliverable is based on
vendor-specific objective evidence, or VSOE, if available; third-party evidence, or TPE, if VSOE is not available; or estimated selling price, or
ESP, if neither VSOE nor TPE is available.

Concurrently to issuing ASU 2009-13, the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-14, �Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements�, or ASU 2009-14. ASU 2009-14 excludes software that is contained on a tangible product from the scope of software revenue
guidance if the software is essential to the tangible product�s functionality.

We early adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 as of the beginning of fiscal 2010 for new and materially modified deals
originating after January 1, 2010. The adoption of these provisions did not materially affect the results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and would not have materially impacted previously reported results had the adoption been applied retrospectively, as
revenue derived from software sales and multiple-deliverable arrangements were not material. The effect of adopting these standards on future
financial periods will vary based on the nature and volume of new or materially modified revenue transactions in any given period.

In March 2010, the FASB ratified a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force that recognizes the milestone method as an acceptable
revenue recognition method for substantive milestones in research or development arrangements. This consensus would require its provisions be
met in order for an entity to recognize consideration that is contingent upon achievement of a substantive milestone as revenue in its entirety in
the period in which the milestone is achieved. In addition, this consensus would require disclosure of certain information with respect to
arrangements that contain milestones. This authoritative guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods on or after June 15, 2010
and was effective for Dot Hill in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

We place our cash equivalents with high-credit-quality financial institutions, investing primarily in money market accounts. We have established
guidelines relative to credit ratings, diversification and maturities that seek to maintain safety and liquidity. Our investment strategy generally
results in lower yields on investments but reduces the risk to principal in the short term prior to these funds being invested in our business. Our
interest income is sensitive to changes in the general level of interest rates. In this regard, changes in interest rates can affect the interest earned
on our cash equivalents. A 10% unfavorable change in the interest rate would not materially impact our December 31, 2010 balance sheet.

We have a line of credit agreement, which accrues interest on any outstanding balances at the prime rate. As of December 31, 2010, there were
no amounts outstanding under this line. If we make borrowings under this line, we will be exposed to interest rate risk on such debt.

Indicated changes in interest rates are based on hypothetical movements and are not necessarily indicative of the actual results that may occur.
Future earnings and losses will be affected by actual fluctuations in interest rates.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We conduct a portion of our business in currencies other than the U.S. dollar, the currency in which our consolidated financial statements are
reported. The most significant foreign currencies that subjected us to
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foreign currency exchange rate risk for the year ended December 31, 2010 were the Euro, British Pound, Japanese Yen and the Israeli New
Shekel. Correspondingly, our operating results could be adversely affected by foreign currency exchange rate volatility relative to the U.S.
dollar. Although we continue to evaluate strategies to mitigate risks related to the effect of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, we will likely
continue to recognize gains or losses from international transactions and foreign currency changes. Although foreign currency transaction gains
and losses have not historically been material, we incurred $0.2 million in foreign currency transaction gains during the year ended
December 31, 2010, primarily resulting from the remeasurement process of certain of our European subsidiaries that maintain their books of
record in a currency other than the functional currency. Future changes in foreign currency rates could adversely impact our operating results. A
10% unfavorable change in exchange rates would result in foreign currency losses of approximately $0.5 million.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference from the financial statements beginning on page F-1 of this annual report on
Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements With Accountants On Accounting and Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on management�s evaluation (with the participation of our CEO and CFO), as of the end of the period covered by this report, our CEO and
CFO have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act)), are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by us in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in SEC
rules and forms, and is accumulated and communicated to management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer,
as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the period covered by this report that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting.

Management�s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, the end of our fiscal year. Management based its
assessment on criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Management�s assessment included evaluation of elements such as the design and operating effectiveness of key
financial reporting controls, process documentation, accounting policies, and our overall control environment.
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Based on our assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of the end of the fiscal
year to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for
external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte and Touche LLP, independently assessed the effectiveness of the company�s internal
control over financial reporting, as stated in their attestation report, which is included at the end of Part II, of this Form 10-K.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries

Longmont, Colorado

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31,
2010, based on criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company�s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the company�s principal executive and
principal financial officers, or persons performing similar functions, and effected by the company�s board of directors, management, and other
personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010,
based on the criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2010 of the Company and our report dated March 8, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP

Denver, Colorado

March 8, 2011
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Item 9B. Other Information
None.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance
Some of the information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant
to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders under the headings �Election of Directors� and �Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance.� Other information required by this item is incorporated by reference to Item 1 of Part I of this
annual report on Form 10-K under the heading �Named Executive Officers and Key Employees of the Registrant.�

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, who is also our principal
accounting officer. This code of ethics is incorporated in our code of business conduct and ethics that applies to all of our officers, directors and
employees. A copy of our code of business conduct and ethics is available on our web site at www.dothill.com. We intend to satisfy the SEC�s
disclosure requirements regarding amendments to, or waivers of, the code of business conduct and ethics by posting such information on our
web site. A paper copy of our code of business conduct and ethics may be obtained free of charge by writing to our Investor Relations
Department at our principal executive office.

Item 11. Executive Compensation
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders under the headings �Executive Compensation,� �Compensation
Committee Report� and �Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.�

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters
The information under the heading �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management� in our Definitive Proxy Statement to be
filed with the SEC pursuant to Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders is incorporated by reference.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table sets forth our equity securities authorized for issuance under equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2010.

Stock Plan

Number of Securities to be
Issued Upon Exercise

of
Outstanding Options

and
Rights

Weighted Average
Exercise Price of

Outstanding Options and
Rights

Number of Securities
Remaining Available for

Future Issuance
2000 EIP 4,809,047 $ 4.06 �  
2009 EIP 990,500 $ 1.49 2,052,066
2000 ESPP Not Applicable Not Applicable 3,209,895
2000 NEDSOP 380,000 $ 2.81 523,124

Total 6,179,547 $ 3.57 5,785,085

All of our equity compensation plans have been approved by our stockholders.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders under the headings �Election of Director(s),� �Transactions with
Related Persons� and �Policies and Procedures with Respect to Related Party Transactions.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services
The information required by this item is incorporated by reference to our Definitive Proxy Statement to be filed with the SEC pursuant to
Regulation 14A in connection with our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders under the heading �Ratification of Selection of Independent
Auditors.�
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
a) The following documents are filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial statements:

The consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss,
stockholders� equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, together with notes thereto included elsewhere in
this annual report on Form 10-K are incorporated herein by reference.

(2) All other schedules have been omitted from this annual report on Form 10-K because they are not applicable or because the information
required by any applicable schedule is included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits:

Exhibit

Number Description
  2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated as of February 23, 2004, by and among Dot Hill Systems Corp., DHSA Corp., Chaparral

Network Storage, Inc., and C. Timothy Smoot, as Stockholders� Representative.(1)

  2.2 Amended and Restated Asset Purchase and Technology License Agreement dated September 17, 2008 by and between Dot
Hill Systems Corp. and Ciprico Inc.(2)

  2.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger and Reorganization dated as of January 4, 2010, among Dot Hill Systems Corp., Telluride
Acquisition Sub, Inc., Cloverleaf Communications Inc., Cloverleaf Communications (Israel) Ltd., Cloverleaf Communications
Corporation (BVI) and E. Shalev Management 2000 (1999) Ltd.(8)

  3.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(3)

  3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(4)

  4.1 Certificate of Incorporation Dot Hill Systems Corp.(3)

  4.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(4)

  4.3 Form of Common Stock Certificate.(5)

  4.4 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock, as filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware on
May 19, 2003.(6)

  4.5 Form of Rights Certificate.(6)

  4.6 Warrant to Purchase Shares of Common Stock dated January 4, 2008.(9)

10.1 Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 2003 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and American Stock Transfer and
Trust Company.(6)

10.2 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.(10)�

10.3 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.(11)�

10.4 Form of Stock Option Agreement (Incentive and Non-statutory Stock Options) used in connection with the 2000 Amended
and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.(10)�

10.5 Form of Stock Option Grant Notice used in connection with the 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan.(10)�
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Exhibit

Number Description
10.6 Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.(11)�

10.7 Amended and Restated 2000 Non-Employee Directors� Stock Option Plan.(12)�

10.8 Form of Stock Option Agreement used in connection with the 2000 Non-Employee Directors� Stock Option Plan.(13)�

10.9 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Dana Kammersgard, effective as of
December 18, 2008.(14)�

10.10 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Hanif I. Jamal, effective as of March 16,
2009.(32)�

10.11 Description of 2008 Executive Compensation Plan.(15)�

10.12 Description of Amended and Restated Policy for Director Compensation.(16)�

10.13 Form of Indemnity Agreement.(17)

10.14 Lease Agreement by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Equastone 2200 Faraday, LLC effective as of September 1, 2005
and dated as of September 16, 2005.(18)

10.15 Lease Agreement by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Circle Capital Longmont LLC as of April 12, 2007.(19)

10.16 Loan and Security Agreement dated August 1, 2008 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Silicon Valley Bank.(20)

10.17 Manufacturing Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Flextronics Corporation dated May 20, 2002.(21)*

10.18 Amendment to Manufacturing Agreement between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron Corporation dated April 5, 2005.(22)*

10.19 Second Amendment to Manufacturing Agreement dated September 16, 2005 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron
Corporation.(23)*

10.20 Second Award Letter dated September 16, 2005 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Solectron Corporation.(23)*

10.21 Manufacturing Agreement by and among Dot Hill Systems Corp., MiTAC International Corporation and SYNNEX Corporation
dated February 20, 2007.(24)*

10.22 Manufacturing and Purchase Agreement dated September 24, 2008 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Hon Hai
Precision Industry LTD.(2)*

10.23 Amended and Restated Technology License Agreement, dated as of October 29, 2010 among NetApp, Inc., NetApp Holding
and Manufacturing B.V. and Dot Hill Systems Corp.*

10.24 Product Purchase Agreement dated September 10, 2007 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Hewlett-Packard
Company.(30)*

10.25 Amendment One to Product Purchase Agreement dated January 4, 2008, by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Hewlett-Packard Company.(30)*

10.26 Amendment Eight to Product Purchase Agreement dated September 30, 2008 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Hewlett Packard Company.(2)*

10.27 Patent Cross License dated December 29, 2005 between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and International Business Machines
Corporation.(27)*

10.28 Amended Settlement and License Agreement dated October 5, 2006 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Crossroads,
Inc.(31)*
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.29 Amendment One to Manufacturing and Purchase Agreement dated January 28, 2009 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp.
and Hon Hai Precision Industry LTD.(29)*

10.30 Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated July 30, 2009 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and Silicon Valley
Bank.(25)

10.31 Second Amendment to Loan and Security Agreement dated February 3, 2011 by and between Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
Silicon Valley Bank. (28)

10.32 Israeli Appendix to the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.(26)�

10.33 Israeli Appendix to the Amended and Restated 2000 Employee Stock Purchase Plan.�

21.1 Subsidiaries of Dot Hill Systems Corp.(7)

23.1 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

24.1 Power of Attorney. Reference is made to the signature page hereto.

31.1 Certification pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2 Certification pursuant to 17 CFR 240.13a-14(a) or 17 CFR 240.15d-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1 Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

 � Indicates management or compensatory plan or arrangement.

 * Confidential treatment has been granted by, or requested from, the SEC.
Dot Hill�s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K have a Commission File Number
of 001-13317.

(1) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 24, 2004 and incorporated herein by reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 19, 2001 and incorporated herein by reference.

(4) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 26, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

(5) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 14, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 19, 2003 and incorporated herein by reference.
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(7) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by reference.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on January 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 23, 2000 and incorporated herein by reference.
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(11) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on June 19, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to our Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-43834) and incorporated herein by reference.

(14) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 24, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(15) Filed as item 5.02(e) of our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 3, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(16) Incorporated herein by reference to the description contained in our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 29, 2005.

(17) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 13, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

(18) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 21, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

(19) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 16, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 5, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(21) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2002 and incorporated herein by reference.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

(23) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.

(24) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 and incorporated herein by reference.

(25) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 4, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

(26) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

(27) Filed as an exhibit to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference.
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(28) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 7, 2011 and incorporated herein by reference.

(29) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.

(30) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by reference.

(31) Filed as an exhibit to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 and incorporated herein by reference.

(32) Filed as an exhibit to our Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 20, 2009 and incorporated herein by reference.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.

By: /S/    DANA W. KAMMERSGARD        

Dana W. Kammersgard
Chief Executive Officer and President

Date: March 9, 2011

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below constitutes and appoints Dana W.
Kammersgard and Hanif I. Jamal, and each of them, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him and in his name, place, and stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Report, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary
to be done in connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming that all
said attorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of them or their or his substitute or substituted, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date
/S/    DANA W. KAMMERSGARD        

Dana W. Kammersgard

Chief Executive Officer, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 9, 2011

/S/    HANIF I. JAMAL        

Hanif I. Jamal

Chief Financial Officer, and Treasurer

(Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)

March 9, 2011

/S/    CHARLES CHRIST        

Charles Christ

Chairman of the Board of Directors March 9, 2011

/S/    TOM MARMEN        

Tom Marmen

Director March 9, 2011

/S/    RICHARD MEJIA        

Richard Mejia, Jr.

Director March 9, 2011

/S/    RODERICK M. SHERWOOD III        

Roderick M. Sherwood III

Director March 9, 2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries

Longmont, Colorado

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dot Hill Systems Corp. and subsidiaries (the �Company�) as of December 31,
2009 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive loss, stockholders� equity, and cash flows for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2010. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company�s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Dot Hill Systems Corp. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2009 and 2010, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company�s
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2010, based on the criteria established in Internal Control � Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 8, 2011 expressed an
unqualified opinion on the Company�s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/    Deloitte & Touche LLP

Denver, Colorado

March 8, 2011
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2010

(In thousands, except par value data)

2009 2010
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 57,574 $ 45,732
Accounts receivable, net 34,197 35,202
Inventories 4,333 7,340
Prepaid expenses and other assets 5,314 3,540

Total current assets 101,418 91,814
Property and equipment, net 3,616 3,597
Goodwill �  4,140
Intangible assets, net 3,029 7,581
Other assets 217 370

Total assets $ 108,280 $ 107,502

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 28,411 $ 30,555
Accrued compensation 3,602 3,899
Accrued expenses 4,220 4,171
Deferred revenue 1,217 1,371
Restructuring accrual 1,697 1,664
Current portion of long-term note payable 261 275

Total current liabilities 39,408 41,935
Long-term note payable 346 71
Other long-term liabilities 2,175 1,118

Total liabilities 41,929 43,124

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 12)
Stockholders� Equity:
Preferred stock, $.001 par value, 10,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding at December 31,
2009 and 2010, respectively �  �  
Common stock, $.001 par value, 100,000 shares authorized, 48,952 and 55,953 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively 49 56
Additional paid-in capital 303,841 315,257
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (3,439) (3,584) 
Accumulated deficit (234,100) (247,351) 

Total stockholders� equity 66,351 64,378

Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 108,280 $ 107,502
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

2008 2009 2010
NET REVENUE $ 272,879 $ 234,383 $ 252,494
COST OF GOODS SOLD 242,491 196,556 209,664

GROSS PROFIT 30,388 37,827 42,830
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Research and development 28,709 28,120 31,578
Sales and marketing 13,878 10,970 12,164
General and administrative 12,779 10,139 9,928
Restructuring charge 813 2,430 2,196
Legal settlement (4,036) �  �  
Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charge 5,432 �  �  

Total operating expenses 57,575 51,659 55,866

OPERATING LOSS (27,187) (13,832) (13,036) 
OTHER INCOME (LOSS):
Interest income (expense), net 1,538 161 (19) 
Other income, net 74 6 17

Total other income (loss), net 1,612 167 (2) 

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAXES (25,575) (13,665) (13,038) 
INCOME TAX (BENEFIT) EXPENSE 190 (40) 213

NET LOSS $ (25,765) $ (13,625) $ (13,251) 

NET LOSS PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted $ (0.56) $ (0.29) $ (0.25) 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES USED TO CALCULATE NET LOSS PER SHARE:
Basic and diluted 46,136 47,094 53,015

COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:
Net loss $ (25,765) $ (13,625) $ (13,251) 
Foreign currency translation adjustments (374) 35 (145) 

Comprehensive loss $ (26,139) $ (13,590) $ (13,396) 

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010

(In thousands)

Common Stock
Additional

Paid-In
Capital

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Loss

Accumulated
Deficit

Total
Stockholders�

EquityShares Amount
Balance, January 1, 2008 45,785 $ 46 $ 294,193 $ (3,100) $ (194,710) $ 96,429
Issuance of warrant to customer 2,282 2,282
Common stock issued under stock plans 523 1,196 1,196
Share-based compensation expense 2,884 2,884
Foreign currency translation adjustment (374) (374) 
Net loss (25,765) (25,765) 

Balance, December 31, 2008 46,308 46 300,555 (3,474) (220,475) 76,652
Common stock issued under stock plans 2,644 3 464 467
Share-based compensation expense 2,822 2,822
Foreign currency translation adjustment 35 35
Net loss (13,625) (13,625) 

Balance, December 31, 2009 48,952 $ 49 $ 303,841 $ (3,439) $ (234,100) $ 66,351
Shares issued in connection with acquisition 4,759 5 8,127 8,132
Common stock issued under stock plans 2,242 2 286 288
Share-based compensation expense 3,003 3,003
Foreign currency translation adjustment (145) �  (145) 
Net loss �  (13,251) (13,251) 

Balance, December 31, 2010 55,953 $ 56 $ 315,257 $ (3,584) $ (247,351) $ 64,378

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 AND 2010

(In thousands)

2008 2009 2010
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net loss $ (25,765) $ (13,625) $ (13,251) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,833 2,871 4,032
Goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charge 5,432 �  �  
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 11 �  �  
Adjustment to contingent consideration �  (649) (144) 
Provision for (reduction in) bad debt reserve 25 (63) �  
Share-based compensation expense 2,884 2,822 3,003
Issuance of warrant to customer 2,282 �  �  
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of business acquisition:
Accounts receivable (8,484) 6,888 (816) 
Inventories (5,077) 9,794 (2,938) 
Prepaid expenses and other assets (1,021) (445) 1,702
Accounts payable 2,332 (2,564) 1,543
Accrued compensation and other expenses (1,391) (415) (1,394) 
Deferred revenue (311) (1,658) 147
Restructuring accrual 672 1,016 (33) 
Other long-term liabilities 190 (539) (946) 

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (22,388) 3,433 (9,095) 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Purchases of property and equipment (1,891) (2,939) (1,490) 
Acquisition, net of cash required �  �  (625) 
Purchase of intangible assets (2,545) �  �  

Net cash used in investing activities (4,436) (2,939) (2,115) 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Principal payment of note and loan payable �  (249) (1,036) 
Payments on bank borrowings �  �  (5,800) 
Proceeds from bank borrowings �  �  5,800
Shares withheld for tax purposes �  �  (477) 
Common stock issued under stock plans 1,196 467 765

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 1,196 218 (748) 

Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents 120 12 116

Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (25,508) 724 (11,842) 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 82,358 56,850 57,574

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ 56,850 $ 57,574 $ 45,732
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Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for income taxes $ 67 $ 78 $ 90
Supplemental Disclosures of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities:
Capital assets acquired but not paid $ 168 $ 170 $ 67
Promissory note for intangible assets purchase 918 �  �  
Common stock issued in connection with acquisition $ �  $ �  $ 8,132

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010

1. Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Description of Business

Dot Hill Systems Corp (referred to herein as Dot Hill, we, our or us) is a provider of software and hardware storage systems for the entry and
midrange storage markets for organizations requiring high reliability, high performance networked storage and data management solutions in an
open systems architecture. Our storage solutions consist of integrated hardware, firmware and software products employing a modular system
that allows end-users to add various capacity or data protection schemes as needed. Our broad range of products, from medium capacity
stand-alone storage units to complete multi-terabyte storage area networks, or SANs, provide end-users with a cost-effective means of
addressing increasing storage demands without sacrificing performance.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, or GAAP.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of our wholly-owned subsidiaries. Intercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

Foreign Currency Translation

For our foreign subsidiaries whose functional currency is the local currency, assets and liabilities are translated into United States dollars at
period-end exchange rates. Revenues and expenses, and gains and losses, are translated at rates of exchange that approximate the rates in effect
on the transaction date. Resulting translation gains and losses are recognized as a component of other comprehensive loss.

For our foreign subsidiaries that maintain their books of record in a currency other than the functional currency, the subsidiaries remeasure
monetary assets and liabilities using current rates of exchange at the balance sheet date and remeasure non-monetary assets and liabilities using
historical rates of exchange. Gains and losses from remeasurement for such subsidiaries are recognized currently in income as a component of
general and administrative expenses.

Foreign currency translation adjustments comprise the entire amount of our accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 31, 2009 and
2010. We incurred foreign currency transaction gains of $0.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 and $0.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010. We incurred foreign currency transaction losses of $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2009.

Use of Accounting Estimates

The preparation of our financial statements in accordance with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of net revenue and expenses in the
reporting periods. The accounting estimates that require management�s most significant and subjective judgments include revenue recognition,
inventory valuation, the valuation and recognition of stock-based compensation expense, and the valuation of
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long-lived assets, goodwill and other intangibles, as well as any other assets and liabilities acquired and accounted for under the purchase
method of accounting for business combinations. In addition, we have other accounting policies that involve estimates such as the determination
of useful lives of long-lived assets, warranty reserves, accruals for restructuring and valuation allowance for deferred tax assets. Actual results
may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions and such differences could be material.

Revenue Recognition

We derive our revenue from sales of our hardware products, software and services.

Hardware product revenue consists of revenue from sales of our AssuredSAN storage systems and our AssuredUVS appliance products that
includes our AssuredUVS software which is integrated with industry standard hardware which is essential to the functionality of the integrated
system product. We recognize hardware product revenue when the following fundamental criteria are met: (i) persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists; (ii) delivery has occurred; (iii) the price is fixed or determinable; and (iv) collectability is reasonably assured. Revenue is
recognized for hardware product sales upon transfer of title and risk of loss to the customer and in addition, upon installation for certain of our
AssuredUVS appliance products. We record reductions to revenue for estimated product returns and pricing adjustments in the same period that
the related revenue is recorded. These estimates are based on historical sales returns, analysis of credit memo data and other factors known at the
time. If actual future returns and pricing adjustments differ from past experience and our estimates, additional revenue reserves may be required.

For our AssuredUVS licensed software products, we account for revenue in accordance with relevant software revenue recognition guidance.
We may also provide unspecified software updates and enhancements related to our AssuredUVS products through service contracts. We have
established vendor specific objective evidence, or VSOE, for the fair value of our support services as measured by the stated renewal prices paid
by our customers when the services are sold separately on a standalone basis. Net revenue derived from our AssuredUVS software products was
not material for any period presented.

Our service revenue primarily includes out-of-warranty repairs and product maintenance contracts. Out-of warranty repairs primarily consist of
product repair services performed by our contract manufacturers for those customers that allowed their original product warranty to expire
without purchasing one of our higher level support service plans. Revenue from these out-of-warranty repairs, and the associated cost of sales, is
recognized in the period these services are provided. Service revenue also consists of product maintenance contracts. Revenue from our product
maintenance contracts is deferred and recognized ratably over the contract term, generally 12 to 36 months. Net revenue derived from services
was less than 10% of total revenue for all periods presented.

From time to time, the Company enters into arrangements with customers that include acceptance criteria. In such instances, the Company defers
all revenue on the arrangement until customer acceptance is obtained or the acceptance clause lapses.

On sales to channel partners, we evaluate whether fees are considered fixed or determinable by considering a number of factors, including our
ability to estimate returns, payment terms and our relationship and past history with the particular channel partner. If fees are not considered
fixed or determinable at the time of sale to a channel partner, revenue recognition is deferred until there is persuasive evidence indicating the
product has sold-through to an end-user. Persuasive evidence of sell-through may include reports from channel partners documenting
sell-through activity or data indicating an order has shipped to an end-user.

We also defer revenue on upfront nonrefundable payments from our customers and recognize it ratably over the term of the agreement, unless
the payment is in exchange for products delivered that represent the culmination of a separate earnings process. When we provide consideration
to a customer we recognize the value
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of that consideration as a reduction in net revenue. We may be required to maintain inventory with certain of our largest OEM customers, which
we refer to as hubbing arrangements. Pursuant to these arrangements we deliver products to a customer or a designated third-party warehouse
based upon the customer�s projected needs, but do not recognize product revenue unless and until the customer has removed our product from the
warehouse to incorporate into its end products.

Advertising Costs

We expense advertising costs in the period incurred. Advertising expense is included as a component of sales and marketing expense.
Advertising expense was $0.5 million, $0.4 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Shipping and Handling

Cost related to the shipping and handling of our products is included in cost of goods sold for all periods presented.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. In conjunction with the development of our products, we incur certain software
development costs. No costs have been capitalized because the period between achieving technological feasibility and completion of such
software is relatively short and software development costs qualifying for capitalization have been insignificant.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation expense for all share-based payment awards granted is determined based on the grant-date fair value. We recognize
these compensation costs net of an estimated forfeiture rate, and recognize compensation cost only for those shares expected to vest on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the award, which is generally the vesting term of the share-based payment awards. We
estimate forfeiture rates based on our historical experience.

Income Taxes

We recognize deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected tax consequences of temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their reported amounts using enacted tax rates in effect for the year the differences are expected to reverse. We record a valuation
allowance to reduce the deferred tax assets to the amount that is more likely than not to be realized.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We classify investments as cash equivalents if they are readily convertible to cash and have original maturities of three months or less at the time
of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of money market funds issued or managed in the United States. At December 31,
2009 and 2010, the carrying value of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value due to the short period of time to maturity.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We establish an allowance for doubtful accounts for accounts receivable amounts that may not be collectible. We determine the allowance for
doubtful accounts based on the aging of our accounts receivable balances and an analysis of our historical experience of bad debt write-offs. Our
allowance for doubtful accounts and our bad debt expense was not significant for any period presented.
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Inventories

The components of inventories consist of the following as of December 31, (in thousands):

2009 2010
Purchased parts and materials $ 2,095 $ 4,901
Finished goods 2,238 2,439

Total inventories $ 4,333 $ 7,340

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out method) or market value. The valuation of inventory requires us to estimate excess
or obsolete inventory. The determination of excess or obsolete inventory requires us to estimate the future demand for our products. Our markets
are volatile, subject to technological risks and price changes and inventory reduction programs by our customers. In addition, we are required to
make last time buys of certain components on occasion. These factors result in a risk that we will forecast incorrectly and produce excess
inventories of particular products or have commitments to purchase excess inventory components from our suppliers. As a result, actual demand
will differ from forecasts, and such a difference has in the past and may in the future have a material adverse effect on our gross margin and our
results of operations. Any write downs to inventory due to the existence of excess quantities, physical obsolescence, changes in pricing, damage,
or other causes establish a new cost basis for the inventory. When we sell or dispose of reserved inventory the new cost basis is charged to cost
of sales.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Property and equipment are depreciated for financial reporting
purposes using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: machinery and equipment, furniture, fixtures and computer
software, 3-5 years; leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets or the
terms of the leases. Significant improvements to our property and equipment are capitalized while expenditures for maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense in the period incurred.

The components of property and equipment consist of the following as of December 31, (in thousands):

2009 2010
Machinery and equipment $ 7,164 $ 8,678
Furniture, fixtures, and computer software 200 274
Leasehold improvements 798 836
Construction in progress 24 171

Total property and equipment, at cost 8,186 9,959
Less accumulated depreciation (4,570) (6,362) 

Total property and equipment, net $ 3,616 $ 3,597

Depreciation expense was $4.3 million, $1.7 million and $2.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of 2008, we recorded an impairment charge related to our property and equipment in the amount of $4.4 million. See our
Long-Lived Assets discussion immediately below.

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets consist primarily of identifiable intangible assets with finite lives and property and equipment. We amortize our identifiable
intangible assets with finite lives over the estimated economic lives of the assets, ranging from 3 to 7 years.
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We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying value may not be
recoverable. We assess the recoverability of the assets based on the undiscounted future cash flows the assets are expected to generate and
recognize an impairment loss when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result from the use of the assets plus net proceeds
expected from disposition of the assets, if any, are less than the carrying value of the assets. If an asset is deemed to be impaired, the amount of
the impairment loss represents the excess of the asset�s carrying value compared to its estimated fair value. Fair value estimates are based on
assumptions concerning the amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates, reflecting varying degrees of
perceived risk. At December 31, 2008, we identified a change in circumstances that indicated the carrying amount of our long-lived assets may
not be recoverable due to the significant economic downturn at that time, which caused a substantial decline in our market capitalization. At
December 31, 2008, the carrying value of our equity significantly exceeded our market capitalization. Our long-lived assets at that time
consisted of our identifiable intangible assets associated with our recent acquisition of certain identified Ciprico assets acquired in September
2008 with a carrying value of $4.2 million, our licensed patent portfolio of $1.0 million and property and equipment of $6.6 million. Based upon
management�s estimates of undiscounted cash flows, coupled with the recent acquisition of the Ciprico assets which established fair value for the
assets, we determined that the carrying value of the acquired Ciprico assets approximated fair value and therefore no impairment was identified.
The remaining long-lived assets with a carrying value of $7.6 million were tested for impairment at the lowest level for which identifiable cash
flows, that are largely independent of the cash flows of other groups of assets, were available. We determined the fair value of the impaired
assets by discounting the forecasted future net cash flows from the operations to which the assets relate, based on management�s best estimates
using appropriate assumptions and projections. Our impairment analysis at December 31, 2008 identified $5.4 million of impaired long-lived
assets consisting of $4.4 million of property and equipment and our $1.0 million licensed patent portfolio. The long-lived asset impairment is
recorded as a separate component of operating expense for the year ended December 31, 2008. No impairments of long-lived assets were
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2009 or 2010.

Product Warranties

Our standard warranty provides that if our systems do not function to published specifications, we will repair or replace the defective component
or system without charge generally for a period of approximately three years. We generally extend to our customers the warranties provided to
us by our suppliers and, accordingly, the majority of our warranty obligations to customers are intended to be covered by corresponding supplier
warranties. For warranty costs not covered by our suppliers, we provide for estimated warranty costs in the period the revenue is recognized.
There can be no assurance that our suppliers will continue to provide such warranties to us in the future or that our warranty obligations to our
customers will be covered by corresponding warranties from our suppliers, the absence of which could have a material adverse effect on our
operating results and financial condition. Estimated liabilities for product warranties are included in accrued expenses.

In 2009 and 2010, we experienced quality issues associated with certain power supply devices provided by one of our component suppliers that
required us to make substantial repairs. Our component supplier has agreed to reimburse us for the significant majority of costs of the
replacement parts and related expenses. Although our component supplier has reimbursed us or committed to reimburse us for the significant
majority of all of our costs incurred through December 31, 2010, there could be significant additional costs passed onto us by our customers. To
the extent that our customers provide us with claims for reimbursement for product quality issues caused by this component supplier, we believe
that our component supplier is contractually obligated to reimburse us for any such costs. An estimate as to the possible amount of claims or
range of claims that our customers may present to us related to these product quality issues cannot be made as of December 31, 2010. To the
extent that our component supplier cannot or does not continue to reimburse us for the significant majority of all expenses incurred by us or our
customers we could incur material amounts of warranty claims and expenses.
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Our warranty accrual and cost activity is as follows as of and for the years ended December 31,

(in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,381 $ 1,560 $ 993
Charged to operations 3,334 2,061 2,623
Deductions for costs incurred (3,155) (2,628) (2,634) 

Balance, end of year $ 1,560 $ 993 $ 982

Concentrations of Credit Risk, Customers and Suppliers

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash equivalents and accounts receivable.
We maintain our cash equivalents with various financial institutions, which are primarily located in the United States. We place our cash
equivalents with high-credit-quality financial institutions, investing primarily in money market accounts. We have established guidelines relative
to credit ratings, diversification and maturities that seek to maintain safety and liquidity. Our investment strategy generally results in lower
yields on investments but reduces the risk to principal in the short term prior to these funds being used in our business. We have not experienced
any material losses on financial instruments held at financial institutions.

Our products and services are sold worldwide to facilitate server and SAN storage implementations, primarily through original equipment
manufacturers, or OEMs, and supplemented by system integrators, or SIs, distributors and value added resellers, or VARs. Our accounts
receivable are primarily derived from revenue earned from customers located in the United States, Europe and Asia. Credit risk with respect to
accounts receivable is generally concentrated due to the small number of entities comprising our overall customer base. We perform ongoing
credit evaluations of our customers� financial condition and generally require no collateral from our customers. We maintain an allowance for
doubtful accounts based upon the expected collectability of accounts receivable. Due to our credit evaluation and collection process, bad debt
expenses have not been significant. However, we are not able to predict changes in the financial stability of our customers. Any material change
in the financial status of any one or a particular group of customers may cause us to adjust our estimate of the recoverability of accounts
receivables and could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations. At December 31, 2009 our largest two customers with
worldwide operations accounted for 57% and 31% of gross accounts receivable and our top five customers accounted for 91% of our gross
accounts receivable. At December 31, 2010, our largest two customers with worldwide operations accounted for 73% and 6% of gross accounts
receivable and our top five customers accounted for 87% of our gross accounts receivable.

A small number of customers account for a significant percentage of our net revenue. Net revenue by major customer for the years ended
December 31, is as follows (as a percentage of total net revenue):

2008 2009 2010
Hewlett Packard 33% 51% 57% 
NetApp, Inc. 23% 25% 26% 
Oracle (formerly Sun Microsystems) 25% 4% 0% 
Other customers less than 10% 19% 20% 17% 

Total 100% 100% 100% 

We expect sales to HP will represent a higher percentage of our total net revenue in 2011. If our relationship with HP were disrupted or declined
significantly, we would lose a substantial portion of our anticipated net revenue and our business could be materially harmed.

In the fourth quarter of 2010, we decided to exit our low margin business with NetApp and amended our agreement with NetApp to allow them
to manufacture and sell on a royalty-free basis all of the products we
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previously manufactured and sold to them beginning on or about December 1, 2010. As a result, we currently do not anticipate generating any
additional revenue from NetApp.

We expect to generate additional revenue from our indirect channel sales and from sales of our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products as well
as new and potential new OEM customers to replace the revenue, and more importantly, the gross profit lost as a result of amending our
agreement with NetApp. However, if we are unable to generate sufficient gross profit from these sources to largely replace the reduced gross
profit previously associated with NetApp, our financial results could be harmed.

We expect that the sale of our products to a limited number of customers, in particular HP, will continue to account for a high percentage of net
revenue for the foreseeable future. We currently rely on a limited number of contract manufacturing partners to produce substantially all of our
products. As a result, should our current manufacturing partners, in particular Foxconn, not produce and deliver inventory for us to sell on a
timely basis, operating results may be adversely impacted.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued Accounting Standards Update, or ASU, No. 2009-13,
�Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements�, or ASU 2009-13. The new standard changes the requirements for establishing separate units of
accounting in a multiple element arrangement and requires the allocation of arrangement consideration to each deliverable based on the relative
selling price. The selling price for each deliverable is based on vendor-specific objective evidence, or VSOE, if available; third-party evidence,
or TPE, if VSOE is not available; or estimated selling price, or ESP, if neither VSOE nor TPE is available.

Concurrently to issuing ASU 2009-13, the FASB also issued ASU No. 2009-14, �Certain Revenue Arrangements That Include Software
Elements�, or ASU 2009-14. ASU 2009-14 excludes software that is contained on a tangible product from the scope of software revenue
guidance if the software is essential to the tangible product�s functionality.

We early adopted the provisions of ASU 2009-13 and ASU 2009-14 as of the beginning of fiscal 2010 for new and materially modified deals
originating after January 1, 2010. The adoption of these provisions did not materially affect the results of operations for the year ended
December 31, 2010 and would not have materially impacted previously reported results had the adoption been applied retrospectively, as
revenue derived from software sales and multiple-deliverable arrangements were not material. The effect of adopting these standards on future
financial periods will vary based on the nature and volume of new or materially modified revenue transactions in any given period.

In March 2010, the FASB ratified a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force that recognizes the milestone method as an acceptable
revenue recognition method for substantive milestones in research or development arrangements. This consensus would require its provisions be
met in order for an entity to recognize consideration that is contingent upon achievement of a substantive milestone as revenue in its entirety in
the period in which the milestone is achieved. In addition, this consensus would require disclosure of certain information with respect to
arrangements that contain milestones. This authoritative guidance is effective for interim and annual reporting periods on or after June 15, 2010
and was effective for Dot Hill in the third quarter of fiscal 2010. The adoption of this standard did not have a material impact on our
consolidated financial statements.

2. Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted net loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the period by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the period and including
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the dilutive effect of common stock that would be issued assuming conversion or exercise of outstanding warrants, stock options, share based
compensation awards and other dilutive securities. No such items were included in the computation of diluted loss per share in 2008, 2009 or
2010 because we incurred a net loss in each of these periods and the effect of inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

As of December 31, 2008, options to purchase 6,912,141 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from $1.15 to $16.36 per share,
332,128 shares of unvested restricted stock awards and a warrant to purchase 1,602,489 shares of common stock at a price of $2.40 per share,
were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because their effect was antidilutive.

As of December 31, 2009, options to purchase 6,142,901 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from $0.47 to $16.36 per share,
1,511,205 shares of unvested restricted stock awards and a warrant to purchase 1,602,489 shares of common stock at a price of $2.40 per share,
were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because their effect was antidilutive.

As of December 31, 2010, options to purchase 6,179,547 shares of common stock with exercise prices ranging from $0.47 to $16.36 per share,
2,099,523 shares of unvested restricted stock awards and a warrant to purchase 1,602,489 shares of common stock at a price of $2.40 per share,
were outstanding, but were not included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share because their effect was antidilutive.

3. Acquisitions

Ciprico

In September 2008 we acquired certain identified RAIDCore and Network Attached Storage, or NAS, assets of Ciprico, for approximately $4.5
million consisting of cash consideration of $2.3 million, an unsecured non-interest bearing promissory note in the amount of $0.9 million, and
contingent consideration in the amount of $1.1 million. Additionally, we incurred $0.2 million in acquisition related costs, primarily consisting
of legal fees. Payments under the promissory note are due in equal monthly installments over a 42-month period commencing October 1, 2008.
We are also required to pay Ciprico earn-out payments of up to $2.0 million over the 42 months following the date of acquisition. The earn-out
payments are payable on a quarterly basis and are equal to 6.67% of RaidCore and NAS net revenue for the quarterly period. The contingent
consideration liability fair value, as of the acquisition date, was $1.1 million, of which $0.3 million was included in accrued expenses and $0.8
million was included in other long-term liabilities. The purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired based on estimated fair values on the
transaction date, resulting in the recording of RaidCore technology of $4.3 million and NAS technology of $0.2 million. The RaidCore and NAS
assets are being amortized on a straight-line basis over four years and three years, respectively. Our primary reasons for the acquisition were to
allow us to broaden our product portfolio in the redundant array of independent disks, or RAID, market while allowing us to sell into the Band 1
market, and to pursue opportunities at current and target OEM customers. As of December 31, 2010, we had $0.3 million in short-term debt and
$0.1 million in long-term debt consisting of the note payable issued in connection with the acquisition of certain intangible assets from Ciprico.

In 2009 and 2010, we determined it was probable that the amount of contingent consideration due to Ciprico would be lower based on lower
actual and projected sales of products eligible for the contingent consideration through the end of the contingent consideration period.
Accordingly, we reduced the contingent consideration liability and research and development expense in the statement of operations by $0.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2009 and $0.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 to reflect the reduction in estimated
contingent consideration liability.

Cloverleaf

On January 26, 2010, or the acquisition date, Dot Hill acquired 100% of the voting equity interests of Cloverleaf Communications Inc., a
Delaware corporation, or Cloverleaf. Prior to the acquisition, Cloverleaf was
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a privately held software company focused on heterogeneous storage virtualization and unified storage technologies. Following the acquisition,
Dot Hill changed its operating segment reporting structure and Cloverleaf joined Dot Hill�s Standalone Storage Software business segment,
augmenting its existing software offering portfolio of products. The acquisition of Cloverleaf is intended to broaden Dot Hill�s market
opportunities and help accelerate Dot Hill�s transition from a provider of storage arrays to a provider of storage solutions and software. The
Cloverleaf acquisition also provided Dot Hill with a new team of software developers and other professionals located in Israel.

Dot Hill acquired all of the outstanding equity interests in Cloverleaf in exchange for (i) $0.7 million of cash, (ii) 4,758,530 shares of Dot Hill
common stock valued at $8.1 million, or $1.71 per share, which represents the closing price of Dot Hill common stock on the acquisition date, or
January 26, 2010, (iii) $1.8 million of specified assumed outstanding liabilities of Cloverleaf at the acquisition date, and (iv) 327,977 shares of
restricted common stock that were issued to the employees of Cloverleaf who became employees of Dot Hill on the acquisition date pursuant to
Dot Hill�s 2009 Equity Incentive Plan.

Dot Hill also incurred direct transaction costs in connection with the acquisition of approximately $0.8 million, of which $0.5 million was
recognized as expense in the fourth quarter of 2009 and $0.3 million was recognized as expense in the first quarter of 2010. Dot Hill has
recorded these costs as general and administrative expenses in its statement of operations. The majority of these costs were paid in the first
quarter of 2010. Equity issuance costs incurred in connection with the transaction were not material.

Dot Hill did not assume or exchange any Cloverleaf stock options or other stock-based payment awards in connection with the acquisition of
Cloverleaf. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, all Cloverleaf stock options and warrants that were outstanding immediately prior to the
acquisition date and not exercised prior to the acquisition date expired and became null and void as of the acquisition date. All outstanding
options expired and had no fair value. In connection with the employment of certain Cloverleaf employees, Dot Hill granted 327,977 shares of
restricted common stock. The fair value of the 327,977 shares of restricted common stock that were issued on the acquisition date will be
recognized as compensation cost in the post-combination financial statements over the period in which the shares of restricted common stock
vest. These shares vest as follows: one-third of such shares vest upon issuance; one-third of such shares vest one year from the date of issuance;
and one-third of such shares vest two years from the date of issuance.

The consideration transferred in connection with the acquisition of Cloverleaf approximates $8.8 million as follows (in thousands):

Cash consideration $ 703
Dot Hill common stock issued to Cloverleaf 8,132

Consideration transferred $ 8,835

The acquisition of Cloverleaf has been accounted for under the purchase method of accounting in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standard Codification topic 805 �Business Combinations�. Under the purchase method of accounting, the purchase price is allocated
to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their estimated fair values.

F-15

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 110



Table of Contents

The allocation of the acquisition date fair value of the total consideration transferred in connection with the acquisition of Cloverleaf is
summarized below (in thousands):

Cash $ 78
Accounts receivable 55
Inventory 67
Other current assets 37
Property and equipment 452
Other non-current assets 23
Amortizable intangible assets:
Acquired software 6,375
Trade name 181
Goodwill 4,140
Accounts payable (269)
Current maturities of long-term loan (775)
Accrued compensation (401)
Accrued expenses (172)
Accrued Cloverleaf transaction costs (924)
Other non-current liabilities (32)

$ 8,835

The acquired software consists of heterogeneous storage virtualization and unified storage technologies that can simplify data center
management, eliminate downtime and reduce storage costs. The Cloverleaf Intelligent Storage Networking System�iSN� trade name is an
intelligent, network resident, storage network management system that provides a combination of benefits, features and capabilities targeted to
meet the demands of mid to large-sized data centers. Dot Hill expects to amortize the fair value of the acquired software and the trade name on a
straight-line basis over a period of seven years and five years, respectively, which management believes to reasonably reflect the pattern over
which the economic benefits are being derived.

The goodwill of $4.1 million arising from the Cloverleaf acquisition consists largely of expected synergies in the research and development and
sales and marketing areas as a result of combining the operations of Dot Hill and Cloverleaf. In addition, approximately $0.9 million of the
goodwill acquired relates to intangible assets that do not qualify for separate recognition. None of the goodwill will be deductible for income tax
purposes. All of the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Cloverleaf has been assigned to our Standalone Storage Software operating segment
and to the Israel reporting unit.

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard Codification topic 305 �Intangibles�Goodwill and Other�, goodwill will not be
amortized but instead will be tested for impairment at least annually, or more frequently if indicators of impairment are present. In the event that
Dot Hill management determines that the goodwill has become impaired, Dot Hill will incur a charge for the amount of impairment during the
period in which the determination is made.

Revenue of $0.6 million and a net loss of $5.5 million attributable to the operations of Cloverleaf since the acquisition date are included in our
consolidated results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2010. The $5.5 million net loss includes $0.1 million of non-recurring
restructuring costs and $0.5 million of stock-based compensation expense.

Pro forma results

The following unaudited pro forma financial information presents the combined results of operations of Dot Hill and Cloverleaf as if the
acquisition had occurred on January 1, 2009 and January 1, 2010 and excludes certain non-recurring charges related to the acquisition. The
unaudited pro forma financial information is not

F-16

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 111



Table of Contents

intended to represent or be indicative of the consolidated results of operations or financial condition of Dot Hill that would have been reported
had the acquisition been completed as of the dates presented, and should not be taken as representative of the future consolidated results of
operations or financial condition of Dot Hill.

Years Ended
(in thousands, except per share data) December 31, 2009 December 31, 2010
Net revenue $ 235,631 $ 252,571

Net loss $ (18,437 ) $ (13,237 ) 

Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.36) $ (0.25) 

4. Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are follows as of December 31, (in thousands):

2009

Estimated Useful Life Gross
Accumulated
Amortization Net

RaidCore technology 4 years $ 4,256 $ (1,350) $ 2,906
NAS technology 3 years 214 (91) 123

Total intangible assets $ 4,470 $ (1,441) $ 3,029

2010

Estimated Useful Life Gross
Accumulated
Amortization Net

Raid Core technology 4 years $ 4,256 $ (2,415) $ 1,841
NAS technology 3 years 214 (162) 52
Software 7 years 6,375 (835) 5,540
Trade name 5 years 181 (33) 148

Total intangible assets $ 11,026 $ (3,445) $ 7,581

Amortization expense related to identifiable intangible assets totaled $1.6 million, $1.1 million and $2.0 million, for the years ended
December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, respectively.

Estimated future amortization expense related to identifiable intangible assets is as follows as of December 31, 2010 (in thousands):

2011 2,063
2012 1,724
2013 947
2014 947
2015 914
Thereafter 986

Total $ 7,581

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 112



F-17

Edgar Filing: DOT HILL SYSTEMS CORP - Form 10-K

Table of Contents 113



Table of Contents

5. Goodwill

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows during the years ended December 31, (in thousands):

Storage
Systems

Standalone
Storage

Software Total
Balance as of January 1, 2009
Goodwill $ 40,700 $ �  $ 40,700
Accumulated impairment losses (40,700) �  (40,700) 

�  �  �  
Goodwill acquired during year �  �  �  
Impairment losses �  �  �  
Balance as of December 31, 2009
Goodwill 40,700 �  40,700
Accumulated impairment losses (40,700) �  (40,700) 

$ �  $ �  $ �  

Storage
Systems

Standalone
Storage

Software Total
Balance as of January 1, 2010
Goodwill $ 40,700 $ �  $ 40,700
Accumulated impairment losses (40,700) �  (40,700) 

�  �  �  
Goodwill acquired during year �  4,140 4,140
Impairment losses �  �  �  
Balance as of December 31, 2010
Goodwill 40,700 4,140 44,840
Accumulated impairment losses (40,700) �  (40,700) 

$ �  $ 4,140 $ 4,140

6. Restructuring Charge

In December 2008, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring plan, or the 2008 Plan, to improve efficiencies in our
operations, which was largely driven by our plan to consolidate our facility in Carlsbad, California into the Longmont, Colorado facility. As a
result of this relocation, we terminated approximately 70 California employees whose positions have been relocated to Colorado and incurred
approximately $1.5 million in severance-related costs since the inception of the 2008 Plan, all of which was recognized as of December 31,
2010. The remainder of the restructuring costs, all of which represent future minimum lease payments relating to the Carlsbad, California
facility, will be paid out over the remainder of the lease term ending in April 2013.

As part of the 2008 Plan, we also incurred contract termination costs of $3.2 million since the plan inception through December 31, 2010. In
2010, we incurred additional contract termination costs of $1.3 million for facility lease and other associated costs that we continue to incur
without economic benefit, as we exited an additional portion of our Carlsbad facility and revised our assumptions regarding the timing and
amount of tenant sublease income. We record charges for contract termination and other associated costs as restructuring expense, which is
presented as a separate component within operating expenses. Accrued contract termination and other associated costs are recorded in the
restructuring accrual line on our consolidated balance sheets. We expect to pay these contract lease termination costs over the remainder of the
lease term ending in April 2013. Based on
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our estimates, we expect we will receive sublease income of approximately $0.6 million beginning in the fourth quarter of 2011 through the
remainder of the lease term. To the extent that we are unable to find a tenant to sublease our unused space or if we do not sublease our unused
space at a price per square foot that approximates our current estimate, we may incur additional cash restructuring charges of up to the $0.6
million of sublease income we currently expect to receive.

All of the 2008 Plan activity relates to our storage systems operating segment.

The following table summarizes our 2008 Plan activities (in thousands):

2008 Plan

Severance
and 

Related
Costs

Contract
Termination
and Other
Associated

Costs Total
Accrued restructuring balance as of December 31, 2008 $ 140 $ 541 $ 681
Restructuring plan charges 1,042 1,388 2,430
Cash payments (743) (671) (1,414) 

Accrued restructuring balance as of December 31, 2009 439 1,258 1,697
Restructuring plan charges 233 1,289 1,522
Cash payments (672) (1,047) (1,719) 

Accrued restructuring balance as of December 31, 2010 $ �  $ 1,500 $ 1,500

In the second quarter of 2010, our management approved, committed to, and initiated a restructuring and cost reduction plan, or the 2010 Plan,
to better align our resources in order to lower our breakeven point. The 2010 Plan includes severance and related costs for the reduction of
approximately 10% of our workforce, and fees associated with the acceleration of the closure of our Carlsbad, California facility. As a result of
these actions, we intend to terminate approximately 26 employees located in the United States, of which 25 have been terminated as of
December 31, 2010. We expect to incur approximately $0.4 million in severance-related costs, all of which was recognized in the 2010. Accrued
severance-related costs are recorded in the restructuring accrual line on our consolidated balance sheets. We anticipate the remainder of the
severance and related restructuring costs attributable to our 2010 Plan will be paid out during the first quarter of 2011.

As part of the 2010 Plan, we also incurred contract termination costs of $0.2 million since the plan inception through December 31, 2010 for
facility lease and other associated costs that we continue to incur without economic benefit, as we exited the remaining portion of our Carlsbad,
California facility. We record charges for contract termination costs and other associated costs as restructuring expense, which is presented as a
separate component within operating expenses. Accrued contract termination and other associated costs are recorded in the restructuring accrual
line on our consolidated balance sheets. We expect to pay these contract lease termination costs over the remainder of the lease term ending in
April 2013. Based on our estimates, we expect we will receive sublease income of approximately $0.1 million beginning in the fourth quarter of
2011 through the remainder of the lease term. To the extent that we are unable to find a tenant to sublease our unused space or if we do not
sublease our unused space at a price per square foot that approximates our current estimate, we may incur additional cash restructuring charges
of up to the $0.1 million of sublease income we currently expect to receive.

The majority of the 2010 Plan activity relates to our storage systems operating segment.
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The following table summarizes our 2010 Plan activities (in thousands):

2010 Plan

Severance
and Related

Costs

Contract
Termination
and Other
Associated

Costs Total
Accrued restructuring balance as of December 31, 2009 �  �  �  
Restructuring plan charges 377 188 565
Cash payments (357) (44) (401) 

Accrued restructuring balance as of December 31, 2010 $ 20 $ 144 $ 164

We also incurred additional severance-related restructuring charges of approximately $0.1 million in the first quarter of 2010 related to the
termination of a former employee of Cloverleaf. All of the severance-related costs were paid to this employee in the first quarter of 2010.

7. Credit Facilities

We maintain a credit facility with Silicon Valley Bank for cash advances and letters of credit of up to an aggregate of $30 million based upon an
advance rate of 85% of eligible accounts receivable. In February 2011, we amended our credit agreement with Silicon Valley Bank. The
amendment extends the maturity date to July 21, 2013, revises the definition of eligible accounts receivable to be less restrictive and also revises
the definition of net worth to add stock-based compensation expense, goodwill and long-lived asset impairment charges, subject to certain
limitations. Borrowings under the credit facility bear interest at the prime rate and are secured by substantially all of our accounts receivable,
deposit and securities accounts. The agreement provides for a negative pledge on our inventory and intellectual property, subject to certain
exceptions, and contains usual and customary covenants for an arrangement of its type, including an obligation that we maintain at all times a
net worth, as defined in the agreement, of $50 million (subject to certain increases). The agreement also includes provisions to increase the
financing facility by $20 million subject to our meeting certain requirements, including $40 million in borrowing base for the immediately
preceding 90 days, and Silicon Valley Bank locating a lender willing to finance the additional facility. In addition, if our cash and cash
equivalents net of the total amount outstanding under the credit facility fall below $20 million (measured on a rolling three-month basis), the
interest rate will increase to prime plus 1% and additional restrictions will apply. Our credit facility also provides for a cash management
services sublimit under the revolving credit line of up to $300,000. As of December 31, 2010 we had an outstanding letter of credit issued to our
contract manufacturer in China in the amount of $5.0 million.

As of December 31, 2009 and 2010, there were no amounts outstanding under the Silicon Valley Bank line of credit.

8. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company�s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, notes payable, bank
borrowings and certain other long-term liabilities. The carrying values on our balance sheet of our cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and bank borrowings approximate their fair values due to their short maturities. The carrying value on our balance
sheet of our notes payable and contingent consideration due to Ciprico, Inc. or Ciprico, in connection with the acquisition of certain intangible
assets approximates fair value as our credit-adjusted interest rate continues to represent a market participant rate.
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9. Income Taxes

Components of income (loss) before taxes are as follows for the years ended December 31, (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Income (loss) before taxes:
U.S. $ (27,712) $ (17,084) $ (7,958) 
Foreign 2,137 3,419 (5,080) 

Total income (loss) before taxes $ (25,575) $ (13,665) $ (13,038) 

Components of the income tax provision (benefit) are as follows for the years ended December 31,

(in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Current:
Federal $ (101) $ (205) $ �  
State, local and foreign 295 145 213

194 (60) 213

Deferred:
Federal �  �  �  
State, local and foreign (4) 20 �  

(4) 20 �  

Total income tax provision (benefit) $ 190 $ (40) $ 213

The reconciliation of the income tax provision computed using the federal statutory income tax rate to the recognized income tax provision
(benefit) is as follows for the years ended December 31, (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Federal statutory rate $ (8,695) $ (4,646) $ (4,432) 
State and local income taxes, net of federal benefit 14 46 (153) 
State rate change and other adjustments �  �  737
Increase in valuation allowance 9,621 4,225 3,298
Foreign tax differential 110 (23) 76
Research and development credits (273) (253) (48) 
Chapparal acquisition legal settlement (1,292) �  �  
Share based compensation 518 555 532
Other 187 56 203

Income tax provision (benefit) $ 190 $ (40) $ 213
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The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to deferred income taxes are as follows as of December 31, (in thousands):

2009 2010
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss and tax credit carry forwards $ 76,175 $ 87,204
Inventory reserve and uniform capitalization 1,292 1,707
Stock options and warrants 2,184 2,070
In-process research and development 227 248
Allowance for bad debts 94 21
Vacation accrual 437 411
Deferred rent 818 513
Warranty accrual 417 364
Depreciation and amortization 2,057 1,753
Other accruals and reserves 753 2,508
Acquired intangibles 1,041 656

Total deferred tax assets 85,495 97,455
Deferred tax liabilities:
State taxes (4,433) (3,677) 
Cloverleaf intangibles �  (1,214) 

Total deferred income tax liabilities (4,433) (4,891) 

Valuation allowance (81,062) (92,564) 

Net deferred tax assets $ �  $ �  

U.S. income and withholding taxes have not been recognized on the excess of the amount for financial reporting over the tax basis of
investments in foreign subsidiaries that are essentially permanent in duration. This amount becomes taxable upon a repatriation of assets from
the subsidiary or a sale or liquidation of the subsidiary. The amount of such temporary differences totals $0.4 million at December 31, 2010.
Determination of the amount of any unrecognized deferred tax liability on this temporary difference is not practicable.

The following table summarizes the activity related to our unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Balance, January 1 $ 4,515 $ 4,756 $ 4,842
Increase related to prior period positions 23 167 367
Increase related to current year tax positions 218 �  91
Decrease related to prior period positions �  �  (101) 
Decrease related to change in prior year estimate �  (81) (88) 

Balance, December 31 $ 4,756 $ 4,842 $ 5,111

At December 31, 2008, December 31, 2009, and December 31, 2010 we had cumulative unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $4.8
million, 4.8 million, and $5.1 million respectively, of which approximately $0.3 million, $0.2 million, and $0.2 million, respectively, are
included in other long term liabilities that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate. The remaining $4.5 million, $4.6 million, and $4.9
million of unrecognized tax benefits will have no impact on the effective tax rate due to the existence of net operating loss carryforwards and a
full valuation allowance. Consistent with previous periods, penalties and tax related interest expense are reported as a component of income tax
expense. As of December 31, 2008, December 31, 2009 and December 31, 2010, the total amount of accrued income tax related interest and
penalties included in the consolidated balance sheet was less than $0.1 million. We do not expect that our unrecognized tax benefit will change
significantly within the next 12 months.
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Due to net operating losses and other tax attributes going forward, we are currently open to audit under the statute of limitations by the Internal
Revenue Service for the years ending March 31, 1999 through December 31, 2010. With few exceptions, our state income tax returns are open
to audit for the years ended December 31, 2000 through 2010.

We periodically evaluate the likelihood of the realization of deferred tax assets, and adjust the carrying amount of the deferred tax assets by the
valuation allowance to the extent the future realization of the deferred tax assets is not judged to be more likely than not. We consider many
factors when assessing the likelihood of future realization of our deferred tax assets, including our recent cumulative earnings experience by
taxing jurisdiction, expectations of future taxable income or loss, the carryforward periods available to us for tax reporting purposes, and other
relevant factors.

At December 31, 2010, based on the weight of available evidence, including cumulative losses in recent years and expectations regarding future
taxable income, we determined that it was not more likely than not that our deferred tax assets would be realized and have an $92.6 million
valuation allowance associated with our deferred tax assets.

As of December 31, 2010, we had federal and state net operating losses of approximately $193.2 million and $104.5 million, respectively, which
begin to expire in the tax years ending 2017 and 2011, respectively. We had foreign net operating losses of $36.9 million, which have no
expiration date. In addition, we had federal tax credit carryforwards of $4.1 million, of which approximately $0.5 million can be carried forward
indefinitely to offset future tax liability, and the remaining $3.6 million begin to expire in the tax year ending 2011. We also had state tax credit
carryforwards of $3.5 million, of which $0.1 million will begin expiring in 2011, and the remaining $3.4 million have no expiration date.

As a result of our equity transactions, an ownership change, within the meaning of IRC Section 382, occurred on September 18, 2003. As a
result, annual use of our federal net operating loss and credit carry forwards is limited to (i) the aggregate fair market value of Dot Hill
immediately before the ownership change multiplied by (ii) the long-term tax-exempt rate (within the meaning of Section 382 (f) of the IRC) in
effect at that time. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to
the IRC Section 382 limitation for those years.

As a result of our acquisition of Chaparral Network Storage, Inc., or Chaparral, a second ownership change, within the meaning of IRC
Section 382, occurred on February 23, 2004. As a result, annual use of Chaparral�s federal net operating loss and credit carry forwards may be
limited. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to the
Section 382 limitation for those years.

As a result of our acquisition of Cloverleaf Communications, Inc., or Cloverleaf, a third ownership change, within the meaning of IRC
Section 382, occurred on January 26, 2010. As a result, annual use of Cloverleaf�s federal net operating loss and credit carry forwards may be
limited. The annual limitation is cumulative and, therefore, if not fully utilized in a year, can be utilized in future years in addition to the
Section 382 limitation for those years.

10. Stockholders� Equity, Equity Incentive Plans and Warrants

Stock Incentive Plans

2009 EIP. Our stockholders approved the 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2009 EIP, at our Annual Meeting of Stockholders held on June 15,
2009. The 2009 EIP authorizes the issuance or grant of incentive stock options, non-statutory stock options, restricted stock awards, restricted
stock unit awards, stock appreciation rights, performance awards, performance cash awards and other stock awards to our employees, directors
and
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consultants and is intended as the successor to and continuation of our 2000 EIP. Following the approval of the 2009 EIP by our stockholders, no
additional stock awards may be granted under the 2000 Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan, or the 2000 EIP. All outstanding stock
awards granted under the 2000 EIP will remain subject to the terms of the 2000 EIP provided, however, that any shares subject to outstanding
stock awards granted under the 2000 EIP that expire or terminate for any reason prior to exercise or settlement shall become available for
issuance pursuant to awards granted under the 2009 EIP. Awards granted under the 2000 EIP expire 10 years from the date of grant. Awards
granted under the 2009 EIP expire seven years from the date of grant. As of June 15, 2009, the total number of shares of our common stock
reserved for issuance under the 2009 EIP consisted of 4,500,000 shares plus 7,112,217 shares that are subject to outstanding stock awards under
the 2000 EIP that may become available for grant under the 2009 EIP if they expire or terminate for any reason prior to exercise or settlement
under the 2000 EIP. Unless sooner terminated by our Board of Directors, the 2009 EIP shall automatically terminate on April 26, 2019, the day
before the tenth anniversary of the date the 2009 EIP was adopted by the Board. The Board of Directors may also amend the 2009 EIP at any
time subject to applicable laws and regulations, including the rules and regulations of The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC. In general, no
amendment or termination of the 2009 EIP may adversely affect any rights under awards already granted to a participant unless agreed to by the
affected participant.

During 2009 and 2010, we granted restricted stock and options to purchase common stock with various vesting as approved by the Board upon
each grant. As of December 31, 2010, 1,748,686 shares of restricted stock were outstanding under the 2009 EIP, of which 287,000 were
performance-based restricted stock awards. These performance�based awards were issued in January 2010 and vest in the first quarter of 2011
provided that the performance objectives are achieved. Additionally, 350,837 shares of restricted stock were outstanding under the 2000 EIP. As
of December 31, 2010, options to purchase 990,500 and 4,809,047 shares of common stock were outstanding under the 2009 EIP and 2000 EIP,
respectively. 2,052,066 shares of common stock remained available for grant under the 2009 EIP.

2000 NEDSOP. Under our 2000 New Employee Directors Stock Option Plan, or 2000 NEDSOP, nonqualified stock options to purchase
common stock are automatically granted to our non-employee directors upon appointment to our board of directors (initial grants) and upon each
of our annual meeting of stockholders (annual grants). Options granted under the 2000 NEDSOP expire 10 years from the date of the grant.
Initial grants vest over four years, with 25% of the shares subject to the option vesting one year from the date of grant and the remaining shares
subject to the option vesting ratably thereafter on a monthly basis. Annual grants are fully vested on the date of grant. 1,000,000 shares of
common stock are reserved for issuance under the 2000 NEDSOP. As of December 31, 2010, options to purchase 380,000 shares of common
stock were outstanding under the 2000 NEDSOP and options to purchase 523,124 shares of common stock remained available for grant under
the 2000 NEDSOP.

2000 ESPP. Our stockholders approved our Amended and Restated Employee Stock Purchase Plan, or 2000 ESPP, at our Annual Meeting of
Stockholders held on June 15, 2009, primarily to increase the share reserve under the 2000 ESPP by 4,000,000 shares. The 2000 ESPP qualifies
under the provisions of Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code, or IRC, and provides our eligible employees, as defined in the 2000 ESPP,
with an opportunity to purchase shares of our common stock at 85% of fair market value. There were 1,076,265 and 895,071 shares issued under
the 2000 ESPP for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2010, respectively. As of December 31, 2010, the 2000 ESPP had a total of
3,209,895 shares available for purchase.
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As of December 31, 2010, total unrecognized share-based compensation cost related to unvested stock options, restricted stock awards, and our
2000 ESPP was $3.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.29 years. The following
table summarizes share-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, (in thousands):

2008 2009 2010
Cost of goods sold $ 377 $ 382 489
Sales and marketing 388 288 333
Research and development 952 1,112 1,231
General and administrative 1,167 1,040 950

Share-based compensation expense before taxes 2,884 2,822 3,003
Related deferred income tax benefits �  �  

Share-based compensation expense $ 2,884 $ 2,822 $ 3,003
Share-based compensation expense is derived from:
Stock options $ 2,563 $ 2,237 1,589
Restricted stock awards �  310 1,052
2000 ESPP 321 275 362

Total $ 2,884 $ 2,822 $ 3,003

We estimate forfeitures at the time of grant and revise, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. We
have historically and continue to estimate the fair value of share-based awards using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model.

A summary of stock option activity is as follows:

Number of
shares

Weighted
average

exercise price

Weighted average
remaining
contractual

term
(in years)

Aggregate
intrinsic value
(in thousands)

Outstanding at January 1, 2010 6,142,901 4.04
Granted 1,103,834 1.49
Exercised (61,537) 1.02
Forfeited (258,092) 1.85
Expired (747,559) 5.20

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 6,179,547 $ 3.57 5.72 $ 525,883
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2010 5,982,713 $ 3.63 5.70 $ 474,268
Exercisable at December 31, 2010 4,395,458 $ 4.29 5.34 $ 129,160
A summary of restricted stock award activity for 2010 is as follows:

Number of
shares

Weighted
average grant
date fair value

Outstanding at January 1, 2010 1,511,205 $ 0.60
Granted 2,056,026 1.68
Vested (957,597) 0.79
Forfeited (510,111) 0.31
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Outstanding and unvested at December 31, 2010 2,099,523 $ 1.47

The weighted average grant-date fair values of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were $1.35 per share,
$0.45 per share, and $0.97 per share, respectively. The total intrinsic value
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of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were $0.1 million, $0.0 million, and $0.0 million, respectively.
There were no options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2009.

The weighted average grant-date fair values of restricted stock awards granted during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were
$2.34, $0.55 and $1.68 per share, respectively.

Cash generated from options exercised under all share-based compensation arrangements for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and
2010 were $0.3 million, $0.0 million and $0.1 million, respectively. Cash generated from the purchase of shares through the 2000 ESPP for the
years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010, was $0.9 million, $0.5 million, and $0.7 million respectively. We issue new shares from the
respective plan share reserves upon exercise of options to purchase common stock and for purchases through the 2000 ESPP.

The aggregate intrinsic value in the stock option summary table above is based on our closing stock price of $1.75 per share as of the last
business day of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010, which value would have been realized by the optionees had all options been exercised
on that date. The total fair value of options to purchase common stock that vested during the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010
was $2.5 million, $2.4 million, and $1.1 million, respectively.

To estimate compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 we use the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following weighted-average assumptions for equity awards granted:

EIP and NEDSOP ESPP
Years Ended
December 31,

Years Ended
December 31,

2008 2009 2010 2008 2009 2010
Risk-free interest rate 2.74% 2.01% 2.25% 1.96% 0.32% 0.19% 
Expected dividend yield 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 
Volatility 67% 69% 74% 82% 120% 101% 
Expected Term 5.6 years 5.5 years 5.9 years 0.5 years 0.5 years 0.5 years
Forfeiture Rate 0%-12.9% 0%-12.37% 0% -12.69% 0% 0% 0% 
The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield available on United States Treasury issues with an equivalent remaining term. We have
not paid dividends in the past and do not plan to pay any dividends in the future.

The expected volatility is based on historical volatility of our stock for the related vesting period. The expected life of the equity award is based
on historical experience.

The forfeiture rate is estimated when awards are granted and updated if information becomes available indicating that actual forfeitures will
differ.

Warrants

In January 2008, we amended our Product Purchase Agreement, or Agreement, originally entered into with HP in September 2007, to allow for
sales to additional divisions within HP. In connection with the Agreement, we issued a warrant to HP to purchase 1,602,489 shares of our
common stock (approximately 3.5% of our outstanding shares prior to the issuance of the warrant) at an exercise price of $2.40 per share. The
warrant was fully vested and exercisable at signing. The fair value of the warrant, determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, was
approximately $2.3 million. The Black-Scholes option-pricing model utilized the following assumptions; a risk-free interest rate of 3.18%,
expected volatility of 59.5% and a contractual life of five years. The warrant was issued to induce the customer to enter into the Agreement with
us. The fair value of the warrant
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was recorded as a reduction in revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2008, the period in which the Agreement was signed. At
December 31, 2010, there was a warrant outstanding to purchase 1,602,489 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $2.40 per share.
This warrant expires on January 3, 2013.

11. Employee Retirement Benefit Plans

Dot Hill Retirement Savings Plan

The Dot Hill Retirement Savings Plan, which qualifies under Section 401(k) of the IRC, is open to eligible employees over 21 years of age.
Under the plan, participating United States employees may defer up to 100% of their pretax salary, but not more than statutory limits. At our
discretion we may make contributions to this plan for plan participants. Our matching contributions vest to employees as a percentage based on
years of employment from one to five years, and matching contributions are fully vested to employees after five years of employment. Our
matching contributions to the retirement savings plan for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 were $0.1 million, $0.2 million
and $0.1 million, respectively.

12. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases

We lease office space, equipment and automobiles under non-cancelable operating leases, which expire at various dates through June 2013. Rent
expense for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2009 and 2010 was $1.7 million, $1.4 million and $1.6 million, respectively. We record rent
expense on a straight�line basis based on contractual lease payments.

Future minimum lease payments due under all non-cancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

2011 $  2,350
2012 1,841
2013 489

Total minimum lease payments $ 4,680

For purposes of the table above, the operating lease obligations exclude common area maintenance, real estate taxes and insurance expenses.

Unconditional Purchase Obligations

We have unconditional inventory related purchase obligations to certain suppliers for certain commodities in order to ensure supply of select key
components at the most favorable pricing. Additionally, we have non-inventory related purchase obligations that represent purchase
commitments made in the ordinary course of business. At December 31, 2010 we had approximately $16.8 million of unconditional purchase
obligations.

Legal Proceedings

In late January and early February 2006, numerous purported class action complaints were filed against us in the United States District Court for
the Southern District of California. The complaints allege violations of federal securities laws related to alleged inflation in our stock price in
connection with various statements and alleged omissions to the public and to the securities markets and declines in our stock price in
connection with the restatement of certain of our quarterly financial statements for fiscal year 2004, and seeking damages therefore. The
complaints were consolidated into a single action, and the Court appointed as lead plaintiff a group comprised of the Detroit Police and Fire
Retirement System and the General Retirement System of the
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City of Detroit. The consolidated complaint was filed on August 25, 2006, and we filed a motion to dismiss on October 5, 2006. The Court
granted our motion to dismiss on March 15, 2007. Plaintiffs filed their Second Amended Consolidated Complaint on April 20, 2007. We filed a
motion to dismiss the Second Amended Consolidated Complaint on May 1, 2008, which the Court granted on September 2, 2008. The plaintiffs
subsequently filed a Third Amended Consolidated Complaint on October 10, 2008, and on November 24, 2008 we filed a motion to dismiss. On
March 18, 2009, the Court dismissed the Third Amended Consolidated Complaint, but granted plaintiffs leave to amend one more time. On
April 17, 2009, plaintiffs filed a Notice of Appeal regarding the Court�s September 2, 2008 and March 18, 2009 orders. On May 19, 2009, the
Court entered final judgment and dismissed the action with prejudice. The plaintiffs subsequently filed an Amended Notice of Appeal on June 8,
2009. On October 29, 2009, the parties filed a Stipulation of Dismissal of Appeal. On October 30, 2009, the appeal was dismissed.

In addition, three complaints purporting to be derivative actions were filed in California state court against certain of our directors and executive
officers. These complaints are based on the same facts and circumstances described in the federal class action complaints and generally allege
that the named directors and officers breached their fiduciary duties by failing to oversee adequately our financial reporting. Each of the
complaints generally seeks an unspecified amount of damages. Our demurrers to two of those cases, in which we sought dismissal, were
overruled (i.e., denied). We formed a Special Litigation Committee, or SLC, of disinterested directors to investigate the alleged wrongdoing. On
January 12, 2007, another derivative action similar to the previous derivative actions with the addition of allegations regarding purported stock
option backdating was served on us. In April 2007, the SLC concluded its investigation and based on its findings directed us to file a motion to
dismiss the derivative matters. On July 13, 2007, all of the derivative actions were consolidated for pre-trial proceedings. We filed a motion to
dismiss the consolidated matters pursuant to the SLC�s directive on May 30, 2008. On March 29, 2010, pursuant to a stipulation of the parties and
without consideration having been paid to plaintiffs or their counsel, the derivative actions were dismissed with prejudice as to the plaintiffs.

We may be involved in certain other legal actions and claims from time to time arising in the ordinary course of business. Historically the
outcome of such other litigation and claims has not had a material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

13. Segment Information

Primarily as a result of our acquisition of Cloverleaf in January 2010, as well as our ongoing strategic development, planning and evaluation, we
changed the structure of our internal organization to focus on our storage systems and standalone software products. As a result, we now have
two operating segments, which include storage systems and standalone storage software. Our storage hardware operating segment consists
predominantly of our business prior to the acquisition of Cloverleaf and includes our AssuredSAN products. Our standalone storage software
operating segment consists primarily of the business we acquired from Cloverleaf and the intellectual property assets we purchased from Ciprico
and includes our AssuredUVS and AssuredVRA products.

All prior period amounts have been adjusted to reflect the new operating segment structure.

The Chief Operating Decision Maker, or CODM, is our President and Chief Executive Officer. The CODM allocates resources to and assesses
the performance of each operating segment using information about its revenue and operating income (loss).

The CODM does not evaluate operating segments using discrete asset information. Although the CODM uses operating income to evaluate the
segments, operating costs included in one segment may benefit other segments. The accounting policies Dot Hill uses to derive operating
segment results are substantially the same as those the consolidated Company uses.
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Description of Segments

Storage Systems

We offer, primarily through our AssuredSAN products, a flexible, broad line of networked data storage solutions composed of standards-based
hardware and embedded software for open systems environments including Fiber Channel, or FC, Internet Small Computer Systems Interface,
or iSCSI, and Serial Attached SCSI, or SAS, storage markets. We incorporate many of the performance attributes and other features demanded
by high-end/data center end-users into our products, at prices that are suitable for the entry-level or midrange markets. Our end-users consist of
entry-level and midrange users, requiring cost-effective, easily managed, high-performance, reliable storage systems. Our AssuredSAN product
lines range from approximately 146 gigabyte, or GB, to large 192 terabyte, or TB, storage systems. These offerings allow our products to be
integrated in a modular building block fashion or configured into a complete storage solution, increasing OEM flexibility in creating
differentiated products. Modular products also allow our OEM partners to customize solutions, bundling our products with value-added
hardware, software and services.

Our storage systems segment products and services are sold worldwide to facilitate server and storage area network, or SAN, storage
implementations, primarily through OEMs, and supplemented by system integrators, or SIs, distributors and value added resellers, or VARs.

Standalone Storage Software

We offer a line of unified virtual storage appliances called the AssuredUVS product line. To OEM customers, we market this technology as a
software-only product with a license based business model. To end-user customers, we market this as complete appliance products (hardware
servers, software, and storage options) through our indirect sales channel under the Dot Hill brand. The AssuredUVS product line delivers the
following:

� Simplified Unified Storage Management. The AssuredUVS provides the ability to create and manage virtual volumes for block
(SAN) and file (NAS) storage with complete storage ecosystem management using a unified set of management tools so IT
personnel can do more with the same resources.

� Storage Virtualization. The AssuredUVS provides a full set of virtualization tools for volume management, thin provisioning,
snapshots, replication, and tiered storage across a set of heterogeneous storage arrays.

� Business Continuity. The AssuredUVS delivers data protection through snapshots, virtual replicas and mirroring�both local and
remote. Our communications layer over WAN connections supports policy-based Recovery Point Objective, or RPO, and Recovery
Time Objective, or RTO, quality of service as the globally distributed geographical scale.

� Scaling and Maximizing assets. The AssuredUVS offers support for existing and new storage arrays in a data center, eliminating the
need to replace existing storage systems. The technology allows non-disruptive data migration from existing storage volumes to new
virtual volumes and the ability to integrate existing storage volumes as proxy volumes without moving data.

Through our acquisition of Ciprico�s RAIDCore assets in September 2008, we offer a high performance, feature rich, host-based RAID stack that
can be included as a key ingredient of an entry-level or mid-level enterprise class server built by OEMs or SIs. This product line, called
AssuredVRA, provides a cost effective solution for standard Windows and Linux servers that utilizes existing built in SATA or SAS I/O
capabilities of motherboards or simple storage I/O adapters to replace expensive dedicated hardware RAID adapter solutions.
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Net revenue and operating loss were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010

Storage Systems net revenue $ 272,879 $ 234,360 $ 250,631
Standalone Storage Software net revenue �  23 2,112

Total segment net revenue 272,879 234,383 252,743
Elimination of intersegment net revenue �  �  (249) 

Total Dot Hill consolidated net revenue $ 272,879 $ 234,383 $ 252,494

Storage Systems operating loss $ (26,149) $ (10,618) $ (5,046) 
Standalone Storage Software operating loss (1,038) (3,214) (7,990) 

Total operating loss $ (27,187) $ (13,832) $ (13,036) 

Total other income (loss), net 1,612 167 (2) 

Loss before income taxes $ (25,575) $ (13,665) $ (13,038) 

Depreciation and amortization expense by operating segment were as follows (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010

Storage Systems depreciation expense $ 4,271 $ 1,698 $ 1,681
Standalone Storage Software depreciation expense 2 37 347

$ 4,273 $ 1,735 $ 2,028

Storage Systems amortization expense $ 1,560 $ �  $ �  
Standalone Storage Software amortization expense �  1,136 2,004

$ 1,560 $ 1,136 $ 2,004

The following is a summary of geographical information (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2009 2010

Net revenue:
United States $ 245,489 $ 215,093 $ 245,379
Europe 23,951 16,813 5,624
Asia 3,439 2,477 1,491

$ 272,879 $ 234,383 $ 252,494

Long-lived assets:
United States $ 7,079 $ 6,851 $ 5,140
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Europe 10 11 6,408
Asia �  �  �  

$ 7,089 $ 6,862 $ 11,548

Net revenue is recorded in the geographic area in which the sale is originated.

Long-lived assets include property and equipment, net, identifiable intangible assets, net, and other non-current assets.
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14. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The information presented below reflects all adjustments, which, in the opinion of management, are of a normal and recurring nature necessary
to present fairly the results of operations for the periods presented (in thousands, except per share amounts).

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2009:
Net revenue $ 53,889 $ 54,328 $ 63,600 $ 62,566
Gross profit 9,260 7,970 11,631 8,966
Loss before income taxes (3,259) (4,227) (1,225) (4,954)
Net loss (3,292) (4,188) (1,137) (5,008)
Basic and diluted net loss per share (0.07) (0.09) (0.02) (0.11)

First
Quarter

Second
Quarter

Third
Quarter

Fourth
Quarter

Year Ended December 31, 2010:
Net revenue $ 59,974 $ 65,493 $ 61,586 $ 65,441
Gross profit 8,125 9,669 11,295 13,741
Income (Loss) before income taxes (6,378) (5,799) (1,260) 399
Net income (loss) (6,427) (5,834) (1,269) 279
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share $ (0.12) $ (0.11) $ (0.02) $ 0.01
During the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2009, we incurred approximately $0.1 million, $0.4 million, $0.4 million and $1.5 million,
respectively, of restructuring charges related to our 2008 restructuring plan. During the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2010, we
incurred approximately $0.3 million, $1.4 million, $0.1 million and $0.4 million, respectively, of restructuring charges related to our 2008 and
2010 restructuring plans. See further discussion of our restructuring activities in Note 6.

On January 26, 2010, we acquired 100% of the voting equity interests of Cloverleaf in exchange for (i) $0.7 million of cash, (ii) 4,758,530
shares of Dot Hill common stock valued at $8.1 million, or $1.71 per share, (iii) $1.8 million of specified assumed outstanding liabilities of
Cloverleaf at the acquisition date, and (iv) 327,977 shares of restricted common stock that were issued to the employees of Cloverleaf who
became employees of Dot Hill on the acquisition date pursuant to Dot Hill�s 2009 Equity Incentive Plan. See further discussion of our acquisition
of Cloverleaf in Note 3.
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